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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
[0 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OFTHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

OR
[l TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-36410

Phibro Animal Health Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 13-1840497
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)
Glenpointe Centre East, & Floor 0766¢-6712
300 Frank W. Burr Boulevard, Suite 21 (Zip Code)

Teaneck, New Jersey
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(201) 327300

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Class A Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per sha NASDAQ Stock Market

(Title of each class) (Name of each exchange on which registered)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢iie Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405afrBies Act. Yes! NolJ
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®eacl5(d) of the Act. Yes 1 Nol[!

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant & filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f4193
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqréeiod that the registrant was required to filehsteports), and (2) has been subject to suchyfiiguirements for
the past 90 days.Yes[! No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant n@snitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive Data File rieed
to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 48&gtilation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during preceding 12 months (or for such shorter pehatithe
registrant was required to submit and post suel.jil Yes(| No 0

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinqufilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§28% of this chapter) is not contained herein, a&iid

not be contained, to the best of the registranmttskedge, in definitive proxy or information statents incorporated by reference in Part Ill of fhism 10-K or any
amendment to this Form -K. ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, -accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&8ge
the definitions of‘large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” atainaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act.

Large accelerated file 0 Accelerated filel 0
Nor-accelerated filer 0 Smaller reporting company 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act). Yes 1 NolJ

The aggregate market value of the registrant'ssC¥dasommon stock and Class B common stock heldonyaffiliates of the registrant was $550,748,568

as of December 31, 2014, the last business ddyeakgistrant’s most recently completed secondailfigaarter based on the closing price of the comstock on the
NASDAQ Stock Market. The registrant has no-voting common stock

As of September 2, 2015, there were 17,952, 75%sladrthe registrart’Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per shark21,149,811 shares of
registran's Class B common stock, par value $0.0001 per shatstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement fer2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be hellovember 9, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the
“2015 Proxy Statement”) are incorporated hereimdfgrence in Part Ill of this Annual Report on FatBK. Such proxy statement will be filed with the Setieis anc
Exchange Commission within 120 days of the regi¢’s fiscal year ended June 30, 20
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements that are subject to risks and
uncertainties. All statements other than statemafritsstorical or current fact included in this cgpare forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statementsudisour current expectations and projections nglat our
financial condition, results of operations, plamisjectives, future performance and business. Youdentify
forward-looking statements by the fact that theyndbrelate strictly to historical or current facthiese
statements may include words such as “aim,” “aoditz,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast;butlook,”
“potential,” “project,” “projection,” “plan,” “intend,” “seek,” “believe,” “may,” “could,” “would,” “will,”
“should,” “can,” “can have,” “likely,” the negatigsthereof and other words and terms of similar rimggim
connection with any discussion of the timing orunatof future operating or financial performancetirer
events. For example, all statements we make rglédiour estimated and projected earnings, revemosss,
expenditures, cash flows, growth rates and findmegults, our plans and objectives for future atiens,
growth or initiatives, strategies, or the expeaiattome or impact of pending or threatened lityatire
forward-looking statements. All forward-looking &ments are subject to risks and uncertaintiesntiagtcause
actual results to differ materially from those thet expected. Examples of such risks and unceeaiirtclude:

”ou ”ou

”ou ”ou ”ou ”ou ”u ”

e restrictions on the use of antibacterials indigooducing animals may become more prevalent;

e amaterial portion of our sales and gross @aie generated by antibacterials and other related
products;

» competition in each of our markets from a numifdarge and small companies, some of which
have greater financial, research and developm&®&I["), production and other resources than
we have;

» the impact of current and future laws and retgujachanges;
» outbreaks of animal diseases could significargtjuce demand for our products;

» perceived adverse effects on human health linkeldet@onsumption of food derived from anin
that utilize our products could cause a declinthénsales of those products;

» our ability to successfully implement severabaf strategic initiatives;

» our business may be negatively affected by wezatbnditions and the availability of natural
resources;

» the continuing trend toward consolidation oftagr customer groups as well as the emergence of
large buying groups;

» our ability to control costs and expenses;
e any unforeseen material loss or casualty;
e exposure relating to rising costs and reducetiocner income;

« competition deriving from advances in veterinargdical practices and animal health
technologies;

e unanticipated safety or efficacy concerns;
» our dependence on suppliers having current aegyl approvals;
e our raw materials are subject to price fluctorasi and their availability can be limited;

» natural and man-made disasters, including bulimited to fire, snow and ice storms, flood, hail
hurricanes and earthquakes;

» terrorist attacks, particularly attacks on othivi markets in which we operate;

» our reliance on the continued operation of oanofacturing facilities and application of our
intellectual property;




TABLE OF CONTENTS

» adverse U.S. and international economic marketiitions, including currency fluctuations;
» the risks of product liability claims, legal meedings and general litigation expenses;

» our dependence on our Israeli and Brazilian aipeans;

» our substantial level of indebtedness and reld&bt-service obligations;

*  restrictions imposed by covenants in our debe@gents;

» the risk of work stoppages; and

« other factors as described in “Risk Factorsltém 1A. of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

While we believe that our assumptions are reasenal® caution that it is very difficult to preditie
impact of known factors, and it is impossible ferta anticipate all factors that could affect octual results.
Important factors that could cause actual resaltiffer materially from our expectations, or cautry
statements, are disclosed under “Risk Factors™mtahagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” All forwaabking statements are expressly qualified in taetirety by
these cautionary statements. You should evalubferalard-looking statements made in this reporthia
context of these risks and uncertainties.

We caution you that the important factors referdradgove may not contain all of the factors that are
important to you. In addition, we cannot assure @ we will realize the results or developmenésexpect or
anticipate or, even if substantially realized, ttiaty will result in the consequences we anticipataffect us or
our operations in the way we expect. The forwankiog statements included in this report are madg as of
the date hereof. We undertake no obligation toiplyblipdate or revise any forwatdeking statement as a res
of new information, future events or otherwise,aptcas otherwise required by law. If we do updaie @ more
forward-looking statements, no inference shouldniaele that we will make additional updates with eespo
those or other forward-looking statements.

Emerging Growth Company Status

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defineSantion 2(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the
“Securities Act”), as modified by the Jumpstart Buisiness Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”).sish,
we are eligible to take advantage of certain ex@nptfrom various reporting requirements that gumgliaable tc
other public companies that are not “emerging ghosampanies.These exemptions include, but are not lim
to, (i) not being required to comply with the awodiattestation requirements of Section 404 (“Sectio4”) of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended (thdb&Bas-Oxley Act”), (ii) reduced disclosure obligas
regarding executive compensation in our periodiores and proxy statements, and (iii) exemptioomfthe
requirements of holding a ndsinding advisory vote on executive compensationstadkholder approval of ar
golden parachute payments not previously appraddhave taken, and plan to continue to take, adganof
some or all of these exemptions. If we do contittuiake advantage of any of these exemptions, weotl&now
if some investors will find our Class A common $tdess attractive as a result. If some investarg fiur Class
A common stock less attractive, there may be adetge trading market for our Class A common stactl our
stock price may be more volatile. We have eleatefdtego the extended transition period for compyivith
new or revised accounting standards that emergimgth companies are permitted to take advantageisuan
to Section 107 of the JOBS Act.

Pursuant to Section 102 of the JOBS Act, our 20bxyPStatement will provide reduced executive
compensation disclosure.

We could remain an emerging growth company ungilghrliest of(a) the last day of the first fiscal
year in which our annual gross revenues exceedll&inb(b) the date that we become a “large aceetsl filer”
as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Bxgha\ct of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Acthictv
would occur if the market value of our Class A coomstock that is held by
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non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the asdiness day of our most recently completed sefiscal
guarter, (c) the date on which we have issued inare $1 billion in non-convertible debt during threceding
three-year period, or (d) June 2019, which is the @& the fiscal year following the fifth annivergaf our
initial public offering.

Market, Ranking and Other Industry Data

Unless otherwise indicated, information containethis report concerning our industry and the
markets in which we operate, including our genexglectations and market position, market opponguanit
market share, is based on management estimatemantbrmation from Vetnosis Limited (“Vetnosis’g,
research and consulting firm specializing in glodraimal health and veterinary medicine. The Vesosi
information cited in this document was not prepadred/etnosis on our behalf. Management estimates ar
derived from publicly available information, ourdwmledge of our industry and assumptions based om su
information and knowledge, which we believe to &asonable. We believe these estimates are reasambf
the date of this report, or if an earlier datepedfied, as of such earlier date. However, thigrmation may
prove to be inaccurate because of the method bghwkée obtained some of the data for our estimatégcaus:
this information is subject to change and cannetgs be verified due to limits on the availabikityd reliability
of independent sources, the voluntary nature ofitiia gathering process and other limitations antettainties
inherent in any statistical survey of market shamesaddition, purchasing patterns and consumdeprces can
and do change. As a result, you should be awatertheket share, ranking and other similar datdcsét in this
report, and estimates and beliefs based on suahmaty not be reliable.

Trademarks, Service Marks and Trade Name:

The following trademarks and service marks usealinout this report belong to, are licensed to, or
are otherwise used by us in our business: Sfaf&tskalin™; V-Max® ; Terramycif ; Neo-Terramycth ;
Nec-TM™; TM-50® ; TM-100™; Mecadof ; NicarB ; Boviprol™Bloat Guard® ; AviaX¥® ; Aviax II™;
Aviax Plus™: Coxistac™; Posistac™; Banmifth ; Cerdi™; Cerdimix™; Rumatél ; OmniGen-AF  ;
Animate® ; Procreatin § ; Magni-Pfi ; Chronfax ; Rao§086™: SRFP ; Safmann&n ; BioSaf ; AB20
®: Lactrol® ; MJIPRRS ; and TAb{2
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PART |
ltem 1. Business

Overview

Phibro Animal Health Corporation is a leading gliodizersified animal health and mineral nutrition
company. We are committed to providing livestoadarcers with value-based products and solutioh o
them maintain and enhance the health and prodtyctif’their animals and meet the growing demandafomal
protein. Our sales, marketing and technical suppganization of approximately 275 employees salise thar
1,400 product presentations in over 65 countriegpproximately 2,900 customers. We develop, maturfac
and market products for a broad range of food alsimaluding poultry, swine, beef and dairy cattted
aquaculture. Our products help prevent, controlteat diseases, enhance nutrition to help imphaadth and
performance and contribute to balanced mineraltianr We sell animal health and mineral nutritiproducts
either directly to integrated poultry, swine, amdtle integrators or through commercial animal feed
manufacturers, wholesalers and distributors.

Our products include:

» Animal health products such as antibacterialcaccidials and vaccines, which help prevent and
manage infectious disease in livestock and thezafoprove food safety, and nutritional specialty
products, which enhance nutrition to help improealth and performance.

e Mineral nutrition products that fortify the arats diet and help maintain optimal health.

We have focused our efforts in regions where thpritya of livestock production is consolidated in
large commercial farms such as the United StatexiBChina, Russia, Mexico, Australia, Turkeyak,
Canada and Europe, and we believe we are welliposit to further accelerate our growth with ounbished
network of sales, marketing and distribution prefesals in emerging markets in Latin America, AB&rific,
Europe and Africa.

In addition to animal health and mineral nutritiproducts, we manufacture and market specific
ingredients for use in the personal care, autorapihdustrial chemical and chemical catalyst indest We sell
performance products directly to customers in floeeanentioned industries.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context requatherwise, references in this report to “we,” “dur,
“us,” “the Company,” “Phibro,” “PAHC” and similang@ression refer to Phibro Animal Health Corporatéom
its subsidiaries. We completed our initial publfteang (“IPO”) on April 16, 2014. Our Class A conam stock
trades on the NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQ”) undbe trading symbol “PAHC.” Our Class B common
stock is not listed or traded on any stock exchange

Business Segment

We manage our business in three segments—Animdii®gineral Nutrition and Performance
Products—each with its own dedicated managemensaled team, for enhanced focus and accountatbiliy.
sales by segments, species and regions were:

Segments Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/2014 2014/ 201 2015 2014 2013
(% in millions) - T
Animal Health $471 $431 $38E $40 9% $46 12% 63% 62% 59%
Mineral Nutrition 227 20z 205 26 13% (2) (1)% 3C% 29% 31%
Performance Products 51 59 65 (9) (14)% (B) (9)% 7% 9% 10%
Total $74C $692 $65¢ $57 8% $39 6%
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Species Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013  2015/2014 2014 / 2013 201F 2014 2013
($ in millions) o
Poultry $282 $284 $261 $(1) (0)% $23 9% 38% 41% 40%
Swine 93 90 91 3 3% 1) @)% 12% 13% 14%
Dairy 131 12C 10z 11 9% 18 18 % 17% 17% 16%
Cattle 11¢€ 83 75 35 42 % 8 11% 16% 12% 11%
Other® 124 115 124 9 8% (9) (7)% 17% 17% 19%
Total $74¢ 369z $65:Z $57 8% $39 6 %
Regions?® Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013  2015/2014 2014 / 2013 2015 2014 2013
(% in millions) T
U.S. & Canad: $48c $44t $437 $38 9% $ 8 2% 65% 64% 67%
Brazil and Latin Americi 107 92 73 15 17% 19 26% 14% 13% 11%
China & Asia Pacific 61 62 53 @a @M% 9 17% 8% 9% 8%
Israel & Other 97 93 9C 4 4% 3 3% 13% 13% 14%
Total $74¢ $69z $65c $57 8% $39 6 %

(1) Other includes the Performance Products segmengdsli Nutrition sales to pet food and fertilizer

manufacturers and sales to the ethanol indt

(2) Net Sales by region are based on country of de&tm

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments.

Adjusted EBITDA by segment was:

Adjusted EBITDA Change Percentage of tota®
For the Year Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013  2015/2014 2014 /2013 2015 2014 2013
($ in millions)
Animal Health $12C $10C $83 %20 20% $17 21% 88% 86% 85%
Mineral Nutrition 14 12 12 3 24% (0) @)% 11% 1% 12%
Performance Produc 3 5 3 (2) (43)% 2 58% 2% 4% 3%
Corporate (27) (2€) (22) (@) * 4) =
Total $11C 91 76 $19 21% $15 20%
(1) Before unallocated corporate co
Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments.
Net identifiable assets by segment wi
Net Identifiable Assets Change Percentage of tota
As of June 30 2015 2014 2013  2015/2014 2014 /2013 2015 2014 2013
(% in millions)
Animal Health $362z $361 $32¢ $ 0 0% $32 10% 73% 77% 69%
Mineral Nutrition 59 58 65 2 3% 7) A1)% 12% 12% 14%
Performance Produc 22 23 21 ) (GB)% 2 10% 5% 5% 4%
Corporate 50 3C 56 20 67% (29) (49)% 10% 6% 12%
Total $495 $47z $474 $21 4% $(2) (0)%

Corporate includes all cash and cash equivalents.

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments.
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Animal Health

Our Animal Health business develops, manufactundsmnaarkets more than 550 product presentations,
including:
» antibacterials, which inhibit the growth of pagienic bacteria that cause bacterial infections in
animals; anticoccidials, which inhibit the growthococcidia (parasites) that damage the intestinal
tract of animals; and related products (MFAs artt

* nutritional specialty products, which enhancéitian to help improve health and performance
(nutritional specialties); and

* vaccines, which cause an increase in antibogBldeagainst a specific virus or bacterium, thus
preventing infection from that viral or bacterialtigen (vaccines).

Our animal health products help our customers priewentrol and treat diseases and enhance na
to help improve health and performance, enablingcastomers to more efficiently produce high-quyalit
wholesome animal protein products for human consiampWe develop, manufacture and market animaltimea
products for a broad range of food animals inclggioultry, swine, beef and dairy cattle and aquacel We
provide technical and product support directly tio customers to ensure the optimal use of our mtsd@The
animal health industry and demand for many of aimal health products in a particular region afecéd by
changing disease pressures and by weather corgliierusage of our products follows varying wegpla¢terns
and seasons. As a result, we may experience rdgindaeasonal fluctuations in our animal healthmsnt.
Animal Health net sales by product group and regjivare:

Product Groups Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/ 201: 2014/ 201: 2015 2014 2013
($ in millions) - T T
MFAs and othe $33€ $327 $304 $ 9 3% $23 8% 71% 76% 79%
Nutritional specialtie: 82 63 52 19 3C% 11 21% 17% 15% 14%
Vaccines 53 41 29 12 289% 13 44% 11% 10% 7%
Animal Health $471 $431 $38E  $4C 9% $46 12%
Regions® Change Percentage of tota
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/ 201 2014/ 201: % % %
($ in millions)
U.S. & Canad: $21¢ $19t $184 $24 12% $11 6% 46% 45% 48%
Brazil & Latin America 99 85 70 14 16% 15 21% 21% 20% 18%
China & Asia Pacific 61 62 53 1) )% 9 17% 13% 14% 14%
Israel & Other 92 89 78 3 4% 11 14% 20% 21% 20%
Total $471 $431 $38E  $40 9% $46 12%

(1) Net Sales by region are based on country of de&tm
Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratljustments.

MFAs and Othe

Our MFAs and other business primarily consistsasfoentrated medicated products that are
administered through animal feeds, commonly reetoeas Medicated Feed Additives (“MFAs”). Our MFAs
and other business primarily consists of the prtidon@nd sale of antibacterials (including Stafacrerramycin
® Neo-Terramycif? and MecadSx ) and anticoccidimislgding Nicarb® , AviaX® , Aviax Plus™,
Coxistac™ and amprolium). Growth in this businessharily stems from increased penetration into agimey
markets. MFAs and other also includes antibacteriadlucts used to control bacterial infectionsyall as other
processing aids, for the ethanol fermentation itglus

Approximately 50% of our MFAs and other sales stél year 2015 were to the poultry industry, with
sales to swine, cattle, dairy and other customereumting for the remainder. The principal regiamsserve
include the U.S. and Canada, Brazil and Latin AngrChina and Asia Pacific, and Israel and othéh the
largest region (as measured by net sales) accouiatiness than half of total net sales.
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Nutritional Specialtie:

Many of our proprietary nutritional specialty pratds have been developed through basic research in
cooperation with private research companies oebgihg universities with whom we collaborate arehth
further develop through commercial trials with cuisers. Our nutritional specialty products includer@Gen-
AF ®  a unique, patented nutritional specialty pidhat has been shown in several studies to helptain a
cow’s healthy immune system, and Anim&tea unique, patented anionic nutritional specialtydpict that help
optimize the health and performance of the tramsitiairy cow. We sell OmniGen-AF in the U.S., Camad
Mexico, Brazil, several European countries, Turkesael, Japan and Australia. We have obtainedaegy
approval to sell OmniGen-AF in China, and we arthimprocess of launching the product. We sell Atérin
the U.S., Canada and Mexico. We sell MagniPhi unigue proprietary specialty product that has kswn
in several studies to help improve immune respampeultry, which may lead to better health and@®enance,
to poultry integrators in the U.S. Our nutritioisglecialties sales are primarily to the U.S. daiaykat, with
recent or planned entries into the dairy markewbpe, Brazil and other Latin American countriégstralia
and China.

Vaccines

Our vaccines products are primarily focused on @méng diseases in the poultry and swine industries
We market these products in the United States,& I8outh East Asia, India, Turkey, East and Cefnabpe,
Africa, Brazil and other Latin American countriggdadsrael.

In January 2015, we became the exclusive distritnftthe MJ Biologics, Inc. (“MJB”) autogenous
vaccine against porcine reproductive and respiyagndrome (“PRRS”) in swine in the U.S. and hageead
with MJB to collaborate on the development of dartgher animal vaccines. This represents our éingty into
the swine vaccine market. We are also the excludisteébutor of Epitopix’s autogenous vaccines aghi
salmonella and E.coli for chickens in the Unitedit&s, containing their proprietary SRP  technolpgynarily
for broiler breeders and table egg laying hens.@togenous vaccines allow us to produce custorines for
veterinarians that contain antigens specific tddaom, allowing Phibro to provide comprehensivaltie
management solutions to our customers.

We have developed TAbf¢ , an innovative and praanedelivery platform for vaccines. TAbic is a
patented technology for formulation and deliverywaécine antigens in effervescent tablets, packaygsdaled
aluminum blister packages. The technology repl#oeglass bottles that are in common use todayp#ads
significant advantages including storage requirgs)jamustomer handling and disposal.

Mineral Nutrition

Our Mineral Nutrition business manufactures andkei@rmore than 425 formulations and
concentrations of trace minerals such as zinc, araegg, copper, iron and other compounds, withwsfon
customers in North America. Our customers use thesducts to fortify the daily feed requirementdtudir
livestock’s diets and maintain an optimal balanteace elements in each animal. We manufacturenzenttet
mineral nutrition products for a broad range ofd@mimals including poultry, swine and beef andydeattle.
Volume growth in the mineral nutrition sector isnparily driven by livestock production numbers, Vehpricing
is largely based on costs of the underlying comtyadetals. Demand for our mineral nutrition progucan
vary in different seasons of the year and due teme changes in weather conditions in a partiaglgion, bott
of which may cause animal feed consumption to flatet. As a result, we may experience regional aadaal
fluctuations in our Mineral Nutrition segment.

Performance Products

Our Performance Products business manufacturemaricets a number of specialty ingredients for
use in the personal care, automotive, industriahdbal and chemical catalyst industries, predontlpam the
United States.

Our Products
Animal Health

MFAs and Othe

The MFA business primarily consists of the produti@nd sale of antibacterials (Stafac, Terramycin,
Nec-Terramycin and Mecadox) and anticoccidials (Ni¢#iax, Aviax Plus, Coxistac and amprolium).
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Antibacterials and Anticoccidia

We manufacture and market a broad range of anébalst and other medicated products to the global
livestock industry. These products provide theréipdaenefits for the animals and increased feed/ersion
efficiency, which are proven drivers of profitabilfor animal producers. The table below presentscore MF/£

products:
Market Entry of

Product Active Ingredient Active Ingredient Description

Terramycin® /TM-50° TM- oxytetracycline 1951 Antibacterial with multiple

100™ applications for a wide number of
species

Nicarb® nicarbazin 1954 Anticoccidial for poultry

amprolium amprolium 1960 Anticoccidial for poultry and
cattle

Bloat Guard® poloxalene 1967 Anti-bloat treatment for cattle

Banminth® pyrantel tartrate 1972 Anthelmintic for livestock

Mecadox® carbadox 1972 Antibacterial for swine to control
salmonellosis and dysentery

Stafac® /Eskalin™/V-Ma¥ virginiamycin 1975 Antibacterial used to prevent and
control diseases in poultry, swine
and cattle

Coxistac™/Posistac™ salinomycin 1979 Anticoccidial for poultry and
cattle; disease preventative in
swine

Rumatel® morantel tartrate 1981 Anthelmintic for livestock

Cerditac™/Cerdimix™ oxibendazole 1982 Anthelmintic for livestock

Aviax ® /Aviax II™ semduramicin 1995 Anticoccidial for poultry

Nec-Terramycin® /Neo-TM™ oxytetracycline + 1999 Combination of two antibacterie

neomycin with multiple applications for a

wide number of species

Aviax Plus™ semduramicin + 2010 Anticoccidial for poultry

nicarbazin

Antibacterials are biological or chemical produgted in the animal health industry to treat or to
prevent diseases, thereby promoting more effidieestock growth. Several factors contribute toitithe
efficiency, weight gain and feed conversions oésitock production, including stress, poor nutrition
environmental and management challenges and dis&atieacterials help prevent and treat diseadwéstock,
which leads to improved overall health of the ag@nd more efficient feed conversion. Our antieaat
products include:

»  Oxytetracycline and Neomycimerramycin utilizes the active ingredient oxyaercline and Neo-
Terramycin combines the active ingredients neomguaith oxytetracycline to prevent and treat a
wide range of diseases in chickens, turkeys, ¢catidene and aquaculture. We sell Terramycin
and/or Neo-Terramycin products primarily in the t8di States, Latin America, Mexico and Asia
to livestock and aquaculture producers, feed comepand distributors.

* Virginiamycin. Virginiamycin is an antibacterial marketed untter brand names Stafac to swi
cattle, chickens and turkeys producers, Eskalin®aioy cows and beef cattle producers and V-
Max ® for beef cattle producers. Virginiamycin is d$e prevent necrotic enteritis in chickens,
treat and control swine dysentery and aid in tkeeg@mntion of liver
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abscesses in cattle. Our experience in the developand production of virginiamycin has
enabled us to develop significant intellectual mypand know-how, which have helped protect
against generics. We are the sole worldwide matwfacand seller of virginiamycin.

» Carbadox. We market carbadox under the brand name Mecawtaxse in swine feeds to control
swine salmonellosis and swine dysentery and, asudtrimprove animal health and performance.
Mecadox is sold primarily in the United Statesded companies and large integrated swine
producers.

Anticoccidials are produced through fermentatiod elnemical synthesis, and are primarily used to
prevent and control the disease coccidiosis intppahd cattle, thereby promoting more efficiemeBtock
growth. Coccidiosis is a disease of the digestiaettthat has considerable health consequencesgstdck and,
as a result, is of great concern to livestock peeds. We sell our anticoccidials primarily to intaigd poultry
producers and feed companies in North AmericanlLatnerica and Asia, and to international animallthea
companies. Our anticoccidial products include:

* Nicarbazin. We produce and market nicarbazin under the tradeiicarb and as an active
pharmaceutical ingredient. Nicarbazin is a broaekspm anticoccidial used for coccidiosis
prevention in chickens.

*  Amprolium. We produce and market amprolium as an activenpaegutical ingredient. We also
have received U.S. Food and Drug AdministratiorDAF) approval to sell amprolium as
Boviprol™ 9.6% Oral Solution to cattle and calves.

» Salinomycin and SemduramiciiiVe produce and market Coxistac, Aviax/Aviax 11™i&x Plus
and Posistac™, which are in a class of compoundw/kras ionophores, to combat coccidiosis
and increase feed efficiency in poultry and swive. market our salinomycin and semduramicin
products in Asia, Latin America and the Middle Eaistl have received FDA approval to sell
Coxistac in the United States.

Anthelmintics are used to treat infestations obpiic intestinal worms. Our anthelmintic products
include RumateP and Banminfh which are both marketed to control major interrethatode parasites in by
and dairy cattle and swine.

Bloat Guard® is an anti-bloat treatment used ile#ttcontrol bloat in animals grazing on legume or
wheat-pasture.

Nutritional Specialtie:

Our primary nutritional specialty products havematentified, developed and commercialized by our
staff of nutritionists working with private reselhrcompanies, leading universities and customets witom we
collaborate. For those of our nutritional specialtgducts that are not proprietary or exclusivagpwe typically
maintain unique supply agreements or primary distar status with the product developers giving us
preferential access to trademarks, territoriesraadarch data. Our nutritional specialty producttuide:

Market
Product Entry Description
AB20® 1989 Natural flow agent that improves overall feed giyadind effectivenes
Chromax® 1992 Source of organic chromium used to optimize swirgglpction through
reproductive efficiency
Biosaf® 1997  Heat stable live-cell yeast that optimize produttdficiency
Procreatin 7 1997  Live-cell yeast product for ruminant nutrition
Animate® 1999  Maintains proper blood calcium levels in dairy cadusing critical transition
period
Safmannar? 2000  Yeast cell wall components that optimize productdficiency
OmniGen-AF® 2004  Optimizes immune status in dairy cows
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Market
Product Entry Description
Provia 6086™ 2013 Direct fed microbial for all classes of livestock
Magni-Phi® 2015 Proprietary blend that improves immune responsmt@nce absorption and

utilization of nutrients for poultry

AB20 ®is a natural flow agent that, when added to femgroves the overall feed quality. The proc
is one of the most thoroughly researched in thadftow agent segment.

Chromax® , chromium tripicolinate, is a source afaoic chromium used to optimize swine
production and is predominantly used in sows witdras been proven to improve reproductive efficieand
litter size. Chromax can result in a significarttira on investment for swine producers becaustsdw cost
relative to other production costs and the reprode@nd litter size improvements it promotes.

Procreatin 7 is a branded live-cell yeast prodpeti#ically selected for ruminant nutrition. Itas
single strain obaccharomyces cerevisi@NA-verified yeast.

Animate is a unique patented anionic mineral suppla that helps optimize the health and
performance of the transition dairy cow and impsopeofitability for dairy producers.

OmniGen-AF is a proprietary nutritional specialtpguct manufactured and marketed exclusively by
us that has been shown in various studies to helptain a cow’s healthy immune system and improwesdrt
natural response to potential environmental anttthehallenges.

Magni-Phi is a proprietary blend of saponins, triterpenoidd polyphenols that improves immu
response to enhance the absorption and utilizafionitrients for poultry.

Our other nutritional specialty products includewa 6086™, a direct fed microbial, and Safmannan
®and Biosaf® , yeast cell wall and protected live-gebst components, respectively, that optimizelpetion
efficiency. We offer yeast culture products forsgkcies of livestock.

Nutritional specialty products are marketed tosteek producers by working through key influencers,
such as animal nutritionists and veterinarians.

Vaccines

We develop, manufacture and market vaccines priyrfani poultry in China, South East Asia, India,
Turkey, East and Central Europe, East Africa, Sédtita, Brazil and other Latin American countrigsd
Israel. In addition, we distribute certain autogemwaccines for chickens and swine in the UnitedeSt We
produce vaccines that protect animals from bothal@nd bacterial disease challenges.

We have developed TAbic, a unique and proprietativery platform for vaccines. TAbic is a
patented platform technology for formulation antiviey of vaccine strains in effervescent tabldtsis
technology provides superior convenience to poytoducers by requiring less storage space, less &nd
increased dosing flexibility as compared to tradisil delivery technology using bottles. Severabaf vaccine
products are available in the patented TAbic format

The IB variant 1 and IB variant 2 vaccines arerimediate virulence live vaccine strains used fer th
prevention of infectious bronchitis in poultry. Botaccine strains have become significant toothén
increasing global fight against infectious bronishiih regions throughout the world. These vaccinairss
present us with an opportunity for growth.

The M.B. strain of Gumboro vaccine is an intermegliarulence live vaccine strain used for the
prevention of Infectious Bursal Disease in poulfrige intermediate strain was developed to providéegtion
against the new field epidemic virus, which is marelent than those previously encountered.

The V.H. strain of Newcastle disease vaccine iathggenic strain and is effective when applied by
aerosol, coarse spray, drinking water or eye-driofpes been used successfully under various mamagteand
climate conditions in many breeds of poultry.
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In the United States, we also distribute autogewaagsines for chickens produced using Epitopix’s
proprietary SRP vaccine technology. Several cliriballenge studies with Salmonella and E. colitbaa
(which are a focus of food safety) have been coraglasing SRP technology.

We also focus on innovation to produce new antigemsew presentations of antigens, and have
developed new vaccines, such as the recombinaneW®ZEDS vaccines, being sold as monovalent vagcine
in combinations with other antigens.

MJPRRS® , an autogenous vaccine for swine, is adteiid to pregnant sows to protect their
offspring from PRRS in the U.S. This vaccine indadnultiple PRRS isolates representing differeatigs of
PRRS viruses.

Mineral Nutrition

Our mineral nutrition products principally includepper, zinc, cobalt, iron, selenium, manganese,
magnesium, iodine and molybdenum.

Our major mineral nutrition customers are regiara national feed companies, distributors, co-ops,
premixers, integrated swine, beef and poultry dpmra and pet food companies. The majority of aigtemers
have nutrition staffs who determine their own fotasufor custom trace mineral premixes.

Trace minerals’ costs fluctuate with commodity nedsk and therefore, these products are price-
sensitive. Their sale requires a focused effortast management, quality control, customer seryigeing and
logistics execution to be profitable.

Performance Product:

Our Performance Products business manufacturesaricets products for use in the personal care,
automotive, industrial chemical and chemical catailydustries. We operate the business through our
PhibroChem (a division of PAHC), Ferro Metal ande@tical Corporation Limited and Phibro-Tech, Inc.
(“Phibro-Tech”) business units.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales organization includes sales, marketinigtechnical support employees. In markets wher
do not have a direct commercial presence, we giyeomtract with distributors that provide logistiand sales
and marketing support for our products. Together ,Animal Health and Mineral Nutrition businessevé a
sales, marketing and technical support organizati@pproximately 275 employees plus approximai&8§
distributors who market our portfolio of more thB800 product presentations to animal feed companie
distributors and livestock producers in over 65ntaas.

In direct sales markets, we sell our animal heatith mineral nutrition products through our locdésa
offices, either directly to integrated poultry, s&iand cattle integrators or through commerciahahfeed
manufacturers, wholesalers and distributors. Ol@ssapresentatives visit our customers, includinignal feed
companies, distributors and livestock producerifirm, promote and sell our products and servitedirect
service markets, our technical operations spetighi®vide scientific consulting focused on diseas@magemer
and herd management, training and education omsg#ivtepics, including responsible product use.

We sell our Performance Products through our Isakds offices to the personal care, automotive,
industrial chemical and chemical catalyst industri&e market these products predominately in thigedn
States.

Customers

We have approximately 2,900 customers, of whiclr@pmately 2,500 customers are served by our
Animal Health and Mineral Nutrition businesses. Wdasider a diverse set of livestock producersyitiolg
poultry and pork operations and beef and dairy &syto be the primary customers of our
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livestock products. We sell our products direatljivestock and aquaculture producers and to bistors that
typically re-sell the products to livestock prodigcéVe do not consider the business to be dependentsingle
customer or a few customers, and we believe tteedbany one customer would not have a materiatisgy
effect on our results.

We typically sell pursuant to purchase orders foustomers and generally do not enter into long-term
delivery contracts.

Product Registrations, Patents and Trademark:

We own certain product registrations, patents gnmaamnes and trademarks, and use know-how, trade
secrets, formulae and manufacturing techniquessiwéissist in maintaining the competitive positiohsertain
of our products. We believe that technology ismapartant component of our competitive position, &risl
intended to provide us with low cost positions dimgpus to produce high quality products. Patemtdget some
of our technology, but a significant portion of mampetitive advantage is based on know-how bpilbver
many years of commercial operation, which is prgig@s trade secrets. We own, or have exclusitsrig use
under license, more than 170 patents or pendinlicagipns in more than 40 countries but we belithat no
single patent is of material importance to our bess and, accordingly, that the expiration or teatidn thereof
would not materially affect our business.

We market our animal health products under hundoédsvernmental product registrations appro
many of our products with respect to animal drugtyaand efficacy. The use of many of our medicagEmtiuct:
is controlled by regulatory authorities that areafic to each country (e.g., the FDA in the Unittadtes, Health
Canada in Canada and EFSA/EMA in Europe). Becdweseregulate the safety and wholesomeness of the
human food supply, their responsibility includesdedditives for animals from which human food pictd are
derived. Each of our medicated products is regsteeparately in each country where it is sold. We
continuously monitor, maintain and update the appate registration files pertaining to such regjoles and
approvals. In certain countries where we work aitihird party distributor, local regulatory requirents may
require registration in the name of such distribués of June 30, 2015, we had over 750 Animal thetoduct
registrations globally, including 450 MFA registaats and 300 vaccine registrations. Our MFA global
registrations included more than 90 registrati@nss/irginiamycin.

Additionally, many of our vaccine products are lthsa proprietary master seeds, proprietary adjuvant
formulations or patented virus grouping technologe actively seek to protect our proprietary infation,
including our trade secrets and proprietary knowshiacluding by seeking to require our employees,
consultants, advisors and partners to enter imdidentiality agreements and other arrangements tipe
commencement of their employment or engagement.

We seek to file and maintain trademark registratiaround the world based on commercial activities
in most regions where we have, or desire to habeisaess presence for a particular product oicerWe
currently maintain, or have rights to use undegrige, more than 1,400 trademark registrations ralipg
applications globally, identifying goods and seedcelated to our business.

Our technology, brands and other intellectual prigp&re important elements of our business. We rely
on patent, trademark, copyright and trade secwnet,las well as non-disclosure agreements to protect
intellectual property rights. Our policy is to vigaisly protect, enforce and defend our rights toioiellectual
property, as appropriate.

Regulatory

Many of our animal health and mineral nutrition gwots require licensing by a governmental agency
before marketing. To maintain compliance with thesggulatory requirements, we have established peesg
systems and dedicated resources with end-to-emdiviement from product concept to launch and maarea
in the market. Our regulatory function seeks toagyegin dialogue with various global agencies reiggrtheir
policies that relate to animal health products. gproducts that are currently subject to formalrigiag by
government agencies, our business relies on theirggpproval and/or periodic re-approval of thiisenses.
Failure to maintain and, where applicable, renevsétlicenses for
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any reason including, but not limited to, changiegulations, more stringent technical, legal outatpry
requirements, or failure of the company or its agém make timely, complete or accurate submissiomsid
result in suspension or loss of the company’s sightmarket its products in one or more countries.

United State:

In the United States, governmental oversight ofmahinutrition and health products is conducted
primarily by the United States Department of Agliiare (“USDA”) and/or the FDA. The United States
Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) hasgdiction over certain products applied topicatiyanimals
or to premises to control external parasites aadeshregulatory jurisdiction of ethanol manufaadurebiofuel
manufacturing facilities with the FDA.

The USDA and the FDA are primarily responsibletfor safety and wholesomeness of the U.S. ht
food supply. The FDA regulates foods intended famkn consumption and, through the Center for \fedeyi
Medicine (“CVM"), regulates the manufacture and distribution of ahdnags that will be given to animals fr
which human foods are derived. All manufacturerarmifnal health pharmaceuticals must show their ywtsdto
be safe, effective and produced by a consisterttadetf manufacture as defined under the Federal,Houg,
and Cosmetic Act. To protect the food and drug Bufmw animals, the FDA develops technical standdot
animal drug safety and effectiveness and evalutgtzsnecessary to support approvals of veterinanysd Drug
sponsors are required to file reports of certagdpct quality defects and adverse events in acoosd@ith
agency requirements.

The main regulatory body in the United States fetevinary pesticides is the EPA. The EPA’s Office
of Pesticide Programs is responsible for the raguiaf pesticide products applied to animals. /dnufacturel
of animal health pesticides must show their pragludll not cause “unreasonable adverse effectsan ar the
environment” as stated in the Federal Insectididmgicide, and Rodenticide Act. Within the Unitedt8s,
pesticide products that are approved by the EPA alss be approved by individual state pesticidbarities
before distribution in that state. Post-approvahitaoing of products is required, with reports pded to the
EPA and some state regulatory agencies.

FDA approval of Type A/B/C Medicated Feed Articlasd drugs is based on satisfactory
demonstration of safety, efficacy, manufacturingligy standards and appropriate labelling. Efficacy
requirements are based on the desired label claiheacompass all species for which label indicaatesired.
Safety requirements include target animal safetly anthe case of food animals, human food saldBS). HFS
reviews encompass drug residue levels and theysaffétose residue levels. In addition to the saéetd
efficacy requirements for animal drugs used in fpoaducing animals, environmental safety must be
demonstrated. Depending on the compound, the emaieatal studies may be quite extensive and expenisiv
many instances, the regulatory hurdles for a dnagywill be used in food-producing animals aresast as
stringent as if not more so than those requirecfdrug used in humans.

The Office of New Animal Drug Evaluation is respite for reviewing information submitted by
drug sponsors who wish to obtain approval to mastufe and sell animal drugs. A new animal drugeisrded
unsafe unless there is an approved New Animal Bygication (“NADA”). Virtually all animal drugs &

“new animal drugs” within the meaning of the temrthe Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. An ayga
Abbreviated New Animal Drug Application (“ANADA”)s a generic equivalent of an NADA previously
approved by the FDA. Both are administered by thé FThe drug development process for human thertigseu
can be more involved than that for animal drugsweler, because human food safety and environmsaifaty
are issues for food-producing animals, the animad dippproval process for food-producing animalsciaity
takes longer than for non-food-producing animalshsas companion animals.

The FDA may deny an NADA or ANADA if applicable n@lgtory criteria are not satisfied, require
additional testing or information, or require pastrketing testing and surveillance to monitor thfety or
efficacy of a product. There can be no assurarad-DA approval of any NADA or ANADA will be graed
on a timely basis, or at all. Moreover, if requtgtapproval of a product is granted, such approvay entail
limitations on the indicated uses for which it nisymarketed. Finally, product approvals may beadvétvn if
compliance with regulatory standards is not mairgdior if problems

15




TABLE OF CONTENTS

occur following initial marketing. Among the conidits for NADA or ANADA approval is the requiremethiat
the prospective manufacturer’s quality control amghufacturing procedures conform to FDA'’s currenb®
Manufacturing Practice (“cGMP”) regulations. A méaxturing facility is periodically inspected by tR®A for
determination of compliance with cGMP after anialipre-approval inspection. Certain subsequent
manufacturing changes must be approved by the RibA o implementation. In complying with standasiz
forth in these regulations, manufacturers mustinaetto expend time, monies and effort in the afea
production and quality control to ensure compliaridee process of seeking FDA approvals can beycdstie
consuming, and subject to unanticipated and sigmifi delays. There can be no assurance that spcbvags
will be granted on a timely basis, or at all. Arglay in obtaining or any failure to obtain FDA oréign
government approvals, or the suspension or revarcafi such approvals, would adversely affect otitgto
introduce and market our products and to geneeatenue.

The issue of the potential for increased bactegisistance to certain antibiotics used in certaguf
producing animals is the subject of discussiona @mrldwide basis and, in certain instances, hd$de
government restrictions on the use of antibioticthese food-producing animals. The sale of arttitsds a
material portion of our business. Legislative bélte introduced in the U.S. Congress from timeénte twhich, if
adopted, could have an adverse effect on our esi@ne of these initiatives is a proposed bileckthe
Preservation of Antibiotics for Medical TreatmerdtAwhich has been introduced in every Congresedine
mid 2000’s. To date, such bills have not had sigfitsupport to become law. Should statutory, raguy or
other developments result in restrictions on the shour products, it could have a material adeénspact on
our financial position, results of operations aadtcflows.

In November 2004, the CVM released a draft for cambof its risk assessment of streptogramin
resistance for treatment of certain infectionsumhans attributable to the use of streptogramirmimals (the
“risk assessment”). The risk assessment was igitiafter approval of a human drug called Syné¥cid
(quinupristin/dalfopristin) for treating vancomyaiesistant Enterococcus faecium (VREf), which [ed t
increased attention regarding the use of streptoigsain animals. Synercid and virginiamycin arehbetembers
of the streptogramin class of antimicrobial drufse risk assessment was unable to produce any firm
conclusions as to whether, and, if so, how mudahuse of virginiamycin in food animals contributeghe
occurrence of streptogramin-resistant infectionsimans via a foodborne pathway.

The stated concern underlying the status of viegimicin as a “medically important
antimicrobial” (“MIA”) on the CVM'’s Guidance for Idustry (“GFI") 152 list, a guidance document for
evaluating the microbial safety of antimicrobialsnanimal drugs on food for human consumption, vaas t
potential impact on use of Synercid for treatingfih humans. In 2010, the U.S. label for Synewas
changed and the VREf indication was removed. ThA BBtermined that data submitted by the sponsor of
Synercid failed to verify clinical benefit of theqauct for the treatment of VRES infections in humealn
September 2011, we requested that FDA remove tptsgramin class of antimicrobials from GFI 152 to
reflect that they are not “medically important” fouman therapy. In March 2012, the FDA declinedreguest,
citing primarily the need to engage all stakehdder any possible changes to GFI 152 through theegses
mandated by the FDA'’s good guidance practicesydinl issuing guidance revisions in draft and givine
public an opportunity to comment. There can bessuence that the FDA will in the future agree with view
that removal of the VRETf indication for Synercidjuéires the FDA to remove virginiamycin from the GRER2
list.

In April 2012, the CVM released its GFI 209 (“Thadicious Use of Medically Important
Antimicrobial Drugs in Food-Producing Animals”). Becember 2013, the CVM released the final version
GFI 213 (“New Animal Drugs and New Animal Drug Coimdtion Products Administered in or on Medicated
Feed or Drinking Water of Food-Producing AnimalgcBmmendations for Drug Sponsors for Voluntarily
Aligning Product Use Conditions with GFI #209"),chthe proposed language relating to amending tireraiu
Veterinary Feed Directive (“VFD”) regulations. Theo Guidance documents and the proposed revised VFD
language are all relevant to the use of MIAs inféhedl or drinking water of food-producing animdlbe two
key principles of GFI 209 are that MIAs should mited to those uses that are considered necefsary
assuring animal health, namely for the preventomtrol, and/or treatment of disease and that M4 im food-
producing animals should include veterinary ovérgggnsultation. GFI 213 outlines CVM'’s proposal with
respect to removing production claims for MIAs as
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well as the path a sponsor may take for new claithese Guidance documents are not legally bindiagthey
do reflect the FDA's current thinking. These GFteyide an opportunity for sponsors to seek to anmoduct
claims to more accurately reflect the health functf antimicrobial products; however, there cambe
assurance that if a sponsor presents a specifiopabto pursue such changes the FDA will agrele tht
proposal or, even if the FDA does agree, that #eewation of the work and the subsequent submigsidine
FDA will successfully achieve the desired label adraents.

In June 2015, the CVM issued final revisions toakisting VFD regulations, which include changes
to the control and use of antimicrobial productsuse in animal feed. Prior to implementation & thvised
VFD regulations, many approved antimicrobial pradwould be obtained and used without formal veteyi
authorization. Under the new VFD regulations, aBfdcantimicrobial products may only be used if atitted by
a veterinarian in accordance with the VFD regutatiol he current use of our antimicrobial produsttie U.S.
typically, but not always, involves veterinary osight. However, the final VFD regulations may impos
additional costs on some producers, which may disge them from using our antimicrobial productse FDA
expects the process for label changes relatingetméw GFI 213 to be completed by late 2016.

In the United States, the antibacterial producthiwiour poultry business, the largest portion @f o
MFAs and other business in this region, as wetlhiascattle business, have both approved therapanticion-
therapeutic indications. We believe, based on atipeoducer usage patterns, that the large majofitse of
our products in these segments is for therapeutiggses. We currently generate a portion of ovemaes from
antibacterial products sold for use in turkeys swihe in the United States where we do not curydralve
therapeutic claims that match our customers’ ugagferns. We intend to ensure that our antiba¢teraauct
offerings are in full alignment with the FDA'’s gaidce documents within the FDA's three-year impletagon
period, and will pursue both new and additionatapeutic claims for these products under the psopesvided
by the FDA. However, there can be no assurancenthatill be successful in obtaining such claims.i/H is
difficult to predict exactly what impact the reméwed non-therapeutic claims for our products that medically
important antibacterials will ultimately have ornr@ales, we estimate that, had we voluntarily degtid
withdraw all of our non-therapeutic claims in theitéd States, and did not add any new therapelaims, for
our fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, our MFAs dhdranet sales would have been reduced by apprtedyna
$10 to $15 million.

Our carbadox product has been approved for useoith dnimals for over 40 years. In 1998, following
a submission by the drug sponsor, the FDA conduateelvaluation of carbadox and found that it wés based
on the U.S. “sensitivity of the method” policy. Amdingly, the FDA continues to permit the approuse of
carbadox. In June 2011, the FDA issued a lettesteequiring us to submit information relevanttie safety
evaluation of carbadox. We have participated inmlper of meetings with the CVM to discuss the apgdo
conditions of use of carbadox in the United Stares$ address the CVM'’s concerns that certain residwey
persist in tissues for longer than previously deteed. These discussions are ongoing, and we haeated
our willingness to work with the FDA and have urtdken further scientific studies to support theesafe of
carbadox. There can be no assurance that the FDAaviseek some other course of action that coegdilt in
restriction of sales, or even a total ban on thee aEcarbadox in the United States or that theltesf any
additional work we undertake, or have undertaketh swccessfully support the continued market apptof
carbadox.

In October 2012, the FDA conducted a cGMP auditasious quality documents and records at our
Teaneck, NJ headquarters. At the conclusion o&titit, the FDA issued inspectional observationsrF483)
relating to various analytical test results anctjicas, expiration dating and reporting requireraeagarding
specification non-conformance for Stafac 20, onewfproduct formulations of virginiamycin. The pealures
used to generate information and data in our recate consistent with our documented Standardaipgr
Procedures. We responded to the inspectional odemne in writing in December 2012. In May 2013 #DA
sent us a letter indicating they were seeking &rrtxplanation and corrective actions regardingdbees raised
in the inspectional observations. We provided rasps in July and August 2013 outlining changes and
providing additional information to address the FEpuests. In December 2013, the FDA replied to our
response, noting some changes and proposed refitetoehe revised testing procedures for our pedu
indicating that it would be beneficial for us tagaige a third party consultant with cGMP experiis®
indicating that our updated procedures, among iadait
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cGMP requirements, would be reviewed at the FDA&'stiinspection. In February 2015, the FDA condueted
inspection at our Teaneck, NJ headquarters toyvtn information provided in our 2013 responseg.ofim 48:
was issued, which contained one inspectional obsiervciting two examples of the observed violatibhe
observation questioned whether or not we are abdenfirm that the drug components (of Type A mat#id
products) remain uniformly dispersed and stablesunddinary conditions of shipment, storage and W
responded to the inspectional observation in wgitmMarch 2015. This inspectional observation mats
impacted our ability to market products in the gdiStates or any other country, and we expectahm B83
observation will be satisfactorily addressed. Whikebelieve we have taken appropriate actions doess our
cGMP program, and are working to implement the Fb#&'maining recommendations promptly, there cama
assurance that the FDA will concur. Failure to chymyth cGMP standards could have a financially enia
impact on our business.

European Unior

European Union (“E.U.")egislation requires that veterinary medicinal prcid must have a marketi
authorization before they are placed on the markite European Union. A veterinary medicinal pretduust
meet certain quality, safety, efficacy and envirental criteria to receive a marketing authorizatibine
European Medicines Agency (and its main veterirsaigntific committee, the Committee for Medicinal
Products for Veterinary Use) and the national aitiies in the various E.U. Member States, are resjide for
administering this regime.

A separate E.U. regime applies to feed addititgzavides for a re-registration process for eripti
additives and this process is still ongoing. Fataie types of additives, the authorizations aregameric in
nature (so that they can be relied upon by anyatpgrbut are limited to the company that obtaithex
marketing authorization. They are known as Branec8ig Approvals (“BSAs”). The system is similar thoe
U.S. system, where regulatory approval is for threnfulated product or “brand.”

The European Food Safety Authority (EFSA) is resjiae for the E.U. risk assessment regarding
and feed safety. In close collaboration with nalauthorities and in open consultation with itkeholders,
EFSA provides independent scientific advice androomication on existing and emerging risks. EFSA may
issue advice regarding the process of adoptingwsing European legislation on food or feed saféégiding
whether to approve regulated substances such tisigees and food additives, or, developing new ratguy
frameworks and policies for instance in the fielchotrition. EFSA aims to provide appropriate, detent,
accurate and timely communications on food saftyes to all stakeholders and the public at ldrgsed on th
Authority’s risk assessments and scientific expertDne of the key areas of concern for the EFSlAeis
containment of antimicrobial resistance.

A number of manufacturers, including us, submittedsiers in order to re-register various
anticoccidials for the purpose of obtaining regutatapproval from the European Commission. The B&Zour
nicarbazin product was published in October 2018.34ll nicarbazin under our own BSA and as an activ
ingredient for another marketsrproduct that has obtained a BSA and is soldérEtlropean Union. Similarly,
BSA for our semduramicin product, Aviax, was puidid in 2006 and will require reauthorization in
October 2016. We intend to submit a dossier fonttearization in accordance with the requirementthef
EFSA. There can be no guarantee that the submigsildme reviewed favorably or in a timely mannEailure
to gain reauthorization in a timely manner coulgiehan adverse financial impact on our business.

Brazil

The Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock Productiomé Supply (“MAPA”") is the regulatory body in
Brazil that is responsible for the regulation andteol of pharmaceuticals, biologicals and mediciead
additives for animal use. MAPA's regulatory actiedt are conducted through the Secretary of Agricalt
Defense and its Livestock Products Inspection Diepant. These activities include the inspection lisahsing
of both manufacturing and commercial establishmimtseterinary products, as well as the submisgieview
and approval of pharmaceuticals, biologicals andioeal feed additives.
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Rest of worlc

We are also subject to regulatory requirements gnivg investigation, clinical trials and marketing
approval for animal drugs in many other countries/hich our products are sold. The regulatory aygro
process includes similar risks to those associatddFDA and European Commission approvals sehfabtove

Global policy and guidanc

Country-specific regulatory laws have provisionattimclude requirements for certain labeling, safet
efficacy and manufacturers’ quality proceduresa@sure the consistency of the products), as welbapany
records and reports. With the exception of Australlanada, Japan and New Zealand, most other @sintr
regulatory agencies will generally refer to the FRASDA, European Union and other international atim
health entities, including the World Organizatien Animal Health, Codex Alimentarius Commissiorg th
recognized international standard-setting bodydod (“Codex”), before establishing their own stards and
regulations for veterinary pharmaceuticals and wexsc

The Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Addisive an international expert scientific
committee that is administered jointly by the Feoall Agriculture Organization of the United Nati@rsl the
World Health Organization. It provides risk assessta and safety evaluations of residues of vetsridiaugs in
animal products as well as exposure and residueitiei and maximum residue limit proposals forer@tary
drugs in traded food commodities. These internatlgrpublished references may also be used by meitio
authorities when setting domestic standards. Wéwiith the national authorities to establish acabfa safe
levels of residual product in food-producing anisnafter treatment. This in turn enables the calmraf
appropriate withdrawal times for our products ptmean animal entering the food chain.

In July 2014, the Codex adopted risk managemeritadanguage for a number of compounds
including carbadox. The advice language staaeshbrities should prevent residues of carbaddgad. This ca
be accomplished by not using carbadox in food pecoduanimals.” The advice language is to provideica
only and is not binding on individual national amtities, and almost all national authorities alsehdve long-
established regulatory standards for carbadoxydiiey prohibiting the use of carbadox in swine pictebn
within their territory, prohibiting the importatioof pork from swine that are fed carbadox, or p&ing the
importation of pork from swine that are fed carbagoovided there is no detection of carbadox ressdn the
meat. The advice language may be considered bynatuthorities in making future risk management
determinations. To the extent additional nationaharities elect to follow the advice and prohibi¢ use of
carbadox in food-producing animals and/or the irtgg@m of pork from swine that are fed carbadoxhsu
decisions could have an adverse effect on our sélesrbadox in those countries or in countrie$ paduce
meat for export to those countries.

Advertising and promotion revie

Promotion of animal health products is controllgdégulations in many countries. These rules
generally restrict advertising and promotion tostapproved claims and uses that have been revisweed
endorsed by the applicable agency. We conductiawesf promotion material for compliance with tleel anc
regional requirements in the markets where weasafhal health products.

Food Safety Inspection Service/Generally Recogmizefafe

The FDA is authorized to determine the safety dssances (including “generally recognized as
safe” (“GRAS")substances, and food and feed additives), as weltescribing safe conditions of use. The F
which has the responsibility for determining théesaof substances, together with the Food Safetly a
Inspection Service, the food safety branch withn W SDA, maintain the authority in the United State
determine that new substances and new uses obpedyiapproved substances are suitable for useat, milk
and poultry products.

In 2008, the FDA announced that the agency reqdmedal review of all additives used in the
production of ethanol, including our Lactfl protiformulated virginiamycin), where the @ueducts may b
used for animal feed. Virginiamycin has been dediby an independent expert panel convened by
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us as GRAS for use as a processing aid in ethaaduption and as related to the use of the reguttistiller’s
co-products for animal feed. We believe that thleedmination satisfies the FDA requirement. Howetlegre
can be no assurance we will be successful in maintamarket access for our Lactrol product or otthanol
production additives that we sell.

Competition

We are engaged in highly competitive industries, arith respect to all of our major products, face
competition from a substantial number of global eeglonal competitors. Some competitors have greate
financial, R&D, production and other resources tharnhave. Our competitive position is based priaitypon
our product registrations, customer service angartipbreadth of product line, product quality, méatturing
technology, facility location, and product pric¥ge face competition in every market in which wetiggrate.
Some of our principal competitors include Bayer AZ&ya Santé Animale, Boehringer Ingelheim Inteowetl
GMBH, Eli Lilly and Company (Elanco Animal Healtthiuvepharma Inc., Lallemand Inc., Merck & Co., Inc.
(Merck Animal Health and MSD Animal Health), Phamig LLC, Sanofi S.A. (Merial), Southeastern Minsyal
Inc., Virbac and Zoetis Inc. Many of our producsd competition from products that may be usedas a
alternative or substitute.

There continues to be consolidation in the aningalth market, which could strengthen our
competitors. Our competitors can be expected ttirnemto improve the design and performance ofthei
products and to introduce new products with contipetprice and performance characteristics. Tharele no
assurance that we will have sufficient resourcesdmtain our current competitive position, howewee
believe the following strengths create sustainablapetitive advantages that will enable us to camtiour
growth as a leader in our industry:

Products Aligned with Need for Increased ProteindRrction

Increased scarcity of natural resources is incngaie need for efficient production of food anisal
such as poultry, swine and cattle. Our key anirealth products, including our MFAs, vaccines anttitional
specialty products, help prevent and manage dismeabecaks and enhance nutrition to help suppadurak
defenses against diseases. These products areoftesl to our customers’ efficient productiontodalthy
animals. Our leading product franchise, Stafac/\ikMakalin, is approved in over 30 countries for imse
poultry, swine and cattle and is regarded as onieeofeading MFA products for production animalisnitarly,
our nutritional product offerings like OmniGen-ARdAnimate are used increasingly in the globalydair
industry.

Global Presence with Existing Infrastructure in Kidigh-Growth Markets

We have an established direct presence in manyrtenicemerging markets, and we believe we are a
leader in many of the emerging markets in whichoperate. Our existing operations, and establishkd s
marketing and distribution network in over 65 coig#, provide us with opportunities to take advgataf
global growth opportunities. Outside of the Unittdtes, our global footprint reaches to key higiwgh region:
(countries where the livestock production growtte ia expected to be higher than the average grraigh
including Brazil and other countries in South AmariChina, India and Southeast Asia, Russia amdgio€IS
countries, Mexico, Turkey, Australia, Canada andtB@frica and other countries in Africa. Our opé@as in
countries outside of the United States contribaggoroximately 54% of our Animal Health segment rexes fo
the year ended June 30, 2015.

Leading Positions in High Growth S-sectors of the Animal Health Mark

We are a global leader in the development, manufaend commercialization of MFA products for
the animal health market. Our sales of MFA produgtge third largest in the animal health marketcéxding tc
Vetnosis, MFA products are projected to grow ab@pgound annual rate of approximately 5.9% betwédm 2
and 2019. We believe we are well positioned inféstest growing food animal species segments cétiraal
health market with significant presence in pouétng swine, which are projected by Vetnosis to ggtabally at
compound annual rates from 2014 through 2019 é6%fd 5.0%, respectively.
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Diversified and Complementary Product Portfoliom@trong Brand Name Recogniti

We market products across the three largest lickstpecies (poultry, cattle and swine) and
aquaculture and in the major product categoriesAd/~accines and nutritional specialty productsg bélieve
our diversity of species and product categoriesmpobds our sales mix and lowers our sales conciemtnigk.
The complementary nature of our Animal Health ariddvll Nutrition portfolio provides us with uniqeeoss-
selling opportunities that can be used to gain st new customers or deepen our relationshifseaisting
customers. We believe we have strong brand nanogméion for the Phibro name and for many of ouneat
health and mineral nutrition products, and we keliehibro vaccines are recognized as an industndatd in
efficacy against highly virulent disease challeng2sr diverse portfolio of products also allowstasddress th
distinct growing conditions of livestock in differeregions.

Experienced Sales Force and Technical Support $tdffStrong, Consultative Customer Relationsl|

Within our Animal Health and Mineral Nutrition segnts, utilizing both our sales, marketing and
technical support organization of approximately 2@fployees and a broad distribution network, weketawur
portfolio of more than 1,300 product presentatitmbvestock producers and veterinarians in ovec@antries.
We interact with customers at both their corpoeate operating level, which we believe allows udd¢gelop an
in-depth understanding of their needs. Our techsigaport and research personnel are also important
contributors to our overall sales effort. We hauetal of approximately 130 technical, field see/@nd quality
control/quality assurance personnel throughoutibed. These professionals interface directly vath key
customers to provide practical solutions to dedgémum benefits from our products.

Experienced, Committed Employees and Management

We have a diverse and highly skilled team of aninegllth professionals, including technical anddfiel
service personnel located in key countries througtite world. These individuals have extensivedfiel
experience and are vital to helping us maintaingnogv our business. Many of our field team haveertban 20
years of experience in the animal health industiy many have been with us for more than 10 years.

We have a strong management team with a provek itegord of success at both the corporate and
operating levels. The executive management teardifiasse backgrounds and an average of approxiynatel
years of experience in the animal health industry.

Employees

As of June 30, 2015, we had more than 1,200 emetoyEemployees at our Guarulhos, Brazil facility
are covered by a multi-employer regional indusipgcific union. Certain of our Israeli employees eovered b
site-specific collective bargaining agreementst&ieremployees are covered by individual employment
agreements. We believe our relations with unionrantunion employees are good.

Manufacturing

The Animal Health business segment manufacturey meanducts internally and supplements that
production with contract manufacturing organizasi¢fCMOs”) as necessary.

We manufacture active pharmaceutical ingredientsédotain of our antibacterial and anticoccidial
related products at our facilities in Guarulhosa®lIr(virginiamycin and semduramicin) and BragaPReailista,
Brazil (nicarbazin). We manufacture active pharmiéical ingredients (nicarbazin and amprolium) at fagility
in Naot Hovav (formerly Ramat Hovav), Israel. Weghuce vaccines at our facility in Beit ShemeshgdbrWe
produce pharmaceuticals, disinfectants and othieradmealth products at our facility in Petach Takisrael.
We produce certain of our major nutritional spagiahd mineral nutrition products at our facilitiesQuincy,
lllinois, and we produce certain of our mineralritidn products at our facility in Omaha, Nebraska.
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We supplement internal manufacturing and produatapabilities with CMOs. We purchase certain
active pharmaceutical ingredients for other meétq@troducts from CMOs in China, India and otheatmns.
We then formulate the final dosage form in ourlfaes and in contract facilities located in theitéd States,
Brazil, Canada, Mexico, Australia, China and Israel

We purchase certain raw materials necessary fardtremercial production of our products from a
variety of third-party suppliers. Such raw materiate generally available from multiple sources,mrchased
worldwide and are normally available in quanti@@®quate to meet the needs of the Company’s bssines

We believe that our existing sites, as supplemeloyedMOs, are adequate for our current
requirements and for our operations in the forddedature.

Research and Developmer

Most of our manufacturing facilities have chemastsl technicians on staff involved in product
development, quality assurance, quality control pmaiding technical services to customers. Resgarc
development and technical service efforts are cotedby our veterinarians (DVMs) and nutritioniatsarious
facilities.

We operate Animal Health R&D at our facilities {i): Guarulhos, Brazil; (ii) Beit Shemesh, Israéi)
Naot Hovav (formerly Ramat Hovav), Israel; (iv) @ay, lllinois; (v) Corvallis, Oregon; (vi) ManhattaKansas
(vii) St. Paul, Minnesota; and (viii) Mayan Tzvsrael.

These facilities provide R&D services relating fermentation development and micro-biological
strain improvement; vaccine development; chemigalresis and formulation development; nutritiorm@dalty
product development; and ethanol-related products.

Our R&D expenses were $9.5 million, $8.2 milliorde$6.6 million for fiscal years 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Environmental, Health and Safety

Our operations and properties are subject to Enmental Laws (as defined below) and regulations.
We have incurred, and will continue to incur, exgeEsnto attain and maintain compliance with Envirental
Laws. While we believe that our operations areentty in material compliance with Environmental Lswe
have, from time to time, received notices of vimatfrom governmental authorities, and have begolued in
civil or criminal action for such violations, inding for odor releases in Guarulhos, Brazil. Additlly, at
various sites, our subsidiaries are engaged iriregng investigation, remediation and/or monitortogaddress
contamination associated with historical operatidfie maintain accruals for costs and liabilitiescasated witt
Environmental Laws, which we currently believe adequate. In many instances, it is difficult todicethe
ultimate costs under Environmental Laws and the fi@riod during which such costs are likely tormiired.

Governmental authorities have the power to enfoarepliance with their regulations. Violators of
Environmental Laws may be subject to civil, criminad administrative penalties, injunctions or bdéthilure tc
comply with Environmental Laws may result in thenfrary or permanent suspension of operations and/o
permits, limitations on production, or increase@mping costs. In addition, private plaintiffs maitiate
lawsuits for personal injury, property damage, diation in property value or other relief as a resfibur
operations. Environmental Laws, and the interpi@tatr enforcement thereof, are subject to chamglenaay
become more stringent in the future, potentialsuténg in substantial future costs or capital pei@ting
expenses. We devote considerable resources to gimgplith Environmental Laws and managing
environmental liabilities. We have developed proggdo identify requirements under and maintain danpe
with Environmental Laws; however, we cannot prediith certainty the impact of increased and mor@gént
regulation on our operations, future capital exjitemne requirements, or the cost of compliance. Bag#n our
experience to date, we believe that the future absbmpliance with existing Environmental Lawsdan
liabilities for known environmental claims pursudémisuch Environmental Laws, will not have a maieri
adverse effect on our financial position, resufteferations, cash flows or liquidity.
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Environmental Health and Safety Regulatior
The following summarizes the principal Environméhiawvs affecting our business.

Waste Managemer@ur operations are subject to statutes and regaktiddressing the contamina
by, and management of, hazardous substances atésdlhazardous wastes. In the U.S., the Compséahen
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liatityof 1980, as amended (“CERCLA"), also known faes t
“Superfund” law, and comparable state laws, geheialpose strict joint and several liability for sts of
investigation and remediation and related lialeiifion defined classes of “potentially responsible
parties” (“PRPs”). PRPs can be required to beasfalich costs regardless of fault, the legalityheforiginal
disposal or ownership of the disposal site. We Hmen, and may become, subject to liability undeRCLA
for cleanup costs or investigation or clean upgailons or related third-party claims in connectidgth releases
of hazardous substances at or from our currerdgrandr sites or offsite waste disposal facilitieediby us,
including those caused by predecessors or reladidiyested properties or operations.

We must also comply with the Resource Conservati@hRecovery Act of 1976, as amended
(“RCRA"), and comparable state laws regulatingtteatment, storage, disposal, remediation and firatetion
of solid and hazardous wastes. These laws imposageaent requirements on generators and transpofter
such wastes and on the owners and operators tihgag storage and disposal facilities. As curmerttistoric
recyclers of chemical waste, certain of our sulsids have been, and are likely to be, the focuexthsive
compliance reviews by environmental regulatory arities under RCRA. Our subsidiary Phibro-Tech ently
has a RCRA operating permit for its Santa Fe Spri@glifornia facility, for which a renewal applizn is
under review. Phibro-Tech initially submitted arplgation for renewal of its permit for the Santa $prings
facility in 1996. The State of California is expegtto issue a draft permit in 2016 for public rewind
comment. In addition, because we or our subsididréve closed several facilities that had beesubgct of
RCRA permits, we or our subsidiaries have beenvélidbe required to investigate and remediate ¢erta
environmental contamination conditions at theseddwin plant sites within the requirements of RCRA
corrective action programs.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amend@ée must comply with regulations related to the
discharge of pollutants to the waters of the Unéates without governmental authorization, inaigdihose
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control. Act

Chemical Product Registration Requiremeit®& must comply with regulations related to theibest
manufacturing, labeling, registration and safetslgsis of our products in order to distribute mafiypur
products, including, for example, in the U.S., tbderal Toxic Substances Control Act and Feders#dticide,
Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, and in the Europédaion, the Regulation on Registration, Evaluation,
Authorization and Restriction of Chemical Substan¢REACH”).

Air EmissionsQur operations are subject to the U.S. Clean Alr(&e= “CAA”) and comparable U.S.
state and foreign statutes and regulations, wlighlate emissions of various air pollutants andamomants.
Certain of the CAA’s regulatory programs are thigject of ongoing review and/or are subject to ongoi
litigation, such as the rules establishing new Maxin Achievable Control Technology for industriallbs;
significant expenditures may be required to meatect and emerging air quality standards. Reguweagencies
can also impose administrative, civil and crimipahalties for non-compliance with air permits dvestair
quality regulations. States may choose to set rsivirggent air emissions rules than those in the C3tate,
national and international authorities have alsaésl requirements focusing on greenhouse gas ieasicin the
U.S., the EPA has promulgated federal greenhouseegalations under the CAA affecting certain seardn
addition, a number of state, local and regionaégh®use gas initiatives are also being developedeoalready
in place. In Israel and Brazil, implementation loé Kyoto Protocol requirements regarding greenhgase
emission reductions consists of energy efficiemgutations, carbon dioxide emissions allowancedirtgpand
renewable energy requirements.

Capital Expenditures

We have incurred and expect to continue to incstscto maintain compliance with environmental,
health and safety laws and regulations. Our capikpénditures relating to environmental, health safdty
regulations were $4.5 million for fiscal year 20¥%e estimate that our capital
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expenditures for compliance will be $3.1 milliorda$3.6 million in fiscal years 2016 and 2017, resipely;
however, these estimates are subject to changa thieeuncertainty of future Environmental Laws #mel
interpretation and enforcement thereof, as furtlescribed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our
environmental capital expenditure plans cover, agrather things, the currently expected costs aatatiwith
known permit requirements relating to facility irogements.

Contamination and Hazardous Substance Ris

Investigation, Remediation and Monitoring ActiwstieCertain of PAHC'’s subsidiaries that are
currently or were historically engaged in recyclany other activities involving hazardous materfelse been
required to perform site investigations at thetivas; closed and former facilities and neighbonimgperties.
Contamination of soil, groundwater and other enwvinental media has been identified or is suspedtsevaral
of these locations, including Santa Fe Springsif@ala; Powder Springs, Georgia; Union, lllino&ewaren,
New Jersey; Sumter, South Carolina; and Joliénoi, and regulatory authorities have requiredi il
continue to require, further investigation, correziaction and monitoring over future years. Thadesidiaries
also have been, and in the future may be, reqtireddertake additional capital improvements as gfathese
actions. In addition, RCRA and other applicabléwuts and regulations require these subsidiaridsvelop
closure and post-closure plans for their facili@sl in the event of a facility closure, obtainearpit that sets
forth a closure plan for investigation, remediatzord monitoring and requires post-closure monitpend
maintenance for up to 30 years. We believe weramgaterial compliance with these requirements aathtain
adequate reserves to complete remediation and onimgitobligations at these locations.

In connection with past acquisitions and dives@igiwve have undertaken certain indemnification
obligations that require us, or may in the futwequire us, to conduct or finance environmentalralpa at sites
we no longer own or operate. Under the terms os#ie of the former facility in Joliet, lllinois hibro-Tech
remains responsible for any required investigasiod remediation of the site attributable to coondsiat the site
at the time of the February 2011 sale date andekNeuve we have sufficient reserves to cover th¢ abthe
remediation.

PRP at Omega Chemical Superfund Siitee EPA is investigating and planning for the reiataon of
offsite contaminated groundwater that has migréiea the Omega Chemical Corporation Superfund Site
(“Omega Chemical Site”), which is upgradient of ltbi Tech’s Santa Fe Springs, California facilitheTEPA
has named Phibro-Tech and certain other subsidiafieAHC as PRPs due to groundwater contaminétion
Phibro-Tech’s Santa Fe Springs facility that hésgaldly commingled with contaminated groundwatenfithe
Omega Chemical Site. In September 2012, the EP#igtbapproximately 140 PRPs, including Philireeh ant
the other subsidiaries, that they have been idedtis potentially responsible for remedial acfamthe
groundwater plume affected by the Omega Chemidale®id for EPA oversight and response costs. Pfibat
contends that groundwater contamination at itsisitiie to historical operations that pre-date fehibech
and/or contaminated groundwater that has migratted tipgradient properties. In addition, a successarprior
owner of the Phibro-Tech site has asserted that®Ahtl Phibro-Tech are obligated to provide indeiwauiion
for its potential liability and defense costs relgtto the groundwater plume affected by the Ont@gamical
Site. Phibro-Tech has vigorously contested thistippsand has asserted that the successor to ithiequvner is
required to indemnify Phibro-Tech for its potentiability and defense costs. Furthermore, a nearoperty
owner has filed a complaint in the Superior Cotithe State of California against many of the PRIRgyjedly
associated with the groundwater plume affectechbymega Chemical Site (including Philireeh) for alleget
contamination of groundwater underneath its prgpard a group of companies that sent chemicatseto
Omega Chemical Site for processing and recyclirggfied a complaint under CERCLA, RCRA and the
common law public nuisance doctrine in the Unitéatés District Court for the Central District of l@@rnia
against many of the PRPs allegedly associatedthétlyroundwater plume affected by the Omega Chéi8ita
(including Phibro-Tech) for contribution toward pasd future costs associated with the investigadiod
remediation of the groundwater plume affected ley@mega Chemical Site. Due to the ongoing natutieeof
EPA’s investigation and Phibro-Tech’s dispute with prior owner’s successor, at this time we capnedict
with any degree of certainty what, if any, liakyilRhibro-Tech or the other subsidiaries may ultehyahave for
investigation, remediation and the EPA oversigltt @sponse costs associated with the affected dvoater
plume.
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Potential ClaimsIn addition to cleanup obligations, we could alschield liable for any and all
consequences arising out of human exposure todmzasubstances or other environmental damagehwhic
liability may not be covered by insurance.

Environmental Accruals and Financial Assuranéée have established environmental accruals to
cover known remediation and monitoring costs atageof our current and former facilities. Our aas for
environmental liabilities are recorded by calcuilgtour best estimate of probable and reasonahipasie
future costs using current information that is ke at the time of the accrual. Our accrualsforironmental
liabilities totaled $6.8 million and $7.3 milliors@f June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In certain instances, regulatory authorities haepiired us to provide financial assurance for ezxttiol
costs of remediation, corrective action, monitoramgl closure and post-closure plans. Our subsididmave, in
most instances, chosen to provide the requireddimhassurance by means of letters of credit puesuant to
our revolving credit facility. As of June 30, 201bBe total outstanding balance of letters of crpditviding such
financial assurance was $9.9 million.

Workplace Health and Safet

We are committed to manufacturing safe productsaaiieving a safe workplace. Our Environmental
Health and Safety (“‘EHS”) Global Director, alonglwregional and site-based EHS professionals, neanag
environmental, health and safety matters througtitmiCompany. The site managers are responsible for
implementing the established EHS controls. To mtatenployees, we have established health and safety
policies, programs and processes at all our matwfag sites. An external EHS audit is performeéath of
our sites as needed based on the conditions etsbective sites.

Where You Can Find More informatior

We are subject to the information and periodic emdlent reporting requirements of the Exchange Act
and, in accordance therewith, will file periodiaddazurrent reports, proxy statements and other mdédion with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SESUch periodic and current reports, proxy statemamdsothe
information will be available to the public on tB&C’s website at www.sec.gawnd through our website at
www.pahc.com You may also read or copy such periodic or cunreports, proxy statements and other
information the Company files with the SEC at tl#&CS Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC atQtSHOC-0330 for further information.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider all of the informatiset forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
including the following risk factors, before decidito invest in our Class A common stock. If anyhaf
following risks actually occurs, our business, fio&l condition, results of operation or cash flawesild be
materially adversely affected. In any such casetrdding price of our Class A common stock coddlide, anc
you could lose all or part of your investment. TFis&s below are not the only ones the Company faces
Additional risks not currently known to the Compamthat the Company presently deems immaterial atsy
impair its business operations. This Annual ReparForm 10-K also contains forward-looking statetad¢hat
involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s ltesiould materially differ from those anticipatedthese
forward-looking statements as a result of certagidrs, including the risks it faces described Wwedad
elsewhere. See also “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Risk Factors Relating to Our Busines:

Restrictions on the use of antibacterials in fe-producing animals may become more prevale

The issue of the potential transfer of antibactegsistance from bacteria from fogdeducing animal
to human bacterial pathogens, and the causalityrapdct of that transfer, are the subject of gladuééntific anc
regulatory discussion. Antibacterials refer to neales that can be used to treat or prevent bakheféations
and are a sub-categorization of the products tladenip our medicated feed additives portfoliosdme
countries, this issue has led to government réisinis on the use of specific
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antibacterials in some food-producing animals, réigas of the route of administration (in feed, avat
intramammary, topical, injectable or other route@dfministration). These restrictions are more gexntan
countries where animal protein is plentiful and gmments are willing to take action even when tlere
scientific uncertainty. In December 2013, the FD¥haunced a plan to phase out over a three-yeardothré
production (non-therapeutic) uses of medically ingat antibacterials administered in animal feedater to
food producing animals. Medically important antiteai@als include classes that are prescribed in alnémd
human health and are listed in the Appendix ofRBA-CVM Guidance for Industry (GFI) #152. The FDAap
objectives are described in GFI #209 and GFI #2iBmovide for the continued use of medically intpot
antibacterials in food-producing animals for treety control and prevention of disease (“therap2uise)
under the supervision of a veterinarian. The FDdidated that it took this action to help presehe ¢fficacy of
medically important antibacterials to treat infeas in humans. In the United States, the antibat{@roducts
within our poultry business, the largest portioroaf MFAs and other business in this region, as$ asbur
cattle business, have both approved therapeutinandherapeutic indications. We believe, baseduwrent
producer usage patterns, that the large majoritysefof our products in these segments is at thatepdosage
levels. We currently generate a portion of our neasss from antibacterial products sold for use rkeys and
swine in the United States where we do not culydrgle therapeutic claims that match our customesage
patterns. We intend to ensure that our antiba¢tertauct offerings are in full alignment with tR®A’s
guidance documents within the FDA's three-year anpéntation period, and will pursue both new and
additional therapeutic claims for these producthwie FDA. However, there can be no assurancentbatill
be successful in obtaining such claims. While difficult to predict exactly what impact the renawf non-
therapeutic claims for our products that are mélgic@portant antibacterials will ultimately have @ur sales,
we estimate that, based on our customers’ usaggrpsthad we voluntarily decided to withdraw dlbar non-
therapeutic claims for these products in the Unates, and did not add any new therapeutic clionthese
products, our MFAs and other net sales would haenlveduced by approximately $10 to $15 milliontfar
year ended June 30, 2015.

Our carbadox product has been approved for useoih dnimals for over 40 years. Certain regulatory
bodies have raised concerns about the possiblemme®f certain residues of our carbadox productéat from
animals that consume the product. The product \aagsdx for use in the European Union in 1998 andban
banned in several other countries outside the di8tates. In 1998, following a submission by thegdsponsor,
the FDA conducted an evaluation of carbadox andddhat it was safe based on the U.S. “sensitifitthe
method”policy. Accordingly, the FDA continues to permiethpproved use of carbadox. However, the FDA
subsequently raised concerns that certain residoiesour carbadox product may persist in tissuesoioger
than previously determined. See “Business— Reguyldttm July 2014, the Codex adopted risk managgmen
advice language for a number of compounds includarbadox. The advice language states “authostieslid
prevent residues of carbadox in food. This candoemplished by not using carbadox in food producing
animals.” The advice language is to provide adeitly and is not binding on individual national autities, and
almost all national authorities already have lostablished regulatory standards for carbadox. Théeca
language may be considered by national authoiitiesaking future risk management determinationsthigo
extent additional national authorities elect tddal the risk management advice and prohibit theafsmrbadox
in food-producing animals, those decisions coultehen adverse effect on our sales of carbadoxoiseth
countries or in countries like the United Statest hroduce meat for export to those countries.

In 2008, the FDA announced that the agency reqdmedal review of all additives used in the
production of ethanol, including our Lactrol protlfformulated virginiamycin), where the co-produstay be
used for animal feed. Virginiamycin has been dediby an independent expert panel convened bg GRAS
for use as a processing aid in ethanol productishes related to the use of the resulting distlleo-products
for animal feed. We believe that this certificatgatisfies the FDA requirement. However, therelmano
assurance we will be successful in maintaining miaakcess for our Lactrol product or other ethanotiuction
additives that we sell.
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Our global sales of antibacterials and other rdlpteducts were approximately $336 million for the
year ended June 30, 2015. We cannot predict whedbtance concerns with antibacterials will resul
additional restrictions, expanded regulations drligipressure to discontinue or reduce use of aotérials in
food-producing animals, which could materially achedy affect our operating results and financiaidition.

A material portion of our sales are generated bytiéacterials and other related product

Our medicated products business is comprised elasively small number of compounds and
accounted for 45% and 47% of net sales for thesyeatled June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.ifh#icant
loss of antibacterial or other related productsébe any reason, including competition, produatsar
restrictions, public perception or any of the ottigks related to such products as described ®#&hnual Repol
on Form 10-K, could have a material adverse effeabur business.

We face competition in each of our markets from amber of large and small companies, some of whicvh
greater financial, R&D, production and other resoaes than we have

Many of our products face competition from alteivebr substitute products. We are engaged in
highly competitive industries and, with respecalioof our major products, face competition froraubstantial
number of global and regional competitors. We lyelimany of our competitors are conducting R&D ati&s
in areas served by our products and in areas iohwké are developing products. Some competitore basate
financial, R&D, production and other resources tha@nhave. Some of our principal competitors inclBdger
AG, Ceva Santé Animale, Boehringer Ingelheim Irational GmbH, Eli Lilly and Company (Elanco Animal
Health), Huvepharma Inc., Lallemand Inc., Merck & dnc. (Merck Animal Health and MSD Animal Heglth
Pharmgate LLC, Sanofi S.A. (Merial), Southeasteindvhls, Inc., Virbac and Zoetis Inc. To the extifrese
companies or new entrants offer comparable anirlti, mineral nutrition or performance productater
prices, our business could be adversely affecteg: 8htrants could substantially reduce our markatesor
render our products obsolete.

In certain countries, because of our size and mtoglix, we may not be able to capitalize on changes
in competition and pricing as fully as our compmst In recent years, there have been new genedicated
products introduced to the livestock industry, icatarly in the United States.

There continues to be consolidation in the aninealth market, which could strengthen our
competitors. Our competitors can be expected ttiroemto improve the formulation and performancéheir
products and to introduce new products with contipetprice and performance characteristics. Tharebe no
assurance that we will have sufficient resourcemdintain our current competitive position or markeare.

Outbreaks of animal diseases could significantlydteee demand for our product:

The demand for our products could be significaaffgcted by outbreaks of animal diseases, and such
occurrences may have a material adverse impadteosale of our products and our financial condigod
results of operations. The outbreaks of diseasbeyend our control and could significantly affdeimand for
our products and consumer perceptions of certaat preducts. An outbreak of disease could result in
governmental restrictions on the import and expbahicken, pork, beef or other products to or fronmn
customers. This could also create adverse publititymay have a material adverse effect on olityatn sell
our products successfully and on our financial dovdand results of operations. In addition, oatks of
disease carried by animals may reduce regiondbbafisales of particular animal-derived food pradior
result in reduced exports of such products, eitluerto heightened export restrictions or imporhjsidions,
which may reduce demand for our products due toaed herd or flock sizes.

There has been substantial publicity regarding HKddwn as North American (or Swine) Influenza
and, previously, H5N1, known as Highly Pathogeniiaf Influenza, in the human population. There halge
been concerns relating to E. coli in beef and otbed poisoning micro-organisms in meats and oftbeds.
Consumers may associate human health fears withshdiseases, food, food production or food animals
whether or not it is scientifically valid, which mmaave an adverse impact on the demand
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for animal protein. Occurrences of this type caigghificantly affect demand for animal protein, whniin turn
could affect the demand for our products in a maitimeg has a significant adverse effect on ounaia
condition and results of operations. Also, the cedk of any highly contagious disease near our miduction
sites could require us to immediately halt procarctf our products at such sites or force us tarisabstantial
expenses in procuring raw materials or produceéisre.

Outbreaks of an exotic or highly contagious diséasecountry where we produce our products
(particularly vaccines, which we currently producésrael) may result in other countries haltingportation of
our products for fear that our product may be awmimated with the exotic organism.

Perceived adverse effects on human health linkedhe consumption of food derived from animals thatilize
our products could cause a decline in the saleshaise products.

Our business depends heavily on a healthy and ggpliviestock industry. If the public perceives sk
to human health from the consumption of the foadvee from animals that utilize our products, theray be a
decline in the production of those food products,amturn, demand for our products. Livestock proets may
experience decreased demand for their productspottational harm as a result of evolving consunewns of
animal rights, nutrition and health-related or otb@ncerns. Any reputational harm to the livestodlustry may
also extend to companies in related industriesudhieg us. In addition, campaigns by interest gsygetivists
and others with respect to perceived risks assatiaith the use of our products in animals, inalgdbdosition
statements by livestock producers and their custolvesed on non-use of certain medicated prodoicts i
livestock production, whether or not scientificalypported, could affect public perceptions andicedhe use
of our products. Those adverse consumer viewsecttatthe use of one or more of our products imafs coulc
have a material adverse effect on our financiatit@n and results of operations.

Our business may be negatively affected by weatiwerditions and the availability of natural resourse

The animal health industry and demand for manyuofamimal health products in a particular region
are affected by changing disease pressures ané#ther conditions, as usage of our products folleavging
weather patterns and weather-related pressuresdiseases. As a result, we may experience reganhl
seasonal fluctuations in our results of operations.

In addition, livestock producers depend on thelakdity of natural resources, including abundant
rainfall to sustain large supplies of drinking watgrasslands and grain production. Their animasiith and
their ability to operate could be adversely affddfehey experience a shortage of fresh watertddeiman
population growth or floods, droughts or other veeatconditions. In the event of adverse weatheditioms or
a shortage of fresh water, livestock producers pmaghase less of our products.

Our operations could be subject to the effects lifnate change

Our operations and customers may be subject tofi@tphysical impacts of climate change, incluc
changes in weather patterns and the potentialktoerme weather events, which could affect the meatufe an
distribution of our products, agricultural yieldsdathe demand for our products and result in amfuidi
regulation that increase our operating costs.

The testing, manufacturing, and marketing of certadf our products are subject to extensive regutatiby
numerous government authorities in the United Statend other countries, including, but not limited tthe
FDA.

Among other requirements, FDA approval of antibaate and other medicated products, including
manufacturing processes and facilities used toym@duch products, is required before such produoagsbe
marketed in the United States. Further, cross-afear approvals are generally required for suchymtsdo be
used in combination in animal feed. Similarly, metikg approval by a foreign governmental authadsty
typically required before such products may be regtk in a particular foreign country.
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In addition to approval of the product and its lalzg regulatory authorities typically require appal
and periodic inspection of the manufacturing féiedi. In order to obtain FDA approval of a new aalifmealth
product, we must, among other things, demonsteetieet satisfaction of the FDA that the productafesand
effective for its intended uses and that we ar@btgpof manufacturing the product with proceduhed tonforrr
to FDA's current cGMP regulations, which must biidiwed at all times. Following a cGMP inspectionoofr
Teaneck, New Jersey headquarters in October 208 EDA issued inspectional observations (Form 483)
relating to various analytical test results anccficas, expiration dating and reporting requireragagarding
specification non-conformance for Stafac 20, oneuwfproduct formulations of virginiamycin. In resyse to
our subsequent submissions, the FDA sent us a ietkéay 2013 indicating they were seeking further
explanation and corrective actions regarding theds raised in the inspectional observations, iohwiie
responded. In December 2013, the FDA replied taesponse, noting some changes and proposed refitiem
to the revised testing procedures for our prodadicating that it would be beneficial for us togaige a third
party consultant with cGMP expertise, and indigatimat our updated procedures, among additionalBGM
requirements, would be reviewed at the FDA’s negpection. In February 2015, the FDA conducted an
inspection at our Teaneck, NJ headquarters toytnif information provided in our 2013 responsé-okm 483
was issued, which contained one inspectional obsiervciting two examples of the observed violatibhe
observation questioned whether or not we are abdenfirm that the drug components (of Type A mat#id
products) remain uniformly dispersed and stablesunddinary conditions of shipment, storage and W
responded to the inspectional observation in wgitmMarch 2015. This inspectional observation mats
impacted our ability to market products in the gdiStates or any other country, and we expecthipat
inspectional observation will be satisfactorily eslkbed. However, the FDA may not be satisfied by th
responses and actions taken by us in regard tmespectional observations cited. The FDA has variogans of
enforcing cGMP requirements, including seizuresiapdctions and failure to resolve this cGMP issoeald
have a financially material impact on our business.

The process of seeking FDA approvals can be cdstlg, consuming, and subject to unanticipated and
significant delays. There can be no assurancestldit approvals will be granted to us on a timekidqaor at all.
Any delay in obtaining or any failure to obtain F@Aforeign government approvals or the suspension
revocation of such approvals would adversely affectability to introduce and market medicated fadditive
products and to generate product revenue. For mmfimemation on FDA and foreign government approals
cGMP issues, see “Business—Regulatory.”

We may experience declines in the sales volume @ices of our products as the result of the conting
trend toward consolidation of certain customer gnosias well as the emergence of large buying groups.

We make a majority of our sales to integrated ppuiwine and cattle operations and to a number of
regional and national feed companies, distributtwsops and blenders. Significant consolidatiopwf
customers may result in these groups gaining axhditipurchasing leverage and consequently incrgalse
product pricing pressures facing our business. tafthlly, the emergence of large buying groups ipigedéy
could enable such groups to attempt to extracemliscounts on our products. Moreover, if, as alte$
increased leverage, customer pressures requiteraduce our pricing such that our gross margies ar
diminished, we could decide not to sell our produota particular customer, which could result adearease in
our revenues. Consolidation among our customer tasealso lead to reduced demand for our produmts a
replacement of our products by the combined entitly those of our competitors. The result of these
developments may have a material adverse effeotiobusiness, financial condition and results afragions.

Our business is subject to risk based on customgrosure to rising costs and reduced customer inco

Livestock producers may experience increased feet,transportation and other key costs or may
experience decreased animal protein prices or.daib®r of these trends could cause deterioratidhe
financial condition of our livestock producer custrs, potentially inhibiting their ability to purake our
products or pay us for products delivered. Ourslisek producer customers may offset rising costedycing
spending on our products, including by switchindpteer-cost alternatives to our products.

Generic products may be viewed as more -effective than our products

We face competition from products produced by otteenpanies, including generic alternatives to
certain of our products. We depend primarily onléraecrets to provide us with competitive advargtage
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for many of our products. The protection affordedimited by the availability of new competitivegaiucts or
generic versions of existing products that can essftlly compete with our products. As a resultmay face
competition from new competitive products or lovpeieed generic alternatives to many of our produ@tsneri
competitors are becoming more aggressive in tefmpsang, and generic products are an increaserggntage
of overall animal health sales in certain regidhanimal health customers increase their use of oeexisting
generic products, our financial condition and ressaf operations could be materially adverselycéfd.

Advances in veterinary medical practices and aninhalalth technologies could negatively affect the maet
for our products.

The market for our products could be impacted neglgtby the introduction and/or broad market
acceptance of newly developed or alternative prisdiat address the diseases and conditions fahwieé sell
products, including “green” or “holistic” healthqaucts or specially bred disease-resistant aniriraksddition,
technological breakthroughs by others may obviatet@chnology and reduce or eliminate the markebtw
products. Introduction or acceptance of such prsdactechnologies could materially adversely aftea
business, financial condition and results of openat

The misuse or extr-label use of our products may harm our reputation @sult in financial or other
damages.

Our products have been approved for use underfepeiccumstances for, among other things, the
prevention, control and/or treatment of certairedses and conditions in specific species, in s@sescsubject
to certain dosage levels or minimum withdrawal gasiprior to the slaughter date. There may be ase risk
of product liability if livestock producers or otfseattempt any extra-label use of our productduding the use
of our products in species for which they havebestn approved, or at dosage levels or periods farior
withdrawal that have not been approved. If we @&entkd by a governmental or regulatory agency te hav
engaged in the promotion of any of our productseédra-label use, such agency could request thaheadsfy
our training or promotional materials and practiaed we could be subject to significant fines aedatties. Thi
imposition of these sanctions could also affectreputation and position within the industry. Eviewe were
not responsible for having promoted the extra-laisel, concerns could arise about the safety afethdting
meat in the human food supply. Any of these eveotdd materially adversely affect our financial digion and
results of operations.

The public perception of the safety and efficacyaartain of our animal health products may harm o
reputation.

The public perception of the safety and efficacgeftain of our animal health products, whethemat
these concerns are scientifically or clinically sagied, may lead to product recalls, withdrawalspgnsions or
declining sales as well as product liability, arldes claims.

In addition, we depend on positive perceptionefdafety and quality of our products, and animal
health products generally, by our customers, veeians and end-users, and such concerns may herm o
reputation. In some countries, these perceptionslraa@xacerbated by the existence of counterfesioes of
our products, which, depending on the legal anddafercement recourse available in the jurisdictidrere the
counterfeiting occurs, may be difficult to policestop. These concerns and the related harm tceputation
could materially adversely affect our financial ddion and results of operations, regardless ofttdresuch
reports are accurate.

We are dependent on suppliers having current regaly approvals, and the failure of those supplidrs
maintain these approvals or challenges in replaciagy of those suppliers could affect our supplyrofterials
or affect the distribution or sale of our products.

Suppliers and third party contract manufacturerofo animal health and mineral nutrition products,
like us, are subject to extensive regulatory coamae. If any one of these third parties disconsritsesupply to
us because of significant regulatory violation®threrwise, or an adverse event occurs at one offtadities,
the interruption in the supply of these materialsld decrease sales of our affected products.isretrent, we
may seek to enter into agreements with third pattieourchase raw materials or products or to leageirchase
new manufacturing facilities. We may be unableind & third
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party willing or able to provide the necessary pretd or facilities suitable for manufacturing phagauticals ol
terms acceptable to us or the cost of those phautiaals may be prohibitive. If we have to obtaibstitute
materials or products, additional regulatory apptewiill likely be required, as approvals are tytli¢ specific
to a single product produced by a specified marufacin a specified facility. As such, the usaefv facilities
also requires regulatory approvals. While we talk@sares where economically feasible and availaldedure
back-up suppliers, the continued receipt of adtigeedients or products from a sole source suppbetd create
challenges if a sole source was interrupted. We maaye able to provide adequate and timely prothuct
eliminate any threat of interruption of supply efr@roducts to customers and these problems magriaist
adversely impact our business.

The raw materials used by us in the manufactureafr products can be subject to price fluctuationsdatheir
availability can be limited.

While the selling prices of our products tend tor@ase or decrease over time with the cost of raw
materials, such changes may not occur simultangoug$b the same degree. The costs of certain iof ou
significant raw materials are subject to considierablatility, and we generally do not engage itivdiies to
hedge the costs of our raw materials. Althoughingls raw material accounted for more than 6% afamst of
goods sold for the year ended June 30, 2015, iylati raw material costs can result in significflnctuations
in our costs of goods sold of the affected produrite costs of raw materials used by our MinerakitNon
business are particularly subject to fluctuationglobal commodities markets and cost changesimtiaerlying
commodities markets typically lead directly to aresponding change in our revenues. Although weagit to
adjust the prices of our products to reflect sigaift changes in raw material costs, we may neatbe to pass
any increases in raw material costs through tacastomers in the form of price increases. Signifi¢acreases
in the costs of raw materials, if not offset byghwot price increases, could have a material adedfset on our
financial condition and results of operations. Bheply of certain of our raw materials is dependenthird
party suppliers. There is no guarantee that sugiptytages of such raw materials will not occuradidition, if
any one of these third parties discontinues itplutp us, or an adverse event occurs at one af finglities, the
interruption in the supply of these materials calddrease sales of our affected products. In thetdkiat we
cannot procure necessary major raw materials frisrersuppliers, the occurrence of any of these naag an
adverse impact on our business.

Our revenues are dependent on the continued opemtf our various manufacturing facilities

Although presently all our manufacturing facilitiese considered to be in good condition, the
operation of our manufacturing facilities involwasiny risks, including the breakdown, failure orstahdard
performance of equipment, construction delays,talges of materials, labor problems, power outapes,
improper installation or operation of equipmentunal disasters, terrorist activities, the outbrefkny highly
contagious diseases near our production sitestendded to comply with environmental and otheratives of
governmental agencies. In addition, regulatory atities such as the FDA typically require approsadl
periodic inspection of the manufacturing facilittesconfirm compliance with applicable regulatory
requirements, and those requirements may be ewftncgarious means, including seizures and injoneti
Certain of our product lines are manufacturedsihgle facility, and certain of our product lineg a
manufactured at a single facility with limited cajig at a second facility, and production would heteasily
transferable to another site. The occurrence oéni@toperational problems, including but not lieditto the
above events, may adversely affect our financiatlt@mn and results of operations.

A significant portion of our operations are condusd in foreign jurisdictions and are subject to tleeonomic,
political, legal and business environments of theunitries in which we do busines

Our international operations could be limited ardpted by any of the following:
» volatility in the international financial marlet
e compliance with governmental controls;

» difficulties enforcing contractual and intelleat property rights;
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« compliance with a wide variety of laws and regulasi, such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prac
Act (“FCPA”") and similar non-U.S. laws and regudets;

» compliance with foreign labor laws;
» compliance with Environmental Laws;

* burdens to comply with multiple and potentially fimting foreign laws and regulations, includ
those relating to environmental, health and safeguirements;

» changes in laws, regulations, government comtsolenforcement practices with respect to our
business and the businesses of our customers;

» political and social instability, including cramcivil disturbance, terrorist activities and atme
conflicts;

» trade restrictions, export controls and sanstiaws and restrictions on direct investments by
foreign entities, including restrictions adminigéby the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the
U.S. Department of the Treasury;

» changes in tax laws and tariffs;
» costs and difficulties in staffing, managing andnitoring international operations; and
* longer payment cycles and increased exposureunterparty risk.

The multinational nature of our business subjestopotential risks that various taxing authositie
may challenge the pricing of our cross-border ayeaments and subject us to additional tax, adveisgdacting
our effective tax rate and our tax liability.

In addition, international transactions may invoiwereased financial and legal risks due to diffgri
legal systems and customs. Compliance with theggraments may prohibit the import or export oftair
products and technologies or may require us tombtécense before importing or exporting cerfainducts or
technology. A failure to comply with any of thesevk, regulations or requirements could resultvi or
criminal legal proceedings, monetary or non-monepenalties, or both, disruptions to our businésstations
on our ability to import and export products and/ees, and damage to our reputation. In addit@niations in
the pricing of our products in different jurisdimtis may result in the unauthorized importationwfgroducts
between jurisdictions. While the impact of thesetdes is difficult to predict, any of them could teaally
adversely affect our financial condition and resoit operations. Changes in any of these laws|atgns or
requirements, or the political environment in atipatar country, may affect our ability to engagebiusiness
transactions in certain markets, including investinprocurement and repatriation of earnings.

We are subject to product registration and authaiion regulations in many of the jurisdictions in lch we
operate and/or distribute our products, includinbe United States and member states of the Europ&aion.

We are subject to regulations related to testirgpufacturing, labeling, registration, and safety
analysis in order to lawfully distribute many ofrqaroducts, including for example, in the U.S., théeral Toxic
Substances Control Act and the Federal Insecti€idegicide, and Rodenticide Act, and in the Eurogéaion,
the Regulation on REACH. We are also subject talaimequirements in many of the other jurisdician
which we operate and/or distribute our productsdme cases, such registrations are subject todiereview
by relevant authorities. Such regulations may teagbvernmental restrictions or cancellations ofiedusal to
issue, certain registrations or authorizationgaarse us or our customers to make product sulistituin the
future. Such regulations may also lead to incredisied party scrutiny and personal injury or protliebility
claims. Compliance with these regulations can Heedit, costly and time consuming and liabilities costs
relating to such regulations could have a matedakrse effect on our business, financial condiod results
of operations.

We have significant assets located outside the BlhiStates and a significant portion of our salesca@arnings
is attributable to operations conducted abroad.

As of June 30, 2015, we had manufacturing and tgales operations in 14 countries and sold our
products in over 65 countries. Our operations detsiie United States accounted for 50% and 53% of
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our consolidated assets as of June 30, 2015 art] B&sbectively, and 36% and 37% of our consolitlat
sales for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 28dgkatively. Our foreign operations are subjecutoency
exchange fluctuations and restrictions, politicastability in some countries, and uncertainty of] a
governmental control over, commercial rights.

Changes in the relative values of currencies tékeepgrom time to time and could in the future
adversely affect our results of operations as aelbur ability to meet interest and principal ofigns on our
indebtedness. To the extent that the U.S. dollatdltes relative to the applicable foreign curyeoar results
are favorably or unfavorably affected. We may friomme to time manage this exposure by entering fioteign
currency contracts. Such contracts generally ateresh into with respect to anticipated costs denateid in
foreign currencies for which timing of the paymeah be reasonably estimated. No assurances candpetigat
such hedging activities will not result in, or wilé successful in preventing, losses that coulé laavadverse
effect on our financial condition or results of out@ons. There are times when we do not hedge sig@ireign
currency fluctuations and therefore are subjethéorisks associated with fluctuations in curreagghange
rates.

In addition, international manufacturing, sales easl materials sourcing are subject to other intitere
risks, including possible nationalization or exgiapon, labor unrest, political instability, prieaexd exchange
controls, limitation on foreign participation indal enterprises, health-care regulation, expoitdwnd quotas,
domestic and international customs and tariffs, glaance with export controls and sanctions laws,Fbreign
Corrupt Practices Act and other laws and regulatgoverning international trade, unexpected chaimges
regulatory environments, difficulty in obtainingstfibution and support, and potentially adverse tax
consequences. Although such risks have not haderialaadverse effect on us in the past, thesefacould
have a material adverse impact on our ability tmease or maintain our international sales or arresults of
operations in the future.

We have manufacturing facilities located in Israahd a portion of our net sales and earnings is #ttrtable
to products produced and operations conducted iratd.

Our Israeli manufacturing facilities and local oggons accounted for 22% and 21% of our
consolidated assets as of June 30, 2015 and 28dpkatively, and 20% and 19% of our consolidatedales
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, résggctVe maintain manufacturing facilities in Istawhich
manufacture:

* nicarbazin and amprolium anticoccidials, mosivbfch are exported from Israel to major world
markets;

* vaccines, a substantial portion of which areogtga to international markets; and

« animal health pharmaceuticals and trace minaradisnutritional specialty products for the local
animal feed industry.

A substantial portion of this production is expdrfeom Israel to major world markets. Accordingly,
our Israeli operations are dependent on foreigrkatarand the ability to reach those markets. Hbstilbetwee
Israel and its neighbors may hinder Israel's iraéomal trade. This, in turn, could have a mateadlerse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultsperations.

Certain countries, companies and organizationsruaomto participate in a boycott of Israeli firmsda
other companies doing business in Israel or withells companies. We do not believe that the boyasthad a
material adverse effect on us, but we cannot peoaibsurance that restrictive laws, policies ortfmes directed
toward Israel or Israeli businesses will not hawedverse impact on our operations or expansiauof
business. Our business, financial condition andli®sf operations in Israel may be adversely affédby factor
outside of our control, such as currency fluctuaticenergy shortages and other political, socidlexonomic
developments in or affecting Israel.

We have manufacturing facilities located in Brazaind a portion of our sales and earnings is attrilalile to
products produced and operations conducted in Bfa

Our Brazilian manufacturing facilities and localepgtions accounted for 15% and 19% of our
consolidated assets, as of June 30, 2015 and &&spkctively, and 21% and 22% of our consolidattdsales
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, résglgcWWe maintain manufacturing facilities in
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Brazil, which manufacture virginiamycin, semduraimiand nicarbazin. Our Brazilian facilities als@mguce
Stafac, Aviax, Aviax Plus, Coxistac, Nicarb andraemycin granular formulations. A substantial partaf the
production is exported from Brazil to major worldrkets. Accordingly, our Brazilian operations aependent
on foreign markets and the ability to reach thosekets.

Our business, financial condition and results arapions in Brazil may be adversely affected by
factors outside of our control, such as currenggtflations, energy shortages and other politicaias and
economic developments in or affecting Brazil.

Certain of our employees are covered by collechaegaining or other labor agreement

As of June 30, 2015, approximately 195 of our lsemaployees and 387 of our Brazilian employees
were covered by collective bargaining agreements bélieve we have satisfactory relations with cupleyees
There can be no assurance that we will not expegienwork stoppage or strike at our manufacturggifies. A
prolonged work stoppage or strike at any of our ufiacturing facilities could have a material advesffect on
our business, financial condition and results afrafions.

The loss of key personnel may disrupt our businassl adversely affect our financial result

Our operations and future success are dependaheaontinued efforts of our senior executive
officers and other key personnel. Although we hewered into employment agreements with certaicutkes
we may not be able to retain all of our senior exige officers and key employees. These seniorigikec
officers and other key employees may be hired ycompetitors, some of which have considerably more
financial resources than we do. The loss of theises of any of our senior executive officers drestkey
personnel, or the inability to hire and retain dfied employees, could have a material adverseeffie our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our R&D relies on evaluations in animals, which mdecome subject to bans or additional regulatio

As a company that produces animal health medi@nédsvaccines, evaluation of our existing and new
products in animals is required in order to be ablegister our products. Animal testing in certaidustries he
been the subject of controversy and adverse ptibllBome organizations and individuals have attechjpt ban
animal testing or encourage the adoption of adtifioegulations applicable to animal testing. Te ¢ltent that
the activities of such organizations and individuale successful, our R&D, and by extension owaniiial
condition and results of operations, could be ntgradversely affected. In addition, negative licity about
us or our industry could harm our reputation.

Our operations, properties and subsidiaries are gdb to a wide variety of complex and stringent éezdl,
state, local and foreign environmental laws and régtions.

We are subject to environmental, health and sddetg and regulations, including those governing
pollution; protection of the environment; the usmnagement and release of hazardous materialdéasabs an
wastes; air emissions; greenhouse gas emissioter, use, supply, and discharges; the investigaiah
remediation of contamination; the manufacture rittistion and sale of regulated materials, includdegticides;
the importing, exporting and transportation of pretd; and the health and safety of our employedstan
public (collectively, “Environmental Laws”). See tiBiness—Environmental, Health and Safety.”

Pursuant to Environmental Laws, certain of our &lises are required to obtain and maintain
numerous governmental permits, licenses, registrgtiauthorizations and approvals, including “RCiRet B”
hazardous waste permits, to conduct various aspétigir operations (collectively “Environmentadiifits”),
any of which may be subject to suspension, revocathodification, termination or denial under certa
circumstances or which may not be renewed upon éxgiration for various reasons, including nonctanze.
See “Business—Environmental, Health and SafetyésehEnvironmental Permits can be difficult, coatig
time consuming to obtain and may contain condititwas limit our operations. Additionally, any faikito obtair
and maintain such Environmental Permits could iegtr otherwise prohibit certain aspects of ouerggpions,
which could have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial condition and results of opersti
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We have expended, and may be required to expeihe ifuture, substantial funds for compliance with
Environmental Laws. As recyclers of hazardous metataining chemical wastes, certain of our subsiels
have been, and are likely to be, the focus of esktencompliance reviews by environmental regulatory
authorities under Environmental Laws, includingsthoelating to the generation, transportationrineat,
storage and disposal of solid and hazardous wastds the RCRA. In the past, some of our subsikdnave
paid fines and entered into consent orders to addrbeged environmental violations. See “Business—
Environmental, Health and Safety.” We cannot asgatethat our operations or activities or thoseartain of
our subsidiaries, including with respect to comptia with Environmental Laws, will not result in gior
criminal enforcement actions or private actiongutatory or judicial orders enjoining or curtailiogerations or
requiring corrective measures, installation of pidtin control equipment or remedial measures ots¢os
revocation of required Environmental Permits, oef, penalties or damages, which could have a ialater
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations. In addition, we cammetlict the
extent to which Environmental Laws, and the intetation or enforcement thereof, may change or becowre
stringent in the future, each of which may afféet tarket for our products or give rise to addaicrapital
expenditures, compliance costs or liabilities taild be material.

Our operations or products may impact the environmer cause or contribute to contamination or expog
to hazardous substances.

Given the nature of our current and former openatiparticularly at our chemical manufacturingssi
we have incurred, are currently incurring and nrathe future incur liabilities under the CERCLA, wrder
other federal, state, local and foreign Environraebaws related to releases of or contaminatiohdgardous
substances, with respect to our current or forrites,sadjacent or nearby third-party sites, oritd#fdisposal
locations. See “Business—Environmental, Health @aféty.” Certain Environmental Laws, including
CERCLA, can impose strict, joint, several, andaattive liability for the cost of investigation ankkanup of
contaminated sites on owners and operators of sited) as well as on persons who dispose of ongeréor
disposal of hazardous substances at such sitesrdingly, we could incur liability, whether as audt of
government enforcement or private claims, for kn@vonknown liabilities at, or caused by migratfoom or
hazardous waste transported from, any of our cumeformer facilities or properties, including eowned or
operated by predecessors or third parties. SeariBss—Environmental, Health and Safety.” Such ligbi
could have a material adverse effect on our busjriggncial condition and results of operations.

The nature of our current and former operations elgposes us to the risk of claims under
Environmental Laws. We could be subject to claim&hvironmental regulatory authorities, individuarsd
other third parties seeking damages for allegesqmed injury, property damage, and damages to aatur
resources resulting from hazardous substance cardtion or human exposure caused by our operations,
facilities or products, and there can be no asserémat material costs and liabilities will notibeurred in
connection with any such claims. Our insurance n@ybe sufficient to cover any of these exposuregipct,
injury or damage claims.

Furthermore, regulatory agencies are showing istmgaconcern over the impact of animal health
products and livestock operations on the enviroriniéris increased regulatory scrutiny may necessiteat
additional time and resources be spent to addnesg tconcerns for both new and existing produatsaanld
affect product sales and materially adversely affeic business, financial condition or results péations.

We cannot assure you that our liabilities arisiregrf past or future releases of, or exposure to,
hazardous substances will not materially adverafgct our business, financial condition or resaofts
operations.

We have been and may continue to be subject tonetanf injury from direct exposure to certain of ol
products that constitute or contain hazardous sulrstes and from indirect exposure when such substes
are incorporated into other companies’ products.

Because certain of our products constitute or éomtazardous substances, and because the production
of certain chemicals involves the use, handlingepssing, storage and transportation of hazarddastances,
from time to time we are subject to claims of igjfrom direct exposure to such
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substances and from indirect exposure when sudtautes are incorporated into other companies’'ymtsd
There can be no assurance that as a result obiphgtire operations, there will not be additioalaims of injury
by employees or members of the public due to exeosu alleged exposure, to such substances. Walsre
party to a number of claims and lawsuits arisingaduhe normal course of business, including pobdiability
claims and allegations of violations of governmerggulations, and face present and future clairitis respect
to workplace exposure, workers’ compensation ahdranatters. In most cases, such claims are cowgred
insurance and, where applicable, workers’ comp@rsatsurance, subject to policy limits and exoburs;
however, our insurance coverage, to the extentadblaj may not be adequate to protect us fromaddllities
that we might incur in connection with the manudiaet sale and use of our products. Insurance isresipe and
in the future may not be available on acceptabilegeif at all. A successful claim or series ofirtia brought
against us in excess of our insurance coveragel ¢t@mve a materially adverse effect on our busirfesmcial
condition and results of operations. In additiamy alaims, even if not ultimately successful, coattVersely
affect the marketplace’s acceptance of our products

We are subiject to risks from litigation that may mesially impact our operations

We face an inherent business risk of exposureiowstypes of claims and lawsuits. We are involved
in various legal proceedings that arise in ther@di course of our business. Although it is notsiiae to predic
with certainty the outcome of every pending claintasvsuit or the range of probable loss, we belignese
pending lawsuits and claims will not individually ia the aggregate have a material adverse impaotio
results of operations. However, we could in therfeitbe subject to various lawsuits, including ietlal
property, product liability, personal injury, prattwarranty, environmental or antitrust claims, agnothers,
and incur judgments or enter into settlementswsiats and claims that could have a material adveffect on
our results of operations in any particular period.

We are subiject to risks that may not be covereablyinsurance policies

In addition to pollution and other environmentaks, we are subject to risks inherent in the animal
health, mineral nutrition and performance prodimtsistries, such as explosions, fires and spiliel@ases. An
significant interruption of operations at our pijal facilities could have a material adverse dffatus. We
maintain general liability insurance, pollution &djability insurance, and property and businegsrruption
insurance with coverage limits that we believeatequate. Because of the nature of industry hazaids
possible that liabilities for pollution and otheardages arising from a major occurrence may nobkered by
our insurance policies or could exceed insuraneerages or policy limits or that such insurance metybe
available at reasonable rates in the future. A diabilities, which could arise due to injuryloss of life,
severe damage to and destruction of property angmgnt, pollution or other environmental damage or
suspension of operations, could have a materiaradweffect on our business.

Adverse U.S. and international economic and markenditions may adversely affect our product salesl;
business.

Current U.S. and international economic and mac&etitions are uncertain. Our revenues and
operating results may be affected by uncertairhanging economic and market conditions, includhey t
challenges faced in the credit markets and findseivices industry. If domestic and global ecoroarid
market conditions remain uncertain or persist ¢edgrate further, we may experience material intgpaa our
business, financial condition and results of openat Adverse economic conditions impacting out@uers,
including, among others, increased taxation, higimemployment, lower customer confidence in thenenowy,
higher customer debt levels, lower availabilitycaktomer credit, higher interest rates and hardgieilating to
declines in the stock markets, could cause purshafsemeat products to decline, resulting in a deseedn
purchases of our products, which could adverségctabur financial condition and results of opevati

Adverse economic and market conditions could aésgatively impact our business by negatively
affecting the parties with whom we do businesduiiog among others, our customers, our manufactzed
our suppliers.

36




TABLE OF CONTENTS

We may not be able to realize the expected benefitaur investments in emerging marke!

We have been taking steps to take advantage oisthén global demand for animal protein in
emerging markets, including by expanding our maetufing presence, sales, marketing, and distribtio
these markets. Failure to continue to maintainemind our business in emerging markets couldragerially
adversely affect our operating results and findragadition.

Some countries within emerging markets may be éalbewulnerable to periods of local, regional or
global economic, political or social instability onisis. For example, our sales in certain emergiagkets have
suffered from extended periods of disruption duedtural disasters. Furthermore, we have also expmrd
lower than expected sales in certain emerging nisukee to local, regional and global restrictiondanking
and commercial activities in those countries. Hothase and other reasons, sales within emergiadkets carry
significant risks.

We may not be able to expand through acquisitiomsriegrate successfully the products, services
personnel of acquired businesse

From time to time, we may make selective acquis#tito expand our range of products and services
and to expand the geographic scope of our busihiesgever, we may be unable to identify suitablgéss, and
competition for acquisitions may make it difficfdr us to consummate acquisitions on acceptabbester at all
We may not be able to locate any complementaryymtsdhat meet our requirements or that are avaitabus
on acceptable terms or we may not have sufficiapital resources to consummate a proposed acquisiti
addition, assuming we identify suitable productpantners, the process of effectively entering thizse
arrangements involves risks that our managemetiéataon may be diverted from other business carer
Further, if we succeed in identifying and consumngaippropriate acquisitions on acceptable ternesmay nc
be able to integrate successfully the productsjses and personnel of any acquired businessedaria
consistent with our current business practice artigular, we may face greater than expected ctists,and
effort involved in completing and integrating acgjtions and potential disruption of our ongoingihass.
Furthermore, we may realize fewer, if any, synexdfien envisaged. Our ability to manage acquiresthbases
may also be limited if we enter into joint ventugesdo not acquire full ownership or a controllistgke in the
acquired business. In addition, continued growthugh acquisitions may significantly strain ourstixig
management and operational resources. As a reguihay need to recruit additional personnel, paldity at
the level below senior management, and we may @able to recruit qualified management and othgr ke
personnel to manage our growth. Moreover, certaimsections could adversely impact earnings asioe i
development and other expenses related to theatrioiss and we could incur debt to complete these
transactions. Debt instruments could contain cotied commitments and covenants that could adweedtdct
our cash flow and our ability to operate our busindinancial condition and results of operations.

We may not successfully implement our businesstsigés or achieve expected gross margin improvems

We are pursuing and may continue to pursue st@ieiiatives that management considers critical to
our long-term success, including, but not limitedihcreasing sales in emerging markets, base vevgrowth
through new product development and value addedgtdifecycle development; improving operational
efficiency through manufacturing efficiency improwent and other programs; and expanding our
complementary products and services. There ardisamt risks involved with the execution of thegpes of
initiatives, including significant business, ecoriormnd competitive uncertainties, many of which auéside of
our control. Accordingly, we cannot predict whether will succeed in implementing these strategiigatives.

It could take several years to realize the antteigpdenefits from these initiatives, if any bersefite achieved at
all. We may be unable to achieve expected grosgimamprovements on our products or technologies.
Additionally, our business strategy may change ftione to time, which could delay our ability to ilement
initiatives that we believe are important to ousibess.

Our product approval, R&D, acquisition and licenginefforts may fail to generate new products and goot
lifecycle developments.

Our future success depends on both our existingugtoortfolio, including our ability to obtain s
clearances enabling the use of our medicated pt®dtuconjunction with other products, approval fise of our
products with new species, approval for new cldionour products, approval of our
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products in new markets, and our pipeline of nesdpcts, including new products that we may devétopugh
joint ventures and products that we are able tainlihrough license or acquisition. The majorityoaf R&D
programs focus on product lifecycle developmentctvits defined as R&D programs that leverage engsti
animal health products by adding new species @mslaachieving approvals in new markets or creatieny
combinations and reformulations. We commit subsaffort, funds and other resources to expanding
product approvals and R&D, both through our ownicksted resources and through collaborations witld th
parties.

We may be unable to determine with accuracy whemhather any of our expanded product apprc
for our existing product portfolio or any of ourgglucts now under development will be approved endhed, o
we may be unable to obtain expanded product apfsrovalevelop, license or otherwise acquire product
candidates or products. In addition, we cannotiptechether any products, once launched, will beae@rcially
successful or will achieve sales and revenuesatfeatonsistent with our expectations. The animalthéndustn
is subject to regional and local trends and reguiatand, as a result, products that are succaas$ome of our
markets may not achieve similar success when int®dl into new markets. Furthermore, the timing eost of
our R&D may increase, and our R&D may become lesdiptable. For example, changes in regulations
applicable to our industry may make it more tiomgsuming and/or costly to research, test and dpy@loducts

Products in the animal health industry are sometidezived from molecules and compounds
discovered or developed as part of human healdares. We may enter into collaboration or licensing
arrangements with third parties to provide us waithess to compounds and other technology for pespafsour
business. Such agreements are typically complexemdre time to negotiate and implement. If wesenito
these arrangements, we may not be able to maithtage relationships or establish new ones in thedwn
acceptable terms or at all. In addition, any cataltion that we enter into may not be successhd,the success
may depend on the efforts and actions of our cotitiors, which we may not be able to control. Ifave unabls
to access human health-generated molecules andbcmiip to conduct R&D on cost-effective terms, dailityt
to develop new products could be limited.

We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt PracticaAct and other an-corruption laws or trade control laws
as well as other laws governing our operationsweé fail to comply with these laws, we could be sdbjto civil
or criminal penalties, other remedial measures, aledjal expenses, which could adversely affect ousibess,
financial condition and results of operation:

Our operations are subject to anti-corruption lamnduding the FCPA and other anti-corruption laws
that apply in countries where we do business. TORA; UK Bribery Act and these other laws generplighibit
us and our employees and intermediaries from lgjtbeing bribed or making other prohibited paymeats
government officials or other persons to obtainetain business or gain some other business adyanitée
operate in a number of jurisdictions that posegh hisk of potential FCPA violations, and we pagite in joint
ventures and relationships with third parties whas@ns could potentially subject us to liabilityder the
FCPA or local anti-corruption laws. In addition, w&nnot predict the nature, scope or effect ofrtutegulatory
requirements to which our international operationight be subject or the manner in which existingdanight
be administered or interpreted.

We are also subject to other laws and regulationeiging our international operations, including
regulations administered by the U.S. Departmei@@hmerce’s Bureau of Industry and Security, the. U.S
Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assehtol, and various non-U.S. government entitiesluding
applicable export control regulations, economiccians on countries and persons, customs requirsmen
currency exchange regulations and transfer priggglations (collectively, the “Trade Control lays”

However, there is no assurance that we will be detaly effective in ensuring our compliance with
applicable anticorruption laws, including the FCB®other legal requirements, including Trade Cdraws. If
we are not in compliance with the FCPA and othéir @orruption laws or Trade Control laws, we may bigjec
to criminal and civil penalties, disgorgement atitko sanctions and remedial measures, and legahsgp,
which could have an adverse impact on our busifiessicial condition, results of operations andiidity.
Likewise, any investigation of any potential viatais of the FCPA other anti- corruption laws ordeaaControl
laws by U.S. or foreign authorities could also hameadverse impact on our reputation, businessndiial
condition and results of operations.
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The actual or purported intellectual property rightof third parties may negatively affect our bussse

A third party may sue us or otherwise make a claileging infringement or other violation of the
third-party’s patents, trademarks, trade dressyrigipts, trade secrets, domain names or otheréctekl
property rights. If we do not prevail in this typ€Elitigation, we may be required to:

+  pay monetary damages;

» obtain a license in order to continue manufactuor marketing the affected products, which may
not be available on commercially reasonable teomnat all; or

» stop activities, including any commercial adigs, relating to the affected products, which doul
include a recall of the affected products and/oessation of sales in the future.

The costs of defending an intellectual propertyneleould be substantial and could materially
adversely affect our operating results and findraadition, even if we successfully defend sudirok.

The intellectual property positions of animal hkatiedicines and vaccines businesses frequently
involve complex legal and factual questions, anésaned patent does not guarantee us the righattige the
patented technology or develop, manufacture or ceruialize the patented product. We cannot be cetitait a
competitor or other third party does not have df mat obtain rights to intellectual property thmaay prevent us
from manufacturing, developing or marketing cer@fiour products, regardless of whether we belmweh
intellectual property rights are valid and enfotdeaor we believe we would be otherwise able toettgya mort
commercially successful product, which may harmfamancial condition and results of operations.

If our intellectual property rights are challengedr circumvented, competitors may be able to takeadage
of our R&D efforts. We are also dependent upon teasecrets, which generally are difficult to protect

Our long-term success largely depends on our ahdimarket technologically competitive products.
We rely and expect to continue to rely on a comtmneof intellectual property, including patentademark,
trade dress, copyright, trade secret and domairermotiection laws, as well as confidentiality aicdihse
agreements with our employees and others, to grotedntellectual property and proprietary righfsve fail to
obtain and maintain adequate intellectual properdgection, we may not be able to prevent thirdipafrom
using our proprietary technologies or from markggmoducts that are very similar or identical toso@ur
currently pending or future patent applications mayresult in issued patents, or be approvedtimealy basis,
or at all. Similarly, any term extensions that welsmay not be approved on a timely basis, iflatrahddition,
our issued patents may not contain claims suffiidsroad to protect us against third parties vgithilar
technologies or products or provide us with any getitive advantage, including exclusivity in a jartar
product area. The scope of our patent claims akpvary between countries, as individual counthigge their
own patent laws. For example, some countries oatynji the issuance of patents covering a novel atem
compound itself, and its first use, and thus furthethods of use for the same compound, may npatentable
We may be subject to challenges by third partiganding our intellectual property, including clainegarding
validity, enforceability, scope and effective terfime validity, enforceability, scope and effectteem of patents
can be highly uncertain and often involve compkgal and factual questions and proceedings. Olityatoi
enforce our patents also depends on the laws ofidhiil countries and each country’s practice wibpect to
enforcement of intellectual property rights. In gida, if we are unable to maintain our existingelnse
agreements or other agreements pursuant to whichgrties grant us rights to intellectual progeimcluding
because such agreements expire or are terminatefinancial condition and results of operationsldde
materially adversely affected.

In addition, patent law reform in the United Stedesl other countries may also weaken our ability to
enforce our patent rights, or make such enforceffirgmcially unattractive. For instance, in Septemp011, th
United States enacted the America Invents Act, viitdl permit enhanced third-party actions for daaging
patents and implement a first-to-invent system, ané\pril 2012, Australia enacted the Intellect@abperty
Laws Amendment (Raising the Bar) Act, which progidiégher standards for obtaining patents. Thesemef
could result in increased costs to protect oullgtdtial property or limit our ability to patent oproducts in
these jurisdictions.
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Additionally, certain foreign governments have gated that compulsory licenses to patents may be
granted in the case of national emergencies, wdocid diminish or eliminate sales and profits fridrose
regions and materially adversely affect our opegatesults and financial condition.

Likewise, in the United States and other countrescurrently hold issued trademark registratiams
have trademark applications pending, any of whiely fve the subject of a governmental or third pabjgction.
which could prevent the maintenance or issuantbeofame and thus create the potential need tarrélar
relabel a product. As our products mature, ouanei on our trademarks to differentiate us fromoaumpetitor:
increases and as a result, if we are unable teeptekiird parties from adopting, registering omgsirademarks
and trade dress that infringe, dilute or otherwiséate our trademark rights, our business couldnagerially
adversely affected.

Our competitive position is also dependent uporatented trade secrets, which generally may be
difficult to protect. Others may independently depesubstantially equivalent proprietary informatiand
techniques or may otherwise gain access to oue sadrets, trade secrets may be disclosed or wenatde
able to protect our rights to unpatented tradeetecr

Many of our vaccine products and other productdaszd on or incorporate proprietary information,
including proprietary master seeds and proprietanyatented adjuvant formulations. We actively seefirotect
our proprietary information, including our tradessets and proprietary know-how, by requiring oupéoyees,
consultants, other advisors and other third pattiexecute confidentiality agreements upon themmentement
of their employment, engagement or other relatigndbespite these efforts and precautions, we neayrtable
to prevent a third party from copying or otherwdddaining and using our trade secrets or our attieliectual
property without authorization and legal remedies/mot adequately compensate us for the damagesday
such unauthorized use. Further, others may indepelydand lawfully develop substantially similaridentical
products that circumvent our intellectual propdayymeans of alternative designs or processes enete.

The misappropriation and infringement of our irgetal property, particularly in foreign countries
where the laws may not protect our proprietarytagts fully as in the United States, may occur evieen we
take steps to prevent it. In the future, we mapdmy to patent lawsuits and other intellectualemty rights
claims that are expensive and time consuming, faeddlved adversely, could have a significant iotmen our
business and financial condition. In the future,megy not be able to enforce intellectual propengt telates to
our products for various reasons, including licemsstrictions and other restrictions imposed bsdtparties,
and that the costs of doing so may outweigh theevaf doing so, and this could have a material emdvienpact
on our business and financial condition.

Increased regulation or decreased governmental ficéal support for the raising, processing or consipiion
of food animals could reduce demand for our aninfa¢alth products.

Companies in the animal health industry are sultfeektensive and increasingly stringent regulation
If livestock producers are adversely affected by negulations or changes to existing regulatiomsy tmay
reduce herd sizes or become less profitable araly@sult, they may reduce their use of our prajwehich may
materially adversely affect our operating resuftd inancial condition. Furthermore, adverse retijoifes relatec
directly or indirectly, to the use of one or mofear products may injure livestock producers’ nergosition.
More stringent regulation of the livestock indusbryour products could have a material adverseetie our
operating results and financial condition. Alsompandustrial producers, including livestock prodrs; benefit
from governmental subsidies, and if such subsidie® to be reduced or eliminated, these comparégs m
become less profitable and, as a result, may reithedeuse of our products.

We have substantial debt and interest payment regmients that may restrict our future operations a
impair our ability to meet our obligations under oundebtedness. Restrictions imposed by our outsiiag
indebtedness, including the restrictions containiedour Credit Facilities, may limit our ability taoperate our
business and to finance our future operations orgital needs or to engage in other business actisti

As of June 30, 2015, we had $287.1 million aggegatstanding indebtedness (reflects the principal
amount of our Term B loan and capitalized leasé@abibns), $3.0 million outstanding borrowings undar
revolving credit facility (together with the Terml&an, the “Credit Facilities”) and
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$14.0 million of outstanding letters of credit. $adt to restrictions in our Credit Facilities, waynincur
significant additional indebtedness. If we and suipsidiaries incur significant additional indebtesls, the
related risks that we face could intensify.

Our substantial debt may have important conseq@eae instance, it could:

» make it more difficult for us to satisfy our &incial obligations, including those relating to the
Credit Facilities;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portioaryf cash flow from operations to the payment of
interest and principal due under our debt, whichmduce funds available for other business
purposes, including capital expenditures and adpns;

* increase our vulnerability to general adversenemic and industry conditions;

« limit our flexibility in planning for or reactingotchanges in our business and the industry in w
we operate;

» place us at a competitive disadvantage compaithdsome of our competitors that may have less
debt and better access to capital resources; and

« limit our ability to obtain additional financingquired to fund working capital and capital
expenditures and for other general corporate pepos

Our ability to satisfy our obligations and to redwaur total debt depends on our future operating
performance and on economic, financial, competiive other factors, many of which are beyond oatrob
Our business may not generate sufficient cash fimad, future financings may not be available to jaev
sufficient net proceeds, to meet these obligatmrte successfully execute our business strategy.

The terms of the Credit Facilities contain cer@renants that limit our ability and that of our
subsidiaries to create liens, merge or consolidligpose of assets, incur indebtedness and guasamépurcha:
or redeem capital stock and indebtedness, makaicénvestments or acquisitions, enter into certansaction
with affiliates or change the nature of our businés a result of these covenants and restrictiwasyill be
limited in how we conduct our business, and we b&ynable to raise additional debt or equity firagcto
compete effectively or to take advantage of nevirtass opportunities. The terms of any future indébéss we
may incur could include more restrictive covenawi{e. may not be able to maintain compliance with the
covenants in any of our debt instruments in therfutand, if we fail to do so, we may not be ablelitain
waivers from the lenders and/ or amend the covenant

We may not be able to generate sufficient casheovie all of our indebtedness and may be forcedake
other actions to satisfy our obligations under oundebtedness, which may not be successful.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or refieaour debt obligations depends on our financial
condition and operating performance, which areextttip prevailing economic and competitive condisi@and t
certain financial, business, legislative, regubatand other factors beyond our control. We may rtable to
maintain a level of cash flows from operating atitt¢ sufficient to permit us to pay the principald interest on
our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we doul
face substantial liquidity problems and could beéd to reduce or delay investments and capitadmditures,
or to dispose of material assets or operationst, alir dividend policy, seek additional debt origqoapital or
restructure or refinance our indebtedness. We mapa able to effect any such alternative measumes
commercially reasonable terms or at all and, e/endcessful, those alternative actions may notalls to me
our scheduled debt service obligations. The instntsithat govern our indebtedness may restricability to
dispose of assets and may restrict the use of dsdeom those dispositions and may also restucability to
raise debt or equity capital to be used to rephgrahdebtedness when it becomes due. We may radtlbdéo
consummate those dispositions or to obtain procieeals amount sufficient to meet any debt servigiégations
when due.
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In addition, we conduct our operations through subsidiaries. Accordingly, repayment of our
indebtedness will depend on the generation of flashby our subsidiaries, including our internatidn
subsidiaries, and their ability to make such cagtilable to us, by dividend, debt repayment or otlge. Our
subsidiaries may not have any obligation to paywatsdue on our indebtedness or to make fundsadlaifor
that purpose. Our subsidiaries may not be ablertmay not be permitted to, make distributionsrtal#e us to
make payments in respect of our indebtedness. &idwdidiary is a distinct legal entity, and undetaia
circumstances, legal, tax and contractual restristimay limit our ability to obtain cash from ouwlbsidiaries or
may subject any transfer of cash from our subsabao substantial tax liabilities. In the everdttive do not
receive distributions from our subsidiaries, we rhayunable to make required principal and intgragtments
on our indebtedness.

Our inability to generate sufficient cash flowssttisfy our debt obligations, or to refinance our
indebtedness on commercially reasonable termsail, abay materially adversely affect our operatiagults,
financial condition and liquidity and our abilitg satisfy our obligations under our indebtednegsagrdividend
on our common stock.

We are subject to change of control provisiol

We are a party to certain contractual arrangentbatsare subject to change of control provisions. |
this context, “change of control” is generally aefil as including (a) any person or group, othar Ma Jack C.
Bendheim and his family and affiliates (the curreolders of approximately 92.2% of the combinedngpt
power of all classes of our outstanding commonigtdiecoming the beneficial owner of more than 5if%the
total voting power of our stock, and (b) a changarny twelve month period in the majority of themfers of
the Board that is not approved by Mr. Bendheim ankis family and affiliates or by the majority difectors in
office at the start of such period.

Mr. Bendheim and his family and affiliates may cbedo dispose of part or all of their stakes in us
and/or may cease to exercise the current levebuatiral they have over the appointment and remofedember:
of our Board. Any such changes may trigger a “cleasfgcontrol” event that could result in us beiogced to
repay the Credit Facilities or lead to the terniorabf a significant contract to which we are atpalf any such
event occurs, this may negatively affect our finahcondition and operating results. In additiom may not
have sufficient funds to finance repayment of ahguzh indebtedness upon any such “change in ddntro

We depend on sophisticated information technologydanfrastructure.

We rely on various information systems to manageoperations, and we increasingly depend on
parties and applications on virtualized, or “cldudfrastructure to operate and support our infatiora
technology systems. These third parties includgelastablished vendors as well as small, privatetyed
companies. Failure by these providers to adequaggljice our operations or a change in controhsolvency ¢
these providers could have an adverse effect obwiness, which in turn may materially adverséigc our
business, financial condition or results of operai

We may be required to write down goodwill or iddiatble intangible assets

Under GAAP, if we determine goodwill or identifigbintangible assets are impaired, we will be
required to write down these assets and recordvacash impairment charge. As of June 30, 2015,ade h
goodwill of $12.6 million and identifiable intangible assééss accumulated amortization, $87.3 million.
Identifiable intangible assets consist primarilydef/eloped technology rights and patents, customer
relationships, distribution agreements and tradeasaand trademarks.

Determining whether an impairment exists and thelwarhof the potential impairment involves
quantitative data and qualitative criteria thatlzased on estimates and assumptions requirindfiseymti
management judgment. Future events or new infoomatiay change management'’s valuation of goodwitiror
intangible asset in a short amount of time. Théninand amount of impairment charges recorded in ou
consolidated statements of operations and writerdawcorded in our consolidated balance sheetsl vauny if
management’s conclusions change. Any impairmegbofiwill or identifiable intangible assets could/éa
material adverse effect on our financial conditionl results of operations.
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We may be unable to adequately protect our custa’ privacy or we may fail to comply with privacy law

The protection of customer, employee and compatg idaritical and the regulatory environment
surrounding information security, storage, usegessing, disclosure and privacy is demanding, thigh
frequent imposition of new and changing requirerselm addition, our customers expect that we vdéguately
protect their personal information. Any actual ergeived significant breakdown, intrusion, intetiap, cyber-
attack or corruption of customer, employee or camypata or our failure to comply with federal, stdbcal an
foreign privacy laws could damage our reputatiod @sult in lost sales, fines and lawsuits. Despite
considerable efforts and technology to secure omputer network, security could be compromisedfidential
information could be misappropriated or systemugisons could occur. Such failures could materiatiiyersel
affect our financial condition and results of opiena

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common &tk

Our multiple class structure and the concentratiar our voting power with certain of our stockholdemwill
limit your ability to influence corporate mattergnd conflicts of interest between certain of ounskholders
and us or other investors could arise in the future

As of September 2, 2015, BFI Co., LLC (“BFI") beivilly owns 72,000 shares of our Class A
common stock and 21,149,811 shares of our ClagsyBnon stock, which together represent approximately
92.2% of the combined voting power of all classiesur outstanding common stock. As of Septemb@025,
our other stockholders, collectively own interegjgresenting approximately 7.8% of the combineéhgapowe!
of all classes of our outstanding common stock.aBee of our multiple class structure and the canaton of
voting power with BFI, BFI will continue to be altie control all matters submitted to our stockhaddier
approval for so long as BFI holds common stockesenting greater than 50% of the combined votingepof
all classes of our outstanding common stock. BHItherefore have significant influence over managet and
affairs and control the approval of all mattersuieigg stockholder approval, including the electafrdirectors
and significant corporate transactions, such asr@en or other sale of the Company or its assatshé
foreseeable future.

We are classified as “ controlled compan” and, as a result, we qualify for, and intend to yebn, exemption:
from certain corporate governance requirements. Ywill not have the same protections afforded
stockholders of companies that are subject to suehuirements

BFI controls a majority of the combined voting powé all classes of our outstanding common stock.
As a result, we are a “controlled company” withie imeaning of the NASDAQ corporate governance staisd
Under NASDAQ rules, a company of which more tha#o58f the voting power is held by an individual, gpo
or another company is a “controlled company” ang elact not to comply with certain corporate goarce
requirements, including:

» the requirement that a majority of the Boardsists of independent directors;

» the requirement that we have a nominating amgarate governance committee and that it is
composed entirely of independent directors;

» the requirement that we have a compensation ¢tieerand that it is composed entirely of
independent directors; and

« the requirement for an annual performance evialuaf the nominating and corporate governance
and compensation committees.

We utilize and intend to continue to utilize thesemptions. As a result, while we currently have a
majority of independent directors:

* we may not have a majority of independent doectn the future;
» we will not have a nominating and corporate gnaace committee;

* our compensation committee will not consistrefyi of independent directors; and
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we will not be required to have an annual penfance evaluation of the compensation committee.

Accordingly, you will not have the same protectiafforded to stockholders of companies that are
subject to all of the NASDAQ corporate governareguirements.

Our stock price may be volatile or may decline regjass of our operating performanc

The market price of our Class A common stock magttlate significantly in response to a number of
factors, many of which we cannot control, includthgse described under “—Risks Related to Our Bassh
and “—Risks Related to Our Indebtedness” and theviing:

changes in financial estimates by any securéiesdysts who follow our Class A common stock,
our failure to meet these estimates or failurhobe analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of
our Class A common stock;

downgrades by any securities analysts who fobbowClass A common stock;
future sales of our Class A common stock byaddficers, directors and significant stockholders;

market conditions or trends in our industrytme €conomy as a whole and, in particular, in the
animal health industry;

investors’ perceptions of our prospects;

announcements by us or our competitors of siganit contracts, acquisitions, joint ventures or
capital commitments; and

changes in key personnel.

In addition, the stock markets have experiencecemé price and volume fluctuations that have
affected and continue to affect the market pridesgaity securities of many companies. In the patsigkholder:
have instituted securities class action litigafiolfowing periods of market volatility. If we weiavolved in
securities litigation, we could incur substantiasts, and our resources and the attention of mamagecould b
diverted from our business.

Our majority stockholder has the ability to contrsignificant corporate activities and our majorit
stockholde’s interests may not coincide with yours.

As of September 2, 2015, approximately 92.2% ofcthrabined voting power of all classes of our
outstanding common stock is held by BFI. As a testits ownership, so long as it holds a majoafyhe
combined voting power of all classes of our outdiiagt common stock, BFI will have the ability to ¢mi the
outcome of matters submitted to a vote of stockérsléind, through our Board of Directors, the gbttitcontrol
decision-making with respect to our business divecind policies. Matters over which BFI, direahy
indirectly, exercises control include:

the election of our Board of Directors and tppa@ntment and removal of our officers;

mergers and other business combination tramses;tincluding proposed transactions that would
result in our stockholders receiving a premiumefir their shares;

other acquisitions or dispositions of businessesssets;
incurrence of indebtedness and the issuancguitiyesecurities;
repurchase of stock and payment of dividendd; an

the issuance of shares to management undegaity éncentive plans.

Even if BFI's ownership of our shares falls belomajority of the combined voting power of all
classes of our outstanding common stock, it mayilcoe to be able to influence or effectively cohtrar

decisions.
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Future sales of our Class A common stock, or theqeption in the public markets that these sales nugur,
may depress our stock price.

Sales of substantial amounts of our Class A comstack in the public market, or the perception that
these sales could occur, could adversely affegptive of our Class A common stock and could impair
ability to raise capital through the sale of adudlitil shares. In addition, subject to certain retsbns on
converting Class B common stock into Class A comstook, all of our outstanding shares of Class Broon
stock may be converted into Class A common stocksaid in the public market by existing stockhofdexs of
September 2, 2015, we had 17,952,757 shares of 8lasmmon stock and 21,149,811 shares of Class B
common stock outstanding.

BFI, which holds all of our outstanding Class B e¢nam stock, has the right to require us to register
the sales of their shares under the Securitiesuhcter the terms of an agreement between us arbttiers of
these securities. In the future, we may also issueecurities in connection with investments auésitions.
The amount of shares of our Class A common statleid in connection with an investment or acquisitiould
constitute a material portion of our then-outstagdihares of our Class A common stock.

As an emerging growth company under the JOBS Actave eligible to take advantage of certain exemps
from various reporting requirements

We are an emerging growth company, as defineded@®BS Act, and we are eligible to take
advantage of certain exemptions from various répprequirements that are applicable to other jubli
companies that are not emerging growth compantessd exemptions include, but are not limited dondt
being required to comply with the auditor attestatiequirements of Section 404, (ii) reduced d=ate
obligations regarding executive compensation inpasiodic reports and proxy statements, and @neptions
from the requirements of holding a nonbinding adryis/ote on executive compensation and stockholder
approval of any golden parachute payments not pusly approved. We have taken, and plan to contionue
take, advantage of some or all of these exemptlbmge do continue to take advantage of any of¢hes
exemptions, we do not know if some investors viltifour Class A common stock less attractive asalt. The
result may be a less active trading market forsaaurities and our security prices may be moreti@lave
could remain an emerging growth company until thdiest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in whiohr
annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) tie that we become a “large accelerated fésrtlefined in Ru
12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would occur if terket value of our common stock held by nonaféls
exceeds $700 million as of the last business dayomost recently completed second fiscal quafiigrihe
date on which we have issued more than $1 billoman€onvertible debt during the preceding three yeaog:
or (iv) June 2019, which is the end of the fisaaduyfollowing the fifth anniversary of our initiplblic offering.

Pursuant to the JOBS Act, our independent registeqgublic accounting firm will not be required to st to
the effectiveness of our internal control over finaial reporting pursuant to Section 404 for so lorag we are
an “emerging growth company.”

Section 404 requires annual management assessofi¢iéseffectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting, starting with the annual refor the year ending June 30, 2015, that we fité the SEC,
and generally requires in the same report a rdpooiur independent registered public accounting fin the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahc@porting. However, under the JOBS Act, our inslegent
registered public accounting firm will not be reaa to attest to the effectiveness of our intecaailtrol over
financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 unt are no longer an “emerging growth company.” Wddo
remain an emerging growth company until the edrtiégi) the last day of the first fiscal year in whiohr
annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) tie that we become a “large accelerated féartlefined in Ru
12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would occur if trket value of our common stock held by nonaféls
exceeds $700 million as of the last business dayomost recently completed second fiscal quafiigrihe
date on which we have issued more than $1 billoman€onvertible debt during the preceding three yeaog:
or (iv) June 2019, which is the end of the fisaaduyfollowing the fifth anniversary of our initipublic offering.
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As a public company, we are subject to financialdaather reporting and corporate governance requirents
that did not previously apply to us and that may diéficult for us to satisfy and may divert managemt’s
attention from our business.

As a public company, we are required to file anraunal quarterly reports and other information
pursuant to the Exchange Act with the SEC. We egieired to ensure that we have the ability to meepa
consolidated financial statements that comply \BItC reporting requirements on a timely basis. Viéeatso
subject to other reporting and corporate governaageirements, including the applicable stock ergedisting
standards and certain provisions of the Sarbandsy@ct and the regulations promulgated thereunabich
impose significant compliance obligations uponSsecifically, we are required to:

e prepare and distribute periodic reports andragterkholder communications in compliance with
our obligations under the federal securities lam a@pplicable stock exchange rules;

* maintain compliance and internal audit functitivet are more comprehensive;
* maintain effective disclosure controls and pcages;

» evaluate and maintain an effective system of irlecontrol over financial reporting, and repor
management’s assessment thereof, in compliancethdtrequirements of Section 404 and the
related rules and regulations of the SEC and thdicGompany Accounting Oversight Board;

* continue to enhance our investor relations fiongt
e maintain internal policies, including those tilg to disclosure controls and procedures; and

» involve and retain outside legal counsel andantants in connection with the activities listed
above.

As a public company, we are required to commitifigamt resources and management time and
attention to the above-listed requirements, whimtse us to incur significant costs and which mageh strain
on our systems and resources. As a result, ourgeamnt’s attention might be diverted from otheriess
concerns. Compliance with these requirements gageficant demands on our legal, accounting andrfce
staff and on our accounting, financial and inforierasystems and increase our legal and accountimgpliance
costs as well as our compensation expense as veebiean or may be required to hire additional actiogntax,
finance and legal staff with the requisite techhiceowledge, particularly after we are no longer‘amerging
growth company.”

Our management and independent registered publicamting firm have determined that there are matar
weaknesses in our internal controls over financiaporting. If we fail to maintain an effective syat of
internal controls over financial reporting, we mayot be able to accurately report our financial relsst

Our management and independent registered puldauating firm have identified material
weaknesses in our internal controls over finangpbrting and our audit committee has agreed wiigh t
assessment of our management and independeneredigiublic accounting firm. A material weakness is
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control over financial reporting such thare is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstateroétiie annual or interim financial statements wét be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Our manegeand independent registered public accountingtfave
identified the following material weaknesses in mernal controls over financial reporting:

* We did not maintain effective internal contrtdsensure processing and reporting of valid
transactions are complete, accurate, and timelgciSgally, we have not designed and
implemented formal accounting policies and procesdinat define how transactions across the
business cycles should be initiated, recorded,gased and reported and appropriately authorized
and approved.

» We did not maintain effective internal controls othee accounting for and disclosures of techr
accounting matters in the consolidated financitlesthents. Specifically, we did not maintain a
sufficient complement of resources with an appetprievel of accounting
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knowledge, experience and training commensurate out structure and financial reporting
requirements.

* We did not maintain effective internal contrtiat restrict access to key financial systems and
records to appropriate users and ensure approgegtegation of duties is maintained. Certain
personnel had access to financial application, arog and data beyond that needed to perform
their individual job responsibilities and withoutdependent monitoring. In addition, certain
financial personnel had incompatible duties thimvedd for the creation, review and processing of
certain financial data without independent reviewd authorization.

Each of these material weaknesses could resultriatarial misstatement of our annual or interim
financial statements that possibly would not bevenéed or detected on a timely basis. We are ctlyren
evaluating the controls and procedures we willglesind put in place to address these weaknessqsaamtb
implement appropriate measures as part of thisteffbe measures may include additional staffing ather
resources to strengthen internal controls and §ii@hneporting. Failure to maintain an effectivestm of
internal controls over financial reporting could/ba material adverse effect on our business, diahnondition
and our results of operations. If we are unsucoéssfemediating the material weakness, or if wHes other
deficiencies or material weaknesses in our intezoatrols in the future, we may be unable to refinancial
information in a timely and accurate manner armbitld result in a material misstatement of our ahioua
interim financial statements that would not be praéed or detected on a timely basis, which couldea
investors to lose confidence in our financial reéjpgr, negatively affect the trading price of ountoon stock,
and could cause a default under the agreementsrgogeur indebtedness.

Failure to comply with requirements to design, ingohent and maintain effective internal controls calhave
a material adverse effect on our business and stpdke.

As a public company, we have significant requiretsdor enhanced financial reporting and internal
controls. The process of designing and implemergffective internal controls is a continuous effiwat
requires us to anticipate and react to changesritbhasiness and the economic and regulatory envieots and
to expend significant resources to maintain a systtinternal controls that is adequate to satiafy reporting
obligations as a public company. If we are unablestablish or maintain appropriate internal finaheporting
controls and procedures, it could cause us tddaileet our reporting obligations on a timely bassult in
material misstatements in our consolidated findrst@ements and harm our operating results. litiaddwe
are required, pursuant to Section 404, to furnistpart by management on, among other things, the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahc@porting. This assessment includes disclosuangfmaterial
weaknesses identified by our management in oumateontrol over financial reporting and a statatrtbat oul
auditors have issued an attestation report onfthetiweness of our internal controls, providedtttzs long as w
are an “emerging growth company,” our independegistered public accounting firm will not be reqarto
attest to the effectiveness of our internal contrar financial reporting pursuant to Section 4Ddsting and
maintaining internal controls may divert our marragat’s attention from other matters that are imgatrto our
business. We may not be able to conclude on animgdasis that we have effective internal contraro
financial reporting in accordance with Section 404ur independent registered public accounting finay not
issue an unqualified opinion. If either we are uadab conclude that we have effective internal oaraver
financial reporting or our independent registerablic accounting firm is unable to provide us wét
unqualified opinion, investors could lose confidetirt our reported financial information, which cdllave a
material adverse effect on the trading price ofsiack.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents andl®&are law might discourage or delay acquisiti
attempts for us that you might consider favorable.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contaiovisions that may make the acquisition of the
Company more difficult without the approval of @ward of Directors. These provisions:

» authorize the issuance of undesignated prefestiak, the terms of which may be established and
the shares of which may be issued without stocldragproval, and which may include super
voting, special approval, dividend, or other rigbtgpreferences superior to the rights of the
holders of Class A common stock;
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» prohibit, at any time after BFI and its affiket cease to hold at least 50% of the combinedgotin
power of all classes of our outstanding commonkststockholder action by written consent,
without the express prior consent of the Board ioé@ors;

» provide that the Board of Directors is expresalghorized to make, alter or repeal our amended
and restated bylaws;

» establish advance notice requirements for notioing for elections to our Board of Directors or
for proposing matters that can be acted upon lokbktdders at stockholder meetings;

» establish a classified Board of Directors, assalt of which our Board of Directors will be
divided into three classes, with each class serfdngtaggered three-year terms, which prevents
stockholders from electing an entirely new Boar®wéctors at an annual meeting; and

* require, at any time after BFI and its affilisteease to hold at least 50% of the combined voting
power of all classes of our outstanding commonkstihe approval of holders of at least three
quarters of the combined voting power of all classieour outstanding common stock for
stockholders to amend the amended and restateddyglaamended and restated certificate of
incorporation.

These anti-takeover provisions and other provisiorder Delaware law could discourage, delay or
prevent a transaction involving a change in cordfdghe Company, even if doing so would benefit our
stockholders. These provisions could also discauprgxy contests and make it more difficult for yand other
stockholders to elect directors of your choosingd ncause us to take other corporate actions gsined

Our certificate of incorporation designates the Cawf Chancery of the State of Delaware as the satel
exclusive forum for certain types of actions andgeeedings that may be initiated by our stockholdevhich
could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain aafvorable judicial forum for disputes with us or oudirectors,
officers or employees.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that, jaab to limited exceptions, the Court of Chancefry o
the State of Delaware will be the sole and excrigdrum for (i) any derivative action or proceedbrgught on
our behalf, (i) any action asserting a claim afdwh of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our direstofficers or
other employees to us or our stockholders, (iij) action asserting a claim against us arising @nsto any
provision of the Delaware General Corporation Lawr, certificate of incorporation or our by-laws,(or) any
other action asserting a claim against us thabv®med by the internal affairs doctrine. Any parso entity
purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interestisras of our capital stock shall be deemed to hatiee of an
to have consented to the provisions of our cedtifi®f incorporation described above. This chofdermm
provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bgra claim in a judicial forum that it finds favotabior disputes
with us or our directors, officers or other emplegewhich may discourage such lawsuits againshdoar
directors, officers and employees. Alternativel\g tourt were to find these provisions of ourae=d certificate
of incorporation inapplicable to, or unenforceahbleespect of, one or more of the specified tygesctions or
proceedings, we may incur additional costs assettiaith resolving such matters in other jurisdieipwhich
could adversely affect our business, financial d@orand results of operations.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation codlhave the effect of preventing us from having thenefit of
certain business opportunities that we would othé&®be entitled to pursue.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that Bifid its affiliates are not required to offer coqter
opportunities of which they become aware to usandd, therefore, offer such opportunities insteadther
companies including affiliates of BFI. In the evémat BFI obtains business opportunities from whighmight
otherwise benefit but chooses not to present sppbrtunities to us, these provisions of our restagztificate
of incorporation could have the effect of prevegtirs from pursuing transactions or relationshijps tould
otherwise be in the best interests of our stoclkdrald
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We may not pay cash dividends in the future andaa®sult, you may not receive any return on invesnt
unless you are able to sell your Class A commorcktfor a price greater than your initial investment

Though we have a paid a quarterly dividend0f10 per share since September 2014 on our Blass
and Class B common stock and our Board of Diredtassdeclared a cash dividend®8f.10 per share on Class
A common stock and Class B common stock that islpi@yon September 23, 2015, any determinationyto pa
dividends in the future will be at the discretidroor Board of Directors and will depend upon resof
operations, financial condition, contractual resioins, and our ability to obtain funds from oubsidliaries to
meet our obligations. Accordingly, realization of&@n on your investment will depend on the apptimn of the
price of our Class A common stock.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment:

None.

Item 2. Properties

The following table lists our material properties:

Approx. sq.
Business Segment(: Location Owned/Leasec Footage Purpose(s)
Animal Health Beit Shemesh, Israel Owned/land 31,000 Manufacturing and
lease Research
Animal Health Braganca Paulista, Brazil Owned 44,000 Manufacturing and
Administrative
Animal Health Corvallis, Oregor Owned 5,000 Researct
Animal Health Guarulhos, Brazil Owned 1,294,000 Manufacturing, Sales,
Premixing, Research al
Administrative
Animal Health Naot Hovav, Israe Owned/land 140,000 Manufacturing and
lease Research
Mineral Nutrition ~ Omaha, Nebrask Owned 84,000 Manufacturing
Animal Health Petach Tikva, Isras Owned 60,000 Manufacturing
Animal Health anc  Quincy, lllinois Owned 325,000 Manufacturing, Sales,
Mineral Nutrition Research and
Administrative
Performance Santa Fe Springs, Owned 108,000 Manufacturing
Products California
Animal Health State College, Owned 13,000 Research
Pennsylvania
Animal Health St. Paul, Minnesot Leasec 4,200 Researct
Corporate Teaneck, New Jersey Leased 44,800 Corporate and

Administrative

In addition to the above facilities, we maintaikesaoffices throughout the world in countries intihg
the United States, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Argentidhile, the United Kingdom, Belgium, Turkey, kska
South Africa, China, Malaysia and Australia.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are from time to time subject to claims andéition arising in the ordinary course of business.
These claims and litigation may include, among iothings, allegations of violation of United Statexd foreigr
competition law, labor laws, consumer protectiomdaand Environmental Laws and regulations, as agll
claims or litigation relating to product liabilityntellectual property, securities, breach of cacdtrand tort. We
operate in multiple jurisdictions and, as a resultlaim in one jurisdiction may lead to claimsegulatory
penalties in other jurisdictions.
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In 2007, a mass tort lawsuit was commenced byss d@approximately 100 citizens who live in the
area of the Naot Hovav (formerly Ramat Hovav) IndakLocal Council in Israel, against the InduatiCouncil
and the State of Israel, and including as additideéendants 18 manufacturers in the Industrialr€du
including our Koffolk subsidiary. The lawsuit waaded on alleged injuries (including lung diseasgsiptoms
of cancer and miscarriages) resulting from the $tidal Council’s plants and the sewage treatmetilitias run
by the Industrial Council. In January 2013, theeBeSheva District Court rejected the plaintiffiichs. The
plaintiffs appealed the court’s judgement but withvd their appeal in September 2014. As a resutef
plaintiffs’ withdrawal of their appeal, the lawstias concluded with no liability on part of the Guany or our
Koffolk subsidiary.

We do not believe that the ultimate resolutionx$gng claims and litigation will have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, resuftegerations, liquidity or capital resources. Howgwne or
more unfavorable outcomes in any claim or litigatagainst us could have a material adverse effe¢hé
period in which they are resolved. In addition,athess of their merits or their ultimate outcormsegh matters
are costly, divert management’s attention and materially adversely affect our reputation, everegolved in
our favor.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure:

None.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases o
Equity Securities
es

Market Information for Common Stock

Since April 11, 2014, our Class A common stock een traded on NASDAQ under the trading
symbol “PAHC.” Our Class B common stock is notdisor traded on any stock exchange. At June 3,201
there were 17,747,793 Class A common shares odistgrand the closing sales price of our Class iroon
stock was $38.94. The table below sets forth tga bind low sales prices of our common stock forgiheerters

indicated.
Quarter ended High Low
June 30, 201 $23.7¢  $15.1(
September 30, 201 $23.12 $17.8:
December 31, 201 $33.8¢  $21.01
March 31, 201! $37.5¢ $26.9¢
June 30, 201 $39.1¢ $31.2¢

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, we didsettany unregistered securities nor did we purehas
any of our equity securities.

Holders of Record

As of September 2, 2015, there were 17,952, 75%starour Class A common stock outstanding,
which were held by 1 stockholder of record, notuding beneficial owners of shares registered iminee or
street name. As of September 2, 2015, there wel@l2,B11 shares of our Class B common stock owtistgn
which were held by one stockholder of record. Esttdre of Class B common stock is convertible atteng at
the option of the holder into one share of ClasAwmon stock. Information about 5% beneficial overafrour
common stock is incorporated by reference fromdikeussion under the headiBgcurity Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Managemin our 2015 Proxy Statement.

Dividend Policy

During fiscal year 2015, we paid quarterly dividerd $0.10 per share to holders of our Class A and
Class B common stock. We intend to pay regulartgugrdividends to holders of our Class A and CBss
common stock out of assets legally available far purpose. On July 27, 2015, our Board of Directigclared
a $0.10 per share quarterly dividend to holdergobrd as of September 2, 2015 of our Class A dass@®
common stock, payable September 23, 2015. Anydudetermination to pay dividends will depend upan o
results of operations, financial condition, capitduirements, our ability to obtain funds from subsidiaries
and other factors that our Board of Directors desstessant. Additionally, the terms of our currentiaany futur
agreements governing our indebtedness could liamigbility to pay dividends or make other distribus.

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph is not “soliciting materialk not deemed “filed” with the SEC and is not to
be incorporated by reference in any filing of then@pany under the Securities Act of 1933, as amemaede
Exchange Act

The following graph shows a comparison from Apfi| 2014 (the date our Class A common stock
commenced trading on NASDAQ) through June 30, 26i.&he cumulative stockholder return of our Class
common stock, the S&P 500 Index, the NASDAQ Comiedsidex, the Russell 2000 Index and S&P
Pharmaceuticals Index. The graph assumes that@a8hvested in our Class A common stock and e&teo
aforementioned indexes at the market close on AfriR014. The stock price performance shown omtapgh
is not necessarily indicative of future stock priegformance, and we do not make any projectiorigtafe
stockholder returns.
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Comparison of Cumulative Stockholder Returns
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Date
ta

The following table presents our selected const#ifinancial data and certain other financial data
The balance sheet data as of June 30, 2015, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the results of operatiotzsatal
cash flows data for the years then ended wereelbfrom our consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial data and other financiahgatsented below should be read in conjunctioh our
consolidated financial statements and the relatéelsrthereto, under the sections entitled “Finar®tiements
and Supplementary Data” and “Management’s Discasaiml Analysis of Financial Condition and Resufts o
Operations.”

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Results of operations data

Net sales $748,59. $691,91: $653,15. $654,10: $618,33:
Cost of goods sold 512,21¢ 484,13¢ 474,18  489,96: 471,66¢
Gross profit 236,37. 207,77* 178,96: 164,13¢ 146,66
Selling, general and administrative expenses 148,70  143,98. 122,23 114,81 105,42
Operating incom: 87,66¢ 63,79 56,73 49,32t 41,23¢
Interest expense, n 14,30¢ 32,96: 35,62¢ 35,41¢ 34,28¢
Foreign currency (gains) losses, (5,40() 1,75: 3,10¢ 1,19: (5,75¢)
Loss on extinguishment of de — 22,77 — — 20,00:
Other (income) expense, net — — 151 (400) 59¢
Income (loss) before income tax 78,76 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 13,11 (7,88¢)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 18,48: 9,43t (7,042) 6,13¢ 5,03t
Net income (loss $ 60,28 $ (3,127) $ 24,89 $ 6,97¢ $(12,92:)
Net income (loss) per shal

basic $ 158 $ (01C)$ 08 $ 02 $ (0.42)

diluted $ 151 $ (01C)$ 08 $ 02 $ (0.42)

Weighted average common shares outstanding
basic and diluted

basic 38,96¢ 32,19 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 30,45¢

diluted 39,81¢ 32,19: 30,45¢ 30,45¢ 30,45¢
Dividends per shar $ 04 $ 08 $ 01C % — $ 1.6/
Other financial data
Adjusted EBITDA®Y $110,01¢ $ 90,597 $ 75,75« $ 66,85: $ 57,93:
Cash provided (used) by operating activi® 68,70« (712) 1,437  31,98¢ (4,35¢)
Capital expenditure 20,05¢ 19,84¢ 19,94° 14,82« 21,63t
As of June 30 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

(in thousands)
Balance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalel $ 29,21¢ $ 11,827 $ 27,36¢ $ 53,90C $ 48,59¢
Working capital® 175,98t 177,99¢ 153,67 127,47. 136,38
Total asset 493,31 472,32: 474,14: 440,90¢ 435,69
Total debt® 289,51 289,39: 365,60 350,12: 357,99¢
Long-term debt and other liabilitie 352,35° 344,73t 427,67t 403,27. 389,31
Total stockholder equity (deficit) 29,62¢ 15,14¢  (68,93¢) (88,22¢) (69,06¢)

(1) See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firsu@ondition and Results of Operations—General
description of no-GAAP financial measur® for descriptions of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITD.
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@)

©)

(4)

For the Years Ended June 3(

Net income (loss

Plus:
Interest expense, n
Provision (benefit) for income tax
Depreciation and amortization

EBITDA

Acquisitiontelated accrued compensal
Loss on insurance clai
Foreign currency (gains) losses,
Loss on extinguishment of de
Other (income) expense, net
Adjusted EBITDA

Cash provided (used) by operating activities:

For the Years Ended June 3(

Adjusted EBITDA

Interest paic

Income taxes pai

Payment of premiums and costs on
extinguished debt

Changes in operating assets and liabilitie
and other items

Net cash provided (used) by operat
activities

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

$ 60,28 $(3,127) $24,89: $6,97¢  $(12,92:)

14,30¢ 32,96: 35,62¢ 35,41¢ 34,28¢

18,48: 9,43¢ (7,042) 6,13¢ 5,03t

21,60« 21,45; 19,02 17,527 16,69¢

114,67. 60,72 72,50( 66,06( 43,09¢

747 — — — —

— 5,35( — —
(5,400) 1,752 3,10¢ 1,192 (5,75¢)

— 22,77 — — 20,00z

— — 151 (40C) 59z

$110,01¢ $90,59° $75,75¢  $66,85: $ 57,93:

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

$110,01¢ $90,597 $75,75¢ $66,85: $57,93.
(12,912) (45,37() (33,82¢) (34,05¢) (30,07¢)
(10,78() (12,207)  (7,061)  (7,2171)  (3,79¢)
— (17,20%) — — (15,57¢)
(17,627) (16,527) (33,437) 6,41z (12,83¢)
$68,70¢ $ (71z) $ 1,437 $31,98¢ $ (4,35¢9)

We define working capital as total current assexsl(iding cash & cash equivalents) less total citrre
liabilities (excluding current portion of long-terdebt).

Total debt includes revolving credit facility, cant and long-term portions of long-term debt and

capitalized lease obligations.
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Item 7. Managemen’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Introduction

Our management’s discussion and analysis of fimdeondition and results of operations (“MD&A”)
is provided to assist readers in understandingoetformance, as reflected in the results of ouratmms, our
financial condition and our cash flows. The follogidiscussion summarizes the significant factdiectihg our
consolidated operating results, financial conditiaquidity and cash flows as of and for the pesiquesented
below. This MD&A should be read in conjunction witie “Selected Financial Data” and our consolidated
financial statements and related notes theretaded under the section entitled “Financial Statesand
Supplementary Data.” Our future results could diffeaterially from our historical performance agauit of
various factors such as those discussed in “RiskoFsl and “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Overview of our business

Phibro Animal Health Corporation is a global divées animal health and mineral nutrition company.
We develop, manufacture and market products fapacbrange of food animals including poultry, swibeef
and dairy cattle and aquaculture. Our products pedgent, control and treat diseases, enhancdiantto help
improve health and performance and contribute tart&d mineral nutrition. In addition to animal tleand
mineral nutrition products, we manufacture and reasipecific ingredients for use in the personadcar
automotive, industrial chemical and chemical catailydustries. We sell more than 1,400 productepregions
in over 65 countries to approximately 2,900 custeme

Factors affecting our performance

Industry growth

According to Vetnosis, a research and consulting fipecializing in global animal health and
veterinary medicine, the global livestock animadltte sector represented approximately $13.6 bilibsales in
2013. The market grew at a compound annual groatthaf 6.2% between 2006 and 2013 and, excludiag th
impact of foreign exchange, the market is projettegrow at a compound annual growth rate of apgprately
5.8% per year between 2014 and 2019. We believmbfmopulation growth, the growth of the global dia
class and the productivity improvements neededdllisnitations of arable land and water suppliegeha
supported and will continue to support this growth.

Regulatory Developmen

The issue of the potential transfer of antibactegsistance from bacteria from fopdeducing animal
to human bacterial pathogens, and the causalityrapdct of that transfer, are the subject of glazééntific anc
regulatory discussion. Antibacterials refer to neales that can be used to treat or prevent bakheféations
and are a sub-categorization of the products tladenip our medicated feed additives portfoliosdme
countries, this issue has led to government réisinis on the use of specific antibacterials in séooel-
producing animals, regardless of the route of adnation (in feed, water, intramammary, topicajectable or
other route of administration). These restrictiars more prevalent in countries where animal pndteplentiful
and governments are willing to take action evenmthere is scientific uncertainty. In December 20h8 FDA
announced a plan to phase out over a thiesg-period the use of medically important antieeats administere
in animal feed or water for growth promotion in éoproducing animals. Medically important antibaiztisr
include classes that are prescribed in animal antbin health and are listed in the Appendix of tBAFCVM
Guidance for Industry (GFI) #152. The FDA plan atijges are described in GFI #209 and provide fer th
continued use of medically important antibacterialfod-producing animals for treatment, contnatia
prevention of disease (“therapeutic” use) undestifervision of a veterinarian. The FDA indicatealt tit took
this action to help preserve the efficacy of meltliidenportant antibacterials to treat infectionshamans.

In the United States, the antibacterial productiiwiour poultry business, our largest busineghim
region, as well as our cattle business, have buphoged therapeutic and non-therapeutic indicatidves
believe, based on current producer usage pattdatsthe large majority of use of our productshese
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segments is for therapeutic purposes. We currgethgrate a portion of our revenues from antibaadtproducts
sold for use in turkey and swine in the United &athere we do not currently have therapeutic cldirat
match our customers’ usage patterns. We intendgore that our antibacterial product offeringsiarill
alignment with the FDA’s guidance documents witthia FDA's three-year implementation period, and wil
pursue both new and additional therapeutic clamnshfese products with the FDA. However, there lmaimo
assurance that we will be successful in obtainirghslaims. While it is difficult to predict exagtwhat impact
the removal of non-therapeutic claims for our piiduhat are medically important antibacteriald uliimately
have on our sales, we estimate that, based orugtoroers’ usage patterns, had we voluntarily decide
withdraw all of our non-therapeutic claims for taggoducts in the United States, and did not agchaw
therapeutic claims for these products, our MFAs @thér net sales would have been reduced by appabely
$10 to $15 million for the year ended June 30, 2015

Competition

The animal health industry is highly competitivee\believe many of our competitors are conducting
R&D activities in areas served by our products imnareas in which we are developing products. Our
competitors include the animal health businessésrgé pharmaceutical companies and specialty drigsth
businesses. In addition to competition from esshiglil participants, there could be new entrantsg@himal
health medicines and vaccines industry in the &tBrincipal methods of competition vary dependinghe
region, species, product category or individuabpias, including reliability, reputation, qualifyrice, service
and promotion to veterinary professionals, pet awiaad livestock producers.

Foreign exchange

We conduct operations in many areas of the wankehlving transactions denominated in a variety of
currencies. In fiscal year 2015, we generated aqmately 36% of our revenues from operations oetsite
U.S. Although a portion of our revenues are denaieith in various currencies, the selling priceshefrhajority
of our sales outside the United States are referkimcU.S. dollars, and as a result, our revenags hot been
significantly directly affected by currency movensenNe are subject to currency risk to the exteat bur cost
are denominated in currencies other than thosehiohwe earn revenues. We manufacture some of ajorm
products in Brazil and Israel and production ceséslargely denominated in local currencies, wittikeselling
prices of the products are largely set in U.S.atsllAs such, we are exposed to changes in castoofs sold
resulting from currency movements and may not be tabadjust our selling prices to offset such moeats. In
addition, we incur selling and administrative exggsin various currencies and are exposed to ckamgech
expenses resulting from currency movements. Becawsinancial statements are reported in U.S.adg)l
changes in currency exchange rates between theddll& and other currencies have had, and wilticoe to
have, an impact on our results of operations.

Climate

The animal health industry and demand for manyuofamimal health products in a particular region
are affected by changing disease pressures ané#ther conditions, as usage of our products folleavging
weather patterns and weather-related pressuresdisgases. As a result, we may experience reganhl
seasonal fluctuations in our results of operations.

In addition, livestock producers depend on thelaldity of natural resources, including abundant
rainfall to sustain large supplies of drinking watgrasslands and grain production. Their aninfadsiith and
their ability to operate could be adversely affddfehey experience a shortage of fresh watertddaiman
population growth or floods, droughts or other weatconditions. In the event of adverse weatheditioms or
a shortage of fresh water, livestock producers maghase less of our products.

Product development initiative

Our future success depends on both our existingugtoortfolio, including our ability to obtain @s-
clearances enabling the use of our medicated pt®dtuconjunction with other products, approval
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for use of our products with new species, apprémahew claims for our products, approval of ousgarcts in
new markets, and our pipeline of new productsuidiclg new products that we may develop throught join
ventures and products that we are able to obtadugf license or acquisition. The majority of o&mR
programs focus on product lifecycle developmentctvits defined as R&D programs that leverage engsti
animal health products by adding new species @mslaachieving approvals in new markets or creatieny
combinations and reformulations. We commit subsaffort, funds and other resources to expanding
product approvals and R&D, both through our ownickteéd resources and through collaborations witld th
parties.

Recent Development:

MJB Transactions

In January 2015, we entered into a CollaboratiahRistribution Agreement (the “Collaboration
Agreement”) with MJB, pursuant to which we and M@l collaborate on the development of certain aglim
vaccines and MJB granted us an exclusive licengeataufacture and distribute, in North America, sagcine
product currently being developed or sold by MJBuay other product that is developed under theabolation
Agreement. We will reimburse MJB'’s cost of goodske certain minimum base payment$0f2 million per
month to MJB during the term of the Collaboratiogréement, subject to certain offset provisions, ey 50%
of all gross margins over $0.4 million per monthvaB.

We also entered into a Technology License Agreeitibat‘License Agreement”) with MJB, pursuant
to which MJB granted us an exclusive license tcetlgy, manufacture and commercialize, outside otiNor
America, vaccine products using MJB'’s patents amahkhow. We will make quarterly royalty payments to
MJB in an amount equal to a specified percentagebséales outside of North America.

We also entered into an Intellectual Property PasehAgreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with
MJB, pursuant to which we will acquire the intetlesd property and certain other assets comprisidg’
business relating to animal vaccines. The closatg df the acquisition (the “Closing” or the “ClogiDate”) is
anticipated to occur on or before January 1, 26@hject to certain closing conditions. Upon theuo@nce of
certain events, the Closing of the Purchase Agreemidl occur prior to the scheduled Closing Date.

Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, we madgfront payment to MJB of $5.0 million and
agreed to pay MJB a “Closing Payment” at Closingriramount to be calculated based on the worldnéde
sales of MJB’s vaccines for the twelve months imiatedly prior to the Closing Date. The Closing Papinill
not be less than $10.0 million, subject to offsetertain limited circumstances. In addition, MJH e entitled
to receive earn-out payments, from the Closing Etateugh December 31, 2030, based on (i) a siniglié-d
percentage of the net sales of any “Royalty Prddastdefined in the License Agreement) that wé sel
commercially in North America, and (ii) a singlegiipercentage of the net sales of any Royalty Rrbthat we
sell commercially outside of North America, at thee of or after the Closing.

In connection with this transaction, we also madieaa of $5.0 million to MJB’s sole shareholder,
which matures on the Closing Date. The loan bedesédst at a variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 38§is
points, and accrued interest shall be paid semirahnon each July 1 and January 1. The unpaicmah
amount of the loan, together with all outstandind anpaid interest, will be due and payable ati@tper over :
period ending January 2025 in the event of a teatiin of the Purchase Agreement by us or upon the
occurrence of certain customary events of default.

We have accounted for the MJB transaction as abssicombination in accordance with ASC 805,
Business Combinations. We have recorded intangisets of$9.2 million, which includes $7.6 million of
technology-related assets and $1.6 million of inepss research and development, and a long-tebitityiaf
$4.2 million, net of the upfront payment, payali¢he Closing Date and during the earn-out peNgd.may
further refine the determination of the intangiaisets during the measurement period. The closipgent will
also include $5.0 million (pro-rated on a monthésis), conditional upon continuing service of a keyployee
through January 2018; this amount will be recoghize compensation expense over the service péoof
June 30, 2015, $0.7 million of accrued compensatias recognized and included in the long-term liigbi
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Analysis of the consolidated statements of operatis

Summary Results of Operatior

Change
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/2014 2014 /2013
(in thousands, except per share)

Net sales $748,59. $691,91: $653,15. $56,67" 8% $ 38,76 6 %
Gross profit 236,37. 207,77¢  178,96: 28,591 14% 28,81: 16 %
Selling, general and administrati

expenses 148,70  143,98: 122,23 4,72 3% 21,74¢ 18%
Operating incom: 87,66¢ 63,79¢ 56,73: 23,87« 37%  7,06: 12%
Interest expense, n 14,30¢ 32,96: 35,62¢ (18,657) (57)% (2,661) (7)%
Foreign currency (gains) losses,

net (5,400) 1,75:% 3,10z (7,15%) * (1,350) (44)%
Loss on extinguishment of de — 22,77 — (22,771) * 22,77 *
Other (income) expense, net — — 151 — * (151) *
Income before income tax 78,76 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 72,45¢ i3 (11,54() (65)%
Provision for income taxes 18,48: 9,43t (7,042) 9,04¢ * 16,47¢ *
Net income $ 60,28 $ (3,127) $ 24,89 $63,40" *  $(28,01¢) *
Net income per shal

basic $ 15t $ (0.1C) $ 0.82

diluted $ 151 $ (0.1C) $ o0.82
Weighted average number of sh

outstanding

basic 38,96 32,19: 30,45¢

diluted 39,81! 32,19: 30,45¢

Ratio to net sale
Gross profit 31.e% 30.C% 27.4%
Selling, general and
administrative

expenses 19.€% 20.8% 18.7%
Operating incom 11.7% 9.2% 8.7%
Income before income tax 10.5% 0.€% 2.7%
Net income 8.1% (0.5)% 3.8%

Effective tax rate 23.5%  149.6% (39.£)%

Certain amounts and percentages may reflect rogratijustments

*  Calculation not meaningful

Changes in net sales from period to period primaeisult from changes in volumes and average
selling prices. Although a portion of our net satedenominated in various currencies, the sefbinges of the
majority of our sales outside the United Statesef@renced in U.S. dollars, and as a result, evemues have
not been significantly directly affected by currgmaovements.

Our effective income tax rate varies significaritym period to period and from the federal statytor
rate, primarily due to the mix of income tax praoeiss on profitable foreign jurisdictions, no incomas
provision or benefit being recorded on domestictpreincome or losses and the tax effect of discret
transactions. We have approximately $34.7 millibfederal NOLs and the domestic provision does not
recognize income tax benefits or the related defetax assets until it is more likely than not thath assets w
be realized. Our fiscal year 2014 provision foroime taxes was increased by $3.2 million of withhgdaxes
on the repatriation of certain foreign earningsr €scal year 2013 provision for income taxes weduced by a
$9.1 million benefit that resulted from an acquasitrelated change in the domestic
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valuation allowance. At the point when our dometgticprovision is no longer affected by valuatidiowances,
we expect our normalized effective tax rate inftitare periods to approximate 30%. We intend tatiooe to
reinvest undistributed earnings of our foreign sdibsies indefinitely.

Net sales, Adjusted EBITDA and reconciliation of @# net income to Adjusted EBITD,

We report Net Sales and Adjusted EBITDA by segneninderstand the operating performance of
each segment. This enables us to monitor changest sales, costs and other actionable operatitigosat the
segment level. See “—General description of non-GAikancial measures” for descriptions of EBITDAdan
Adjusted EBITDA.

Segment net sales and Adjusted EBITDA:

Change
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/ 2014 2014 /2013
(in thousands)

Net Sales

MFAs and othe $335,73!  $326,56¢ $303,74: $ 9,167 3% $22,82¢ 8%

Nutritional specialtie: 81,70: 63,06¢ 52,33 18,63¢ 30% 10,73: 21%

Vaccines 53,36 41,41° 28,86 11,94¢ 29% 12,55¢ 44%
Animal Health $470,80(  $431,05:  $384,94: 39,74 9% 46,11 12%
Mineral Nutrition 227,10. 201,59¢ 203,16! 25,50: 13% (1,57C) (1)%
Performance Products 50,68¢ 59,26 65,04: (8,57¢) (14)% (5,77¢) (9)%
Total $748,59: $691,91: $653,15. $56,67; 8% $38,76: 6 %
Adjusted EBITDA
Animal Health $120,25¢ $100,28( $ 82,997 $19,97¢ 20% $17,28: 21%
Mineral Nutrition 14,42¢ 11,63¢ 12,06¢ 2,79: 24% (43z) (4)%
Performance Produc 2,64¢ 4,62¢ 2,927 (1,98() (43)% 1,69¢ 58%
Corporate (27,31%)  (25,94¢)  (22,23¢)  (1,37C) * (3,70¢) *
Total $110,01¢ $ 90,597 $ 75,75«  $19,42; 21% $14,84: 20%

Adjusted EBITDA ratio to
segment net sales

Animal Health 25.E% 23.2% 21.¢%
Mineral Nutrition 6.4% 5.8% 5.£%
Performance Produc 5.2% 7.8% 4.5%
Corporate®) (3.6)% (3.7)% (3.4)%
Total® 14.7% 13.1% 11.€%

(1) reflects ratio to total net sal
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A reconciliation of net income, as reported und&AB, to Adjusted EBITDA:

Change
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015 /2014 2014 /2013
(in thousands)

Net income (loss $ 60,28 $(3,127) $24,89. $63,40: *  $(28,01¢) *
Interest expense, n 14,30¢ 32,96: 35,62¢ (18,657) (57)% (2,661) (7)%
Provision for income taxe 18,48 9,43¢ (7,042) 9,04¢ 96% 16,47¢ *
Depreciation and amortization 21,60: 21,45 19,02 151 1% 2,43( 13%

EBITDA 114,67: 60,72: 72,50( 53,94¢ 89% (11,777) (16)%
Acquisition-related accrued

compensation 747 — — 747 * — *
Loss on insurance clai — 5,35( — (5,35() * 5,35( *
Foreign currency (gains) losses,

net (5,400) 1,75 3,10¢ (7,15%) = (1,350) (44)%
Loss on extinguishment of de — 22,77: — (22,77:) * 22,77 *
Other (income) expense, net — — 151 — * (a51) =

Adjusted EBITDA $110,01¢ $90,59° $75,75¢ $19,42: 21% $ 14,84 20%

Adjusted net income

We report Adjusted Net Income to portray the ressaftour operations prior to considering certain
income statement elements. See “—General desgeripfinon-GAAP financial measures” for more inforinat

A reconciliation of net income (loss), as reportiedler GAAP, to adjusted net income:

As Reported Adjustments Adjusted
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Selling, general and

administrative

expense$t $148,70: $143,98. $122,23. $(5,307) $(10,32() $(4,321) $143,39" $133,66. $117,91:
Operating incom: 87,66¢ 63,79 56,73: 5,307 10,32( 4,321 92,97t 74,11« 61,05:
Interest expense, n® 14,30¢ 32,96: 35,62¢ (612) — — 13,69: 32,96: 35,62¢
Foreign currency (gains) losses,

net (5,400) 1,75: 3,10: 5,40( (1,75¢) (3,10%) — — —
Loss on extinguishment of de — 22,77 — — (22,772) — — — —
Other (income) expense, net — — 151 — — (151) — — —
Income before income tax 78,76! 6,30¢ 17,84¢ 52C 34,84¢ 7,57¢ 79,28: 41,15: 25,42
Provision for income taxe® 18,48 9,43¢ (7,043) (7,70%) 2,77: 14,10« 10,78( 12,20° 7,061
Net income $ 60,28( $ (3,127) $ 24,89: $ 8,22¢ $32,07: $(6,52¢) $ 68,50: $ 28,94 $ 18,36:
Net income per sha

basic $ 15t $ (01C)$ 082 $ 021 $ 10C $ (021)$ 1.7¢ $ 09C $ 0.6C

diluted $ 151 $ (01C()$ 08 $ 021 $ 09¢ $ (021)$ 172 $ 08¢ $ 0.6C
Weighted average common shz

outstanding

basic 38,96¢ 32,19: 30,45¢  38,96¢ 32,19¢  30,45¢ 38,96¢ 32,19: 30,45¢

diluted 39,81t 32,19¢ 30,45¢ 39,81t 32,49(  30,45¢ 39,81¢ 32,49( 30,45¢
Ratio to net sales

Selling, general and

administrative expensi 19.¢% 20.£% 18.7% 19.2% 19.:% 18.1%

Operating incom: 11.7% 9.2% 8.7% 12.4% 10.7% 9.2%

Income before income tax 10.E% 0.S% 2.7% 10.€% 5.¢% 3.¢%

Net income 8.1% (0.5)% 3.8% 9.2% 4.2% 2.£%
Effective tax rate 23.5% 149.6%  (39.5)% 13.€% 29.71% 27.£%

(1) Adjustments to selling, general and administraéixpense include acquisition-related accrued
compensation 0$747 in 2015; loss on insurance claim$&,350 in 2014; acquisition intangible
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amortization of$4,560, $4,897, and $4,106, and stock-based caapen expense df0, $73 and $215 f
the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 cteshe

(2) Adjustments to interest expense, net include aitoprisrelated accrued interest 8613 for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

(3) We adjust the provision (benefit) for income tat@seflect cash income taxes paid in the period.

Comparison of fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 20d4

Net sales

Net sales 0f$748.6 million increased $56.7 million, or 8%, the year ended June 30, 2015, as
compared to the year ended June 30, 2014, duewdlgn Animal Health and Mineral Nutrition of
$39.7 million and $25.5 million, respectively, aftdy declines in Performance Productss8f6 million.

The consolidated statement of operations for tlae gaded June 30, 2015 included $8.0 million of
revenue and gross profit related to milestone paysnender a license agreement with a global anlivealth
company to share in the use of our proprietary imacdelivery technology. We recognized the revesma profi
during the period because certain contractual egdlatory milestones were achieved by the liceresee we
had no remaining performance obligations undeatgreement. Excluding the $8.0 million in vaccirefising
milestone revenue, net sales growth was $48.7amjlbr 7%.

Animal Health

Net sales 0f$470.8 million grew $39.7 million, or 9%, for tyear ended June 30, 2015, primarily due
to volume growth across all product groups. Exelgdhe $8.0 million in vaccine licensing milestargenue,
net sales growth was $31.7 million, or 7%. MFAs atiter grew $9.2 million, or 3%, primarily due tolume
growth in international markets. Nutritional spéisigroducts grew $18.6 million, or 30%, for theayeended
June 30, 2015, primarily due to U.S. volume growitour products for the dairy industry and thetraduction
in select European countries. Excluding the efté¢he $8.0 million in vaccine licensing milestorvenue,
vaccines grew $3.9 million, or 10%, for the yeadesh June 30, 2015, principally from volume groviticjuding
sales of MJB products from the January 2015 dateiofCollaboration and Distribution Agreement witkiB
which was entered into as part of the MJB traneasti

Mineral Nutrition

Net sales 0f$227.1 million increased $25.5 million, or 13%:; foe year ended June 30, 2015.
Increased volumes accounted for approximately thueeters of the sales growth, as current markaditons
improved demand for certain trace mineral produidte remainder of the sales increase was due tedsed
average selling prices primarily due to higher ulyiteg raw material commodity prices.

Performance Produci

Net sales 0f$50.7 million decreased $8.6 million, or 14%, tlee year ended June 30, 2015, due to
lower volumes and average selling prices of coffy@esed products and lower volumes of personal casupts.

Gross profit

Gross profit 0f$236.4 million increased $28.6 million, or 14% 3th.6% of net sales, for the year
ended June 30, 2015, with most of the improvemenmiiicg from Animal Health. Gross profit growth waz0%
million, or 10%, for the year ended June 30, 2@&KgJuding the effect of the $8.0 million in vacciieensing
milestone revenue. Animal Health gross profit imsed $20.0 million, excluding the effect of thecine
licensing milestone revenue, due to volume growith @duced production costs from favorable currency
movements. Within Animal Health, MFAs and other trituted $9.1 million of the increase due to volume
growth, nutritional specialty products contribug&tD.6 million of the increase primarily due to vole growth,
higher average selling prices and lower unit cbsi® improved operating efficiencies and,
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excluding the vaccine licensing milestone reveraecines gross profit increased $0.2 million pipadiy due tc
volume growth, partially offset by unfavorable puatimix. Mineral Nutrition gross profit increased.® million
due to higher volumes and higher average sellirmpgy partially offset by higher product costs.fe@nance
Products gross profit decreased $2.8 million duewer average selling prices and lower volumes.

Selling, general and administrative expens

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expea®f$148.7 million increased $4.7 million, or
3%, for the year ended June 30, 2015. In 2014 e&grézed a $5.4 million loss in our consolidateatesnent of
operations on an insurance claim previously reabedean asset. Excluding this amount, SG&A expenses
increased $10.1 million, or 7%. Animal Health acuead for $8.7 million of the increase, driven bgrieased
selling headcount and related marketing costs pp@t MFA and vaccine initiatives and the expansibour
products to the dairy industry and by developmeensling focused on product lifecycle extensionsmah
Health SG&A also increased due to $0.7 million of@sition-related accrued compensation relatatiedviJB
transactions. Corporate expenses accounted fom§illidn of the increase due to salary and wagateel costs
and professional fees, in part related to the aafdbieing a public company.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA of$110.0 million increased $19.4 million, or 21%; foe year ended June 30,
2015. Adjusted EBITDA growth was $11.4 million, 8%, for the year ended June 30, 2015, excludiag&(
million in vaccine licensing milestone revenue. #al Health adjusted EBITDA increased $12.0 million,
12%, for the year ended June 30, 2015, excludiagditcine licensing milestone revenue, due to satmsth
and increased gross profit, partially offset byréased SG&A expenses. Mineral Nutrition increase8 $
million, or 24%, due to higher sales volumes angriomed operating margins. Performance Productedsed
$2.0 million, or 43%, due to lower sales volumesrgorate expenses increased $1.4 million due feases in
salary and wage-related costs and professionalifepart related to the costs of being a publimpany.

Interest expense, ne

Interest expense, net, 8.4.3 million decreased $18.7 million for the yeaded June 30, 2015, due
the net result of issuing new Credit FacilitieNoril 2014, retiring the Mayflower Limited Partnéip
(“Mayflower”) Term Loan, the BFI Term Loan and our former DoneeSgnior Credit Facility in April 2014 a
redeeming our 9.25% Senior Notes in May 2014. &steexpense also increased due to $0.6 million of
acquisition-related accrued interest in connectvith the MJB transactions.

Foreign currency (gains) losses, n

Foreign currency (gains) losses, net for the yaded June 30, 2015, amounted to net gains of $5.4
million, as compared to $1.8 million in net losgasthe year ended June 30, 2014. Foreign currgams in the
current period were primarily due to the movemdrBrazil, Israel, Turkey and E.U. currencies relatio the
U.S. dollar. Foreign currency gains and losses gmiignarise from intercompany balances.

Provision for income taxe

Income tax expense w§$8.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2015, ganmed with $9.4 million
last year. Our effective tax rate was 23.5% fordheent year. Our consolidated tax provisionspai@arily
comprised of income taxes relating to profitablefgn jurisdictions. For the year ended June 3Q52/e
generated domestic taxable income and, becauseaim¢ain a full valuation allowance against domesgt
deferred tax assets, the provision for income taigsot include expense related to domestic taxatdome.
For the year ended June 30, 2014, we generatethastic taxable loss and, because we maintain adluhtion
allowance against domestic net deferred tax agbet@rovision for income taxes did not includesadfit
related to the domestic taxable loss. Last yeagpeese included a
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discrete item of$3.2 million of foreign withholding tax expensesinred in connection with the repatriation of
certain foreign earnings. We paid $10.8 milliorcagh income taxes in the year ended June 30, 26&fpared
with $12.2 million the previous year. Last yearay/ments included $3.2 million related to the foneig
withholding taxes.

Comparison of fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 20d.3

Net sales

Net sales 0f$691.9 million increased $38.8 million, or 6%, fbe year ended June 30, 2014, as
compared to the year ended June 30, 2013, duebtd $4llion of growth in Animal Health, partiallyfiset by
declines in Mineral Nutrition and Performance Pridu

Animal Health

Net sales 0f$431.1 million grew $46.1 million, or 12%, primigrdue to volume growth across all
product groups. MFAs and other grew $22.8 million8%, primarily due to volume growth in the UnitBthtes
Brazil, Latin America, and the Asia Pacific regiobitritional specialty products grew $10.7 milljamr 21%,
primarily due to U.S. volume growth of our produftisthe dairy industry and their introduction ielect
European countries. Vaccines grew $12.6 milliord4%o, principally from the introduction of new prais in
several markets and volume growth in most markets.

Mineral Nutrition

Net sales 0f$201.6 million decreased $1.6 million, or 1%. @acision to deemphasize low-margin,
volatile lysine sales accounted for $4.1 milliortleé reduction. Increased volumes of trace mina@ducts
partially offset the reduction.

Performance Produci

Net sales 0f$59.3 million decreased $5.8 million, or 9%, dodower average selling prices for
copper-based products for the catalyst industryraddced volumes of a low margin industrial chetnica
Volume growth in other industrial chemicals patyialffset the decline.

Gross profit

Gross profit of$207.8 million increased $28.8 million, or 16% 3@.0% of net sales, with all of the
improvement coming from Animal Health. Animal Héagross profit increased $30.1 million, with
approximately $22.7 million due to volume growthddavorable product mix, $0.6 million due to lowanit
costs, $4.5 million due to higher average selliriggs and other items and a $2.3 million benefibfithe OGR
acquisition. Lower unit costs primarily were dudrtgproved operating efficiencies from capital exgiéures an
reduced production costs from favorable currencyentents related to the Brazilian Real. MFAs anaoth
contributed $12.7 million of the increase due ttumme growth, favorable product mix and lower urists.
Nutritional specialty products contributed $8.2Iil of the increase primarily due to volume growtigher
average selling prices and a $2.3 million beneditrf the OGR acquisition, which was a result ofg¢hmination
of royalty expense previously included in cost 0bds sold. Vaccines gross profit increased $9.B8amil
principally due to volume growth. Mineral Nutritiggross profit decreased $0.1 million due to redunedgins
from competitive conditions which were partiallyfsst by increased volumes of low-margin products.
Performance Products gross profit decreased $1lidmdue to lower average selling prices and low@umes,
partially offset by lower product costs.

Selling, general and administrative expens

SG&A expenses 0$144.0 million increased $21.7 million, or 18%clirded in the increase is a $5.4
million loss on an insurance claim as describethénnext paragraph. Excluding the loss attribut&blbe
insurance claim, SG&A expenses increased $16.4omilor 13%. Animal Health accounted for $14.4 ioill of
the increase, driven by sales and marketing andldement spending. Selling headcount and relate#ieting
support increased in Brazil, Mexico and China tpput MFA and vaccine initiatives and in the U.8dd&uropi
to support the expansion of our products to theydadustry.
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Development spending focused on product lifecygterssions. Increased amortization of intangibletssand
other depreciation added $1.9 million. The OGR &ition added $0.6 million of costs which primarily
consisted of research and development expenditBeztormance Products expenses decreased $2.@milli
primarily due to lower environmental remediatiorstso Corporate expenses, excluding the loss oimsoieance
claim, increased $4.2 million due to increaseslary and wage related costs, business developrosty,
consulting fees and professional fees, in partedléo the costs of being a public company.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, we recedraz$5.4 million loss in our consolidated
statement of operations on the insurance claimigusly recorded as an asset. In 2010, certain oe®
claimed damages to their poultry resulting fromuke of one of our animal health products. We ketieve
were entitled to coverage for the claimed damageégour insurance policies, above any applicatfeirssurec
retention or deductible. Our insurance carriersetuto cover the damages claimed and denied caeng
instituted a legal action to enforce our rightsemtthe policies but in June 2014 the trial coulédiuagainst us.
We have appealed the trial court’s decision. ly &l2014, we reached settlements with and madmpats to
our customers for their claims in amounts approxéfyaequal to the liability previously accrued.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA of$90.6 million increased $14.8 million, or 20%. Aval Health adjusted EBITD.
increased $17.3 million, or 21%, due to sales dnaavid increased gross profit, partially offset hgreased
SG&A expenses. Mineral Nutrition decreased $0.4ioni] or 4%, due to slightly lower operating maigin
Performance Products increased $1.7 million, or 5&¥#narily due to reduced environmental remediatiosts.
Corporate expense increased $3.7 million due t@ases in salary and wage related costs, busiegstogmen
costs, consulting fees and professional fees, finrpkated to the costs of being a public compawdjusted
EBITDA excludes the loss on the insurance claim.

Interest expense, ne

Interest expense, net 883.0 million decreased $2.7 million due to themsult of issuing the Term
Loan and Revolving Credit Facility in April 2014tiring the Mayflower Term Loan, the BFI Term Loamnd
the Domestic Senior Credit Facility in April 201Adaredeeming the 9.25% Senior Notes in May 2014.

Foreign currency (gains) losses, n

Foreign currency (gains) losses, net amountedtttoages 0f$1.8 million and $3.1 million in 2014
and 2013, respectively. Foreign currency losselsdrcurrent period were primarily due to the movenus
Brazil, Turkey and Argentina currencies relativehite U.S. dollar. Foreign currency gains and logssarily
arise from intercompany balances.

Loss on extinguishment of del

Our consolidated statements of operations for &a gnded June 30, 2014, included a $22.8 million
loss on extinguishment of debt consisting of red@ongremium paid and the write-off of original iss
discount and deferred financing costs relatedticededebt. In April 2014, we retired a $24.0 nailiterm loan
payable to Mayflower, a $10.0 million term loan phie to BFI and outstanding borrowings under oumelstic
senior credit facility. In May 2014, we retired $80 million of 9.25% senior notes due 2018.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe

We recorded a $9.4 million provision for incomeedsyon consolidated pre-tax income of $6.3 million,
representing a 149.6% effective tax rate. The taxipion is comprised primarily of income taxesatilg to
certain profitable foreign jurisdictions and foneigrithholding taxes, partially offset by a benéfitm the
recognition of certain previously unrecognized baxefits. We generated a taxable loss from our dome
operations and established a valuation allowanoéf$et the income tax benefit. The provision imgd $3.2
million of foreign withholding taxes resulting frothe payment of a dividend by our Israel operatiomnBhibro.
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Analysis of financial condition, liquidity and capital resources

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalast

Change
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/201 2014 /201
(in thousands)
Cash provided by/(used ir
Operating activitie: $68,70: $ (712) $ 1,437 $69,41¢ $(2,14¢)
Investing activities (34,46:) (19,41:) (38,35¢) (15,05:) 18,94¢
Financing activitie: (15,35:) 4,77¢ 10,87F  (20,13()  (6,09¢)
Effect of exchange-rate changes on cash and c:
equivalents (1,49¢) (203) (485)  (1,291) 282

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis  $ 17,39¢ $(15,54¢) $(26,532) $ 32,94 $10,98:

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities e@mprised of

Change
For the Years Ended June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/201 2014 /201
(in thousands)

Adjusted EBITDA $110,01¢ $90,597 $ 75,75« $19,42: $14,84:
Interest paic (12,91:) (45,37() (33,82¢) 32,45¢ (11,54¢)
Income taxes pai (10,78() (12,207) (7,061)  1,42i (5,14¢)
Payment of premium and costs on extinguished —  (17,20%) — 17,20¢ (17,20%)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities anelr:

items (17,62¢) (16,527) (33,43:) (1,09€) 16,90
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi $ 6870« $ (712) $ 1,437 $69,41¢ $ (2,14¢)

Certain amounts may reflect rounding adjustments.

Operating activities

For the year ended June 30, 2015, net cash probiglegerating activities was $68.7 million,
primarily attributable to operating profit &87.7 million. Increased inventories used $19 Hianiof cash due t
timing of purchases and production. Accounts reafdliy used $1.9 million due to sales growth. Accrued
expenses used $3.7 million of cash, including $&ilBon paid to customers related to damages to fhaultry
resulting from the use of one of our products tdi year 2010.

For the year ended June 30, 2014, net cash usepdngting activities was $0.7 million. Cash used
included a $17.2 million payment of premiums relgtio the extinguishment of debt. Interest paymeh5.4
million were unusually high due to the timing of atditional interest payment on the Senior Notgsaasof the
refinancing. Accounts receivable used $14.7 milbkbicash, primarily resulting from sales growth @mdoveral
increase in accounts receivable days sales oulsta(iSO”) by 2 days due to growth in internatibnzarkets.

Investing activitie:

For year ended June 30, 2015, net cash used istingeactivities was $34.5 million. Capital
expenditures were $20.1 million as we continueihtest in our existing asset base and for capasipansion
and productivity improvements. As part of the Md&nsactions, the Company made a $5.0 million upfron
payment and a $5.0 million loan. Other acquisitiand other items used $4.4 million of cash.

For year ended June 30, 2014, net cash used istingeactivities was $19.4 million. Capital
expenditures were $19.8 million as we continueihtest in our existing asset base and for capasipansion
and cost reductions.
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Financing activities

For the year ended June 30, 2015, net cash uskabloging activities was $15.4 million. We paid
$15.6 million in dividends to holders of our Classnd Class B common stock. In addition, we made
$2.9 million in scheduled payments on our Term Bub.dPartially offsetting the cash used was $3.0oniin
net borrowings from our Revolving Credit Facilitie received $1.3 million from the issuance of commo
shares related to exercise of stock options.

For the year ended June 30, 2014, net cash probiglidancing activities was $4.8 million. The IPO
provided $114.4 million of net cash from the isste&anf new common shares. The refinancing used $78.8
million of net cash, including proceeds from loegnt debt 0f$289.3 million and repayments of our domestic
senior credit facility and long term debt $868.1 million. In March 2014, prior to the IPOg\paid a $25.0
million dividend to our stockholders.

Liquidity and capital resource

We believe our cash on hand, our operating castsfbmd our financing arrangements, including the
availability of borrowings under the Revolving Citdgacility and foreign credit lines, will be suffent to
support our future cash needs. Our operating plajeqts adequate liquidity throughout the year. ldegr, we
can provide no assurance that our liquidity andtabpmsources will be adequate for future funding
requirements. We believe we will be able to compih the terms of the covenants under the Revol@nedit
Facility and foreign credit lines based on our agieg plan. In the event of adverse operating tesuid/or
violation of covenants under the facilities, theas be no assurance we would be able to obtairevsor
amendments. Other risks to our meeting future fugpdequirements include global economic conditiamg
macroeconomic, business and financial disruptibasdould arise. There can be no assurance that the
challenging economic environment or an economicrdom would not impact our liquidity or our abilitg
obtain future financing. In addition, our debt coaats may restrict our ability to invest. Duringdal year 2015
we spent approximately $21.1 million on capital @xgitures, primarily on the expansion of our prduurc
capacity. We expect our capital expenditures withitapproximately $35 million in fiscal year 2038imarily
for the continued expansion of production capaaitgt cost reductions in our Animal Health segment.

Certain relevant measures of our liquidity and pesources follow:

Change
As of June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/201 2014/201
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivale $ 29,21¢ $ 11,82 $ 27,36¢ $17,39F  $(15,54¢)
Working capital 175,98t 177,99¢ 153,67 (2,011) 24,32:
Ratio of current assets to current liabilit 2.62:] 2.63:1 2.33:1

We define working capital as total current assexsl(uding cash and cash equivalents) less total
current liabilities (excluding current portion afng-term debt). We calculate the ratio of curressieds to current
liabilities based on this definition.

At June 30, 2015, we had $3.0 million in outstagdiorrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility.
We had outstanding letters of credit and other camemts of$14.0 million, leaving $83.0 million available for
borrowings and letters of credit. In addition, vaslravailability totaling $15.0 million under ouragli loan
agreements.

We currently intend to pay quarterly dividends,ressenting $15.7 million annually on our Class A
Class B common stock, subject to approval fromBbard of Directors. Our Board of Directors has destl a
cash dividend o0f50.10 per share on Class A common stock and Glassnmon stock that is payable on
September 23, 2015.

At June 30, 2015, our cash and cash equivalentsded $27.1 million held by our international
subsidiaries. There are no restrictions on caghluitions to PAHC from our international subsidés: We
consider certain funds to be indefinitely reinvesteour international operations, based on ouratpey plan.
Should our plans change and we decide to repasitate or all of the remaining cash held
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by our international subsidiaries, the amountstréegiad would be subject to federal and state iretames at
statutory rates, with the potential for partialsefiting credits for taxes paid to internationaisdictions. We
currently have U.S. federal and state NOLs thatlevbe available to offset income from the repaiiabf such
cash and cash equivalents, to the extent not oseffiset other income. As such, no significant entrincome
taxes would be payable to federal or state authsritom the repatriation of such cash and caskvalguts until
such NOLs have been fully used. For financial répgrpurposes, the use of the NOLs would resuthé
release of a valuation allowance currently recortdeaffset the value of the NOLs. The provision ifttome
taxes would not be significantly affected by theateiation, to the extent of the release of thatexg valuation
allowance.

Analysis of the consolidated balance shee

Change
As of June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/201 2014/201
(in thousands)
Accounts receivab-trade $111,09¢ $113,85¢ $99,137 $(2,75¢) $14,72:
DSO 54 56 53

DSO average was 50 to 60 days across all our lss#eeand geographies. Payment terms outside the
U.S. are typically longer than in the U.S. For pleeiods presented, we have maintained our overaibge
accounts receivables DSO between 53 and 56 dayseiuarly monitor our accounts receivable for
collectability, particularly in countries where exnic conditions remain uncertain. We believe that
allowance for doubtful accounts is appropriate. @agessment is based on such factors as paststo hi
historical and expected collection patterns, tharftial condition of our customers, the robust reatifi our
credit and collection practices and the economigrenment. We calculate DSO based on a 360-day amear
compare accounts receivable with sales for thetguanding at the balance sheet date.

Change
As of June 30 2015 2014 2013 2015/201 2014/201
(in thousands)
Inventories $149,78¢ $143,18: $140,03: $6,60:z $3,15¢

Inventory increased by $6.6 million in 2015, priihadue to increases in the Animal Health segment.

Contractual obligations
Payments due under contractual obligations asr# 30, 2015, were:

Years
Within 1 Over1lto: Over3tot Over 5 Total
(in thousands)
Long-term debt (including current portio $291¢ $ 580t $ 5800 $272,60( $287,11¢
Revolving credit facility — — 3,00( — 3,00(
Interest paymeni 12,33¢ 24,33: 22,78: 8,607 68,05¢
Lease commitmen 4,51% 8,08( 5,60( 4,19¢ 22,39
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 1,23¢ 1,37¢ 112 5,73 8,46:
Total contractual obligations $20,99¢ $39,59¢ $37,29¢ $291,14: $389,02

Excluded from the contractual obligations tabléhis liability for unrecognized tax benefits totagin
$9.4 million. This liability for unrecognized taxbefits has been excluded because we cannot nrekatde
estimate of the periods in which the liability wik realized.

Our Board of Directors declared a cash dividen@@fL0 per share on Class A common stock and
Class B common stock, representing $3.9 millioryapée on September 23, 2015.

We do not have any material long-term purchase ctmments.

Off-balance sheet arrangemen

We do not currently use offalance sheet arrangements for the purpose ot erglelincement, hedgi
transactions, investment or other financial purpose
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In the ordinary course of business, we may indeyrmifr counterparties against certain liabilitieatth
may arise. These indemnifications typically pertaienvironmental matters. If the indemnified pawgre to
make a successful claim pursuant to the termseointhemnification, we would be required to reimleuttse loss
These indemnifications generally are subject ttagerestrictions and limitations.

General description of nor-GAAP financial measures

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is an alternative view of perforntanused by management as our primary oper
measure, and we believe that investors’ understgnafiour performance is enhanced by disclosing thi
performance measure. We report Adjusted EBITDAdxdrpy the results of our operations prior to cdasing
certain income statement elements. We have deEB#@DA as net income (loss) plus (i) interest exggmet,
(ii) provision for income taxes or less benefit filcome taxes, and (iii) depreciation and amoritratWe have
defined Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA plus (a) (income}s from, and disposal of, discontinued operati)
other expense or less other income, as separafadyted on our consolidated statements of opesgtinoluding
foreign currency gains and losses and loss onguishment of debt, and (c) certain items that wesitter to be
unusual or non-recurring. The Adjusted EBITDA measa not, and should not be viewed as, a substitut
GAAP reported net income.

The Adjusted EBITDA measure is an important inttmaasurement for us. We measure our overall
performance on this basis in conjunction with oterformance metrics. The following are examplesaf our
Adjusted EBITDA measure is utilized:

* senior management receives a monthly analysisiobperating results that is prepared on an
Adjusted EBITDA basis;

» our annual budgets are prepared on an AdjusBd@EA basis; and
» other goal setting and performance measurenaeatsrepared on an Adjusted EBITDA basis.

Despite the importance of this measure to manageimgoal setting and performance measurement,
Adjusted EBITDA is a norGAAP financial measure that has no standardizechimgarescribed by GAAP an
therefore, has limits in its usefulness to investBecause of its non-standardized definition, Atjd EBITDA,
unlike GAAP net income, may not be comparable édhlculation of similar measures of other companie
Adjusted EBITDA is presented to permit investorsrtore fully understand how management assesses
performance.

We also recognize that, as an internal measurerédmmnance, the Adjusted EBITDA measure has
limitations, and we do not restrict our performant@nagement process solely to this metric. A litiwtaof the
Adjusted EBITDA measure is that it provides a viglwour operations without including all events digria
period, such as the depreciation of property, mat equipment or amortization of purchased intalagj and
does not provide a comparable view of our perforraan other companies.

Certain significant items

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted net income are caltadaprior to considering certain items. We
evaluate such items on an individual basis. Suettuation considers both the quantitative and ttadittive
aspect of their unusual or non-operational natureisual, in this context, may represent items dénatnot part
of our ongoing business; items that, either asaltref their nature or size, we would not expeabtcur as part
of our normal business on a regular basis. An edawipan unusual item is the loss on extinguishneéiiebt
incurred in fiscal year 2014. We consider foreigmency gains and losses to be non-operationalisedhey
arise principally from intercompany transactiond are largely non-cash in nature.

Adjusted Net Income

Adjusted net income is an alternative view of perfance and we believe investors’ understanding of
our performance is enhanced by disclosing thisoperince measure. We report Adjusted

68




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Net Income to portray the results of our operatiomar to considering certain income statement eleis We
have defined adjusted net income as net income(plather expense or less other income, as sepanraporte
on our consolidated statements of operations, dituforeign currency gains and losses and loss on
extinguishment of debt, (ii) amortization of acgarintangibles and other acquisition-related castsh as
accrued compensation and accrued interest, @icksbased compensation, (iv) certain items thatevesider to
be unusual or non-recurring and (v) income taxea cash basis. The Adjusted Net Income measui@,isnd
should not be viewed as, a substitute for GAAP regbnet income.

Adjusted Net Income is a ndBAAP financial measure that has no standardizechmgarescribed k
GAAP and, therefore, has limits in its usefulnesmvestors. Because of its non-standardized digfii
Adjusted Net Income, unlike GAAP net income, may lm® comparable to the calculation of similar meeswf
other companies. Adjusted Net Income is presemtgeitmit investors to more fully understand how
management assesses performance.

New accounting standards

For discussion of new accounting standards, seée8\to Consolidated Financial Statements—
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and N&ecounting Standards.”

Significant accounting policies and application o€ritical accounting estimates

In presenting our financial statements in confoymiith GAAP, we are required to make estimates
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsd&bilities, net sales, costs and expenseseattd
disclosures.

We believe that the following accounting policiee eritical to an understanding of our consolidated
financial statements as they require the applinatfthe most difficult, subjective and complexguaents and,
therefore, could have the greatest impact on oanfiial statements.

Acquisitions, Intangible Assets and Goodw

Our consolidated financial statements reflect therations of an acquired business beginning aseof t
date of acquisition. Assets acquired and liabgitissumed are recorded at their fair values atdtesof
acquisition; goodwill is recorded for any excesshaf purchase price over the fair values of theanséts
acquired.

Significant judgment is required to determine thie ¥alue of certain tangible and intangible asaet
in assigning their respective useful lives. Accoglly, we typically obtain the assistance of thiattg valuation
specialists for significant tangible and intangibsets. The fair values are based on availatilerices
information and on future expectations and asswnptdeemed reasonable by management, but areritigere
uncertain. We typically use an income method tosueathe fair value of intangible assets, whidbaised on
forecasts of the expected future cash flows attaitle to the respective assets. Significant eséisnand
assumptions inherent in the valuations reflectreseration of other marketplace participants, iantlde the
amount and timing of future cash flows (includingpected growth rates and profitability), the ungied
product or technology life cycles, economic bagigr entry and the discount rate applied to théa dass.
Unanticipated market or macroeconomic events amdmistances could affect the accuracy or validitthe
estimates and assumptions. Determining the uséwfl an intangible asset also requires judgm@nt.
estimates of the useful lives of intangible asaetsprimarily based on a number of factors inclgdiompetitive
environment, underlying product life cycles, opergiplans and the macroeconomic environment of the
countries in which the products are sold. Intareggdssets are amortized over their estimated linemngible
assets associated with acquired in-process resaadctievelopment activities (“IPR&D3re not amortized un
a product is available for sale and regulatory apalris obtained. Amortization expense is includedelling,
general and administrative expenses in the coraelidstatements of operations.

Long-Lived Assets and Goodw

We periodically review our long-lived and amortifmmtangible assets for impairment and assess
whether significant events or changes in businisarostances indicate that the carrying value efabsets me
not be recoverable. Such circumstances may incuggnificant decrease in the market price of an
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asset, a significant adverse change in the mannehich the asset is being used or in its physioaHition or a
history of operating or cash flow losses associatitil the use of an asset. An impairment loss waead
recognized when the carrying amount of an asseteslecthe anticipated future undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset aralvigntual disposition. The amount of the impairnhass to be
recorded is calculated by the excess of the assat’ging value over its fair value. In additione weriodically
reassess the estimated remaining useful livesrabog-lived assets. Changes to estimated usefes hvould
affect the amount of depreciation and amortizatemorded in the consolidated statements of opaative
have not experienced significant changes in theyicay value or estimated remaining useful live®of long-
lived or amortizable intangible assets in the misimcluded in the consolidated financial statement

We assess indefinite life intangibles assets agtmtivith acquired IPR&D for impairment annually,
or whenever impairment indicators exist, by perfiogran initial qualitative analysis to determinghié fair
value of the IPR&D is less than the carrying amafrthe asset. An impairment loss would be recaogghipr the
excess of the asset’s carrying value over itsviae.

We assess goodwill for impairment annually, or wham impairment indicators exist. In the absence
of any impairment indicators, goodwill is assesdedng the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. étedmining
the existence of an impairment indicator, certaglgjnents are required which are based on exteradkian
conditions as well as the current and anticipafestational performance of our business. Futuretevauld
lead us to conclude that impairment indicatorsteatisl that goodwill may be impaired. During therfawquarte!
of fiscal year 2015, we chose to use certain adoogiguidance allowing an entity to perform aniadit
qualitative analysis of the fair value of its refiog units to determine whether it is necessamyridertake a
quantitative goodwill analysis. The qualitative s determined the fair values of the reportingsiexceeded
their carrying values and, as a result, goodwilswat impaired. During fiscal year 2014, we perfedithe
annual goodwill impairment assessment and detedrtimet none of the goodwill was impaired.

We evaluate our investments in equity method ireessfor impairment if circumstances indicate that
the fair value of the investment may be impairduake assets underlying a $4.4 million equity investhzee
currently idled; we have concluded the investmsmtat currently impaired, based on expected futperating
cash flows and/or disposal value.

Environmental Liabilities

Our operations and properties are subject to exteffisderal, state, local and foreign environmental
health and safety laws and regulations, includiragé¢ governing pollution; protection of the enviremt; the
use, management and release of hazardous matsubftances and wastes; air emissions; greenhasse g
emissions; water use, supply and discharge; thestigation and remediation of contamination; theafiacture
distribution, and sale of regulated materials,udaig pesticides; the importing, exporting and sggortation of
products; and the health and safety of our empkogee the public. As such, the nature of our ctirmed forme
operations and those of our subsidiaries exposmd®ur subsidiaries to the risk of claims withpezs to such
matters, including fines, penalties and remediatibligations that may be imposed by regulatory euities. We
record accruals for contingencies when it is prédé#iat a liability has been incurred and the amoan be
reasonably estimated. These accruals are adjustetljzally as assessments change or additionadrniretion
becomes available.

Pension Liabilities

The measurement of our pension and postretirensrfib obligations are dependent on a variety of
assumptions determined by management and used actuaries. These assumptions affect the amowht an
timing of future contributions and expenses. Thenfany reassesses its benefit plan assumptionsegukar
basis. The discount rate is evaluated on measutedates and modified to reflect the prevailing neanate of a
portfolio of high-quality fixed-income debt instr@mts that would provide the future cash flows ndedepay
the benefits included in the benefit obligatiortteesy come due. At June 30, 2015, the discountfoatine
Company’s U.S. pension plan was 4.6% comparedbih 4t June 30, 2014. The expected rate of retuplaon
assets of 6.7% represents the average rate ofiretur
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expected to be earned on plan assets over thelgbadenefit obligations are expected to be paideveloping
the expected rate of return, the Company considagsterm compound annualized returns of histomgatket
data as well as actual returns on the Companyts gdaets.

For discussion of pension liabilities, see “No€£bnsolidated Financial Statements—Employee
Benefit Plans.”

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue for sales of our goods ugorster of title and when risk of loss passes to the
customer. Certain of our businesses have termsavitiker and risk of loss transfer on shipment. @erbf our
businesses have terms where title and risk ofttassfer on delivery. Additional conditions for ogmition of
revenue are that persuasive evidence of an arrargasnists, the selling price is fixed or deterrbiea
collections of sales proceeds are reasonably asamgwe have no further performance obligations.ré¢ord
estimated reductions to revenue for customer progrand incentive offerings, including pricing agaments
and other volume-based incentives, at the timesaleis recorded. Royalty and licensing income flisansing
agreements are recognized when earned under the téthe related agreements, and all performance
obligations have been met, and are included inQddgs in the consolidated statements of operatidgissales
include shipping and handling fees billed to custmnDelivery costs to our customers are includezbst of
goods sold in the consolidated statements of dpestNet sales exclude value-added and other tzas=d on
sales.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes U.S. feljatate, and foreign income taxes and foreign
withholding taxes. Our annual effective incometiate is determined based on our income, statutoryates
and tax planning opportunities available in theéoas jurisdictions in which we operate and theitagacts of
items treated differently for tax purposes thanfiieancial reporting purposes. Tax law requiresainritems be
included in the tax return at different times tllaa items are reflected in the financial stateme®dsne of these
differences are permanent, such as expenses ¢habtadeductible in our tax return, and some diffiees are
temporary, reversing over time, such as depreciai@ense. These temporary differences give riseferred
tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assetengédly represent the tax effect of items that camubed as a tax
deduction or credit in future years for which werdalready recorded the tax benefit in our incotatement.
Deferred tax liabilities generally represent thedéect of items recorded as tax expense in cworire stateme
for which payment has been deferred, the tax effeekpenditures for which a deduction has alrdzesn taken
in our tax return but has not yet been recognimezlir income statement or the tax effect of ageetsrded at
fair value in business combinations for which thees no corresponding tax basis adjustment.

Significant judgment is required in determining @wome tax provision and in evaluating our tax
positions. The recognition and measurement of ptaition is based on management’s best judgmeahghe
facts, circumstances and information availabldatreporting date. Inherent in determining our ahetfective
income tax rate are judgments regarding business pplanning opportunities and expectations afubuite
outcomes. Realization of certain deferred tax asgeimarily net operating loss carryforwards, épendent
upon generating sufficient future taxable incoméhimappropriate jurisdiction prior to the expioatiof the
carryforward periods. We establish valuation allnees for deferred tax assets when the amount afoteg
future taxable income is not likely to support tiee of the deduction or credit.

We operate in multiple jurisdictions with complextpolicy and regulatory environments. In certdi
these jurisdictions, we may take tax positions thahagement believes are supportable, but aret@hen
subject to successful challenge by the applicablmg authority. We evaluate our tax positions estblish
liabilities in accordance with the applicable aaating guidance on uncertainty in income taxes. Algew thes
tax uncertainties in light of changing facts andwnstances, such as the progress of tax auddsgdjost them
accordingly.

We account for income tax contingencies using a&ferecognition model. If our initial assessment
does not result in the recognition of a tax benefé regularly monitor our position and subsequergtognize
the tax benefit if: (i) there are changes in tax & there is new information that
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sufficiently raise the likelihood of prevailing d¢ine technical merits of the position to “more lik&han not;” (i)
the statute of limitations expires; or (iii) thésea completion of an audit resulting in a favoeagéttlement of
that tax year with the appropriate agency. We imtyute-evaluate our tax positions based on the resuksidits
of federal, state and foreign income tax filingsfste of limitations expirations, and changesinlaw or receif
of new information that would either increase ocréase the technical merits of a position relativihe “more-
likely-than-not” standard.

Our assessments concerning uncertain tax posgi@sased on estimates and assumptions that have
been deemed reasonable by management, but ouatstiof unrecognized tax benefits and potential tax
benefits may not be representative of actual ouésprand variation from such estimates could maleaéect
our financial statements in the period of settlenogrwhen the statutes of limitations expire, astrgat these
events as discrete items in the period of resalufiinalizing audits with the relevant taxing autties can
include formal administrative and legal proceedjragsl, as a result, it is difficult to estimate timing and
range of possible changes related to our uncewaipositions, and such changes could be significan

Because there are a number of estimates and assomistherent in calculating the various
components of our income tax provision, certainrfeitevents such as changes in tax legislation,rgpbiz mix
of earnings, completion of tax audits or earnirgggatriation plans could have an impact on thosmatts and
our effective income tax rate.

We have not provided for United States or additidmaign taxes on certain undistributed earninfys o
foreign subsidiaries, which earnings have beenr@irdended to be indefinitely reinvested.

For more information regarding our significant amating policies, estimates and assumptions, see
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Sumroa8ignificant Accounting Policies and New
Accounting Standards.”

Contingencies

Legal matters

We are subject to numerous contingencies arisitigarordinary course of business, such as product
liability and other product-related litigation, camarcial litigation, environmental claims and pradiegs and
government investigations.

Certain of these contingencies could result indesscluding damages, fines and/or civil penalties
and/or criminal charges, which could be substariitd believe that we have strong defenses in ttygss of
matters, but litigation is inherently unpredictabled excessive verdicts do occur. We do not belieaany of
these matters will have a material adverse effeduwr financial position. However, we could incudgments,
enter into settlements or revise our expectatieganding the outcome of certain matters, and sagkldpment
could have a material adverse effect on our res@ibperations or cash flows in the period in which amounts
are paid and/or accrued.

We have accrued for losses that are both probalbleemsonably estimable. Substantially all of these
contingencies are subject to significant unceri@énand, therefore, determining the likelihood ¢dss and/or
the measurement of any loss can be complex. Coas#guwe are unable to estimate the range of redsp
possible loss in excess of amounts accrued. Oassis®nts are based on estimates and assumptibhatba
been deemed reasonable by management, but therass¢process relies heavily on estimates and ga&Eum
that may prove to be incomplete or inaccurate,larahticipated events and circumstances may ocatiright
cause us to change those estimates and assumptions.

Environmental

Our operations and properties are subject to Enmental Laws and regulations. As such, the nature
of our current and former operations exposes tisgaisk of claims with respect to such mattersluding fines
penalties, and remediation obligations that maiyrimosed by regulatory authorities. Under certain
circumstances, we might be required to curtail af@ns until a particular problem is remedied. Knososts
and expenses under Environmental Laws incidentahtwing operations,
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including the cost of litigation proceedings relgtito environmental matters, are generally inclugéhin
operating results. Potential costs and expensesatsaybe incurred in connection with the repaiujpgrade of
facilities to meet existing or new requirementseminvironmental Laws or to investigate or remedaitentia
or actual contamination and from time to time wiabklsh reserves for such contemplated investigatitd
remediation costs. In many instances, the ultimagts under Environmental Laws and the time peatioihg
which such costs are likely to be incurred arediff to predict.

While we believe that our operations are curreintignaterial compliance with Environmental Laws,
we have, from time to time, received notices ofation from governmental authorities, and have hiaealved
in civil or criminal action for such violations. Adionally, at various sites, our subsidiaries @mgaged in
continuing investigation, remediation and/or moriitg efforts to address contamination associatdl historic
operations of the sites. We devote considerabteuress to complying with Environmental Laws and aging
environmental liabilities. We have developed progsado identify requirements under, and maintain gieance
with Environmental Laws; however, we cannot prediith certainty the impact of increased and mor@gént
regulation on our operations, future capital exjitemne requirements, or the cost of compliance.

The nature of our current and former operationoegp us to the risk of claims with respect to
environmental matters and we cannot assure wenatilincur material costs and liabilities in conmectwith
such claims. Based upon our experience to datbglieve that the future cost of compliance withsri
Environmental Laws, and liabilities for known emrnimental claims pursuant to such Environmental L.avils
not have a material adverse effect on our finammaition, results of operations, cash flows owiliify.

For additional details, see “Notes to Consoliddgncial Statements—Commitments and
Contingencies.”

For additional details, see “Business—Environmerieklth and Safety.”
Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

Foreign exchange rist

Portions of our net sales and costs are exposeuhirges in foreign exchange rates. Our products are
sold in more than 65 countries and, as a resulttemenues are influenced by changes in foreighaxge rates.
As we operate in multiple foreign currencies, chemigp those currencies relative to the U.S. doflay impact
our revenue and expenses, and consequently, meh@dExchange rate fluctuations may also have aadin
beyond our reported financial results and direictipact operations. These fluctuations may affeetahility to
buy and sell our goods and services in marketstaifieby significant exchange rate variances.

Our primary foreign currency exposures are the iBaazand Israeli currencies. From time to time, we
manage foreign exchange risk through the use efdorcurrency derivative contracts. These contragsed
to offset the potential earnings effects from expedo foreign currencies.

Our foreign currency derivative contracts at Jube2®15, were analyzed to determine their sensitivi
to foreign exchange rate changes. The fair valfifsese instruments were determined using Levapits. As
of June 30, 2015, the sensitivity analysis of clesrig the fair value of all foreign currency detiva contracts
indicates that if the U.S. dollar were to apprexiat depreciate by 10%, the fair value of thesdraots would,
decrease by $2.4 million or increase by $2.1 nmilliéor additional details, see “Notes to ConsoéidaEinancial
Statements—Derivatives.”

Interest rate risk

Substantially all of our outstanding debt is flogtrate debt. Our Revolving Credit Facility and meB
Loan carry floating interest rates that are tieI®OR and the Prime Rate; therefore, our profiigband cash
flows are exposed to interest rate fluctuationsdeon our outstanding debt balances as of Jurz036, a 100
basis point increase in LIBOR would increase anmtatest expense and decrease cash flows by $hidhm
For additional details, see “Notes to the Constdiddinancial Statements—Debt.”
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Rhisnimal Health Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive income (loss), chaimgs®ckholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flowsgent
fairly, in all material respects, the financial jiim of Phibro Animal Health Corporation and itgsidiaries at
June 30, 2015 and 2014 and the results of thematipas and their cash flows for each of the tlyeas in the
period ended June 30, 2015, in conformity with aotimg principles generally accepted in the Uniitaltes of
America. These financial statements are the redpibtysof the Company’s management. Our respotisjhis
to express an opinion on these financial statemmted on our audits. We conducted our auditseskth
statements in accordance with the standards d?tibéic Company Accounting Oversight Board (UnitddtSs).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbthe
financial statements are free of material misstatgmAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiiahstatements, assessing the accounting prirscyded and
significant estimates made by management, and a&#aduthe overall financial statement presentatie.
believe that our audits provide a reasonable fasur opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey
September 10, 2015
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended June 3(

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Interest expense, stockholders
Interest (income)
Foreign currency (gains) losses, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other (income) expense, net
Income before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) per shal
basic
diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
basic
diluted

Dividends per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial stateme
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2015 2014 2013
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
$748,59: $691,91: $653,15:
512,21¢ 484,13¢ 474,18
236,37 207,77" 178,96¢
148,70« 143,98: 122,23:
87,66¢ 63,79¢ 56,73
14,55« 29,88¢ 31,38
— 3,192 4,38¢
(24¢) (11¢) (142)
(5,400) 1,75¢ 3,10¢
— 22,77 —
= = 151
78,76 6,30¢ 17,84¢
18,48: 9,43t (7,042)
$ 60,28 $ (3,121) $ 24,89:
$ 158 $ (0.1C) $ 0.8
$ 151 $ (01C) $ 0.8
38,96¢ 32,19: 30,45¢
39,81t 32,19: 30,45¢
$ 04C $ 0.8 $ 0.1C
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

For the Years Ended June 3(

Net income (loss)

Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrecognized net pension gains (losses)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss)

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
$ 60,28( $(3,127) $24,89:
(1,92¢) 1,02¢ (222)
(31,31¢4) 1,11( (5,96¢)
(3,221) (4,422) 5,39(
4,92: — (2,01¢)
(31,54() (2,28¢) (2,81¢)
$ 28,74( $(5,41F) $22,07¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthenssolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of June 30 2015 2014
(in thousands, except share and per share amoun
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29,21¢ $ 11,82
Accounts receivable, net 111,09¢ 113,85¢
Inventories, net 149,78 143,18:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,62% 30,42¢
Total current assets 313,72¢ 299,28
Property, plant and equipment, net 104,41 109,15¢
Intangibles, net 37,28: 29,80:
Other assets 37,89¢ 34,07:

Total assets $493,31¢ $472,32:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current portion of long-term debt $ 2,80¢ $ 2,96¢
Accounts payable 63,06: 59,60¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 45,46: 49,86:

Total current liabilities 111,33¢ 112,43t
Revolving credit facility 3,00(¢ —
Long-term debt 283,70¢ 286,42:
Other liabilities 65,64¢ 58,31

Total liabilities 463,69( 457,17

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Common stock, par value $0.0001; 300,000,000 Glastsares
authorized, 17,747,793 and 17,442,953 shares isswkd
outstanding at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 201k ateeely;
30,000,000 Class B shares authorized, 21,320,205 an
21,348,600 shares issued and outstanding at Jur2®39 and
June 30, 2014, respectively 4 4

Preferred stock, par value $0.0001; 16,000,000eshauthorized,
no shares issued and outstanding — —

Paid-in capital 118,19: 132,45:

Accumulated deficit (36,96¢) (97,24¢)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (51,60() (20,06()
Total stockholders’ equity 29,62¢ 15,14¢
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $493,31¢ $472,32:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $60,28C $ (3,1271) $24,89:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal (used) by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortizatic 21,60: 21,45 19,02:
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debtaunt 967 1,44¢ 1,92¢
Acquisition related accrued compensati 747 — —
Acquisition related accrued intere 613 — —
Deferred income taxe 4,761 1,28¢ (12,03%)
Foreign currency (gains) losses, (3,37¢) 1,42¢ 2,88
Other 61 (53€) (1,43¢)
Loss on extinguishment of de — 22,77 —
Payment of premiums and costs on extinguished — (17,20¢) —
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Accounts receivable, n (1,877) (14,687) (72¢)
Inventories, ne (19,35¢) (3,18¢)  (25,10¢)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 7,41¢€ (31) (6,52¢)
Other asset (4,23¢) 5,10: (362)
Accounts payabl 4,79¢ 1,682 (6,601)
Accrued interes 90 (13,81%) 33
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (3,78¢) (3,30¢) 5,47¢
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 68,70 (712) 1,43
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (20,05¢) (19,84¢)  (19,94%)
Business acquisitior (10,377) — (18,69:)
Other, net (4,02¢) 434 281
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (34,46¢) (19,412)  (38,35¢)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under the revolving and domestic seaiedit

facility 38,00( 175,50( 75,00(
Repayments of the revolving and domestic seniatitfacility (35,000) (209,50()  (55,00()
Proceeds from lor-term debt — 289,27! —
Payments of lor-term debt, capital leases and ot (4,090) (335,37¢) (5,201)
Debt issuance cos — (4,551) (924)
Proceeds from common shares iss 1,33¢ 114,42¢ —
Dividends paid (15,59¢) (25,00() (3,000)

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (15,35:) 4,77¢ 10,87¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (1,49¢) (202) (48%)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 17,39t (15,54¢)  (26,53!)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 11,82: 27,36¢ 53,90(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $29,21¢ $ 11,820 $27,36¢
Supplemental cash flow informatic

Interest paic $12,917 $ 4537( $ 33,82«

Income taxes paid, n 10,78( 12,20% 7,061
Non-cash investing and financing activiti

Business acquisitior 4,15¢ — 4,55(

Capital / leasehold improvements and capital leasktions — 1,344 10z

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial stateme
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PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS ’* EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Accumulated

Other
Shares of Common Preferred Accumulated Comprehensive
Common Paid-in
Stock Stock Stock Capital Deficit Income (Loss)  Total
(in thousands, except share amounts)

As of June 30, 2012 30,458,22 ﬁ $_— $ 42,730 $(116,01:) $(14,95¢) $(88,22¢)
Comprehensive income (loss) —  — — — 24,89 (2,81¢) 22,07t
Dividends paid — — — — (3,000) — (3,000)
Stock-based compensation expense — — — 21t — — 21t
As of June 30, 2013 30,458,22 E $_— $ 42,94¢ $ (94,121) $(17,77:) $(68,93¢)
Comprehensive income (loss) —  — — — (3,127) (2,28¢) (5,41%)
Issuance of common stock, net of issu

costs 8,333,33 1 — 114,42¢ — — 114,42¢
Conversion of common stock certificate

and effect of stock split — 4) — 4 — — —
Dividends paid — — — (25,00(0) — — (25,00(0)
Stock-based compensation expense — — — 73 — — 73
As of June 30, 2014 38,791,55 $_4 $_— $132,45. $ (97,24¢) $(20,06() $ 15,14¢
Comprehensive income (loss) —  — = — 60,28( (31,54() 28,74(
Exercise of stock options and warrant 276,51! — — 1,33¢ — — 1,33¢
Dividends paid — — — (15,59¢) — — (15,59¢)
As of June 30, 2015 39,068,06 ﬁ E $118,19. $ (36,96¢) $(51,60() $ 29,62¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial stateme
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. Description of Busines:

Phibro Animal Health Corporation (“Phibro” or “PAHYand its subsidiaries (together, the
“Company”) is a diversified global developer, maantfirer and marketer of a broad range of animdtthead
mineral nutrition products to the poultry, swineftte, dairy, aquaculture and ethanol markets. Ctiapany is
also a manufacturer and marketer of performancguats for use in the personal care, automotivestrél
chemical and chemical catalyst industries. Unlélseravise indicated or the context requires otheswis
references in this report to “we,” “our,” “us,” ‘thCompany” and similar expressions refer to Phéwad its
subsidiaries.

On April 16, 2014, we completed our initial pubdiffering (“IPO”) of 14,657,200 shares of Class A
common stock at a price to the public®#5.00 per share. In connection with the IPO, sgaéd and sold
8,333,333 shares of Class A common stock. The pdsc® us from the IPO were $114,429, after dedgcti
underwriting discounts 0$8,438 and net offering expenses payable by #2¢33. In connection with the IP
Mayflower Limited Partnership (“Mayflower”), a lirtéd partnership that is managed by 3i Investmdntanm
advised by 3i Corporation, and whose sole limitadner is 3i Group plc, the ultimate parent compahlyoth 3i
Investments plc and 3i Corporation, sold 6,323 Stares of Class A common stock. We did not recanye
proceeds from shares sold by Mayflower.

”

In connection with the IPO, we effected a 0.442%atock split. All amounts have been adjusted
retrospectively to give effect to the stock split.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and NewAccounting Standards

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presemta

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAPY arclude the accounts of Phibro and its consadidiat
subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactiave been eliminated from the consolidated firghnc
statements. The decision whether or not to corstalidn entity requires consideration of majoritfing
interests, as well as effective control over thigtyen

We present our financial statements on the basisiofiscal year ending June 30. All references to
years in these consolidated financial statemeifs t@ the fiscal year ending or ended on Junef3bat year.

Risks, Uncertainties and Liquidi

The issue of the potential for increased bactegisistance to certain antibiotics used in certaguf
producing animals is the subject of discussiona @rorldwide basis and, in certain instances, hdisde
government restrictions on or banning of the usantibiotics in food-producing animals. The salaofibiotics
and antibacterials is a material portion of ouribess. Should regulatory or other developmentdtrésu
restrictions on the sale of such products, it ctnalde a material adverse effect on our financialtfm, results
of operations and cash flows.

The testing, manufacturing, and marketing of cartdiour products are subject to extensive regurk
by numerous government authorities in the UnitedeStand other countries.

We have significant assets in Israel, Brazil arigbotocations outside of the United States and a
significant portion of our sales and earnings dtrébatable to operations conducted abroad. Oustassesults ¢
operations and future prospects are subject t@eayrexchange fluctuations and restrictions, enshgytages,
other economic developments, political or sociatability in some countries, and uncertainty ofj an
governmental control over, commercial rights, whiclild result in a material adverse effect on marfcial
position, results of operations and cash flows.
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We are subject to environmental laws and regulatgoverning the use, storage, handling, generation,
treatment, emission, release, discharge and dikpbsertain materials and wastes, the remediaifon
contaminated soil and groundwater, the manufactaie,and use of regulated materials, includingig@dss,
and the health and safety of employees. As suemature of our current and former operations hode of our
subsidiaries expose Phibro and our subsidiariéisetoisk of claims with respect to such matters.

Use of Estimate

Preparation of the consolidated financial statemegrjuires management to make certain estimatt
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsdg@bilities, revenues, expenses and relatedlatiures.
Actual results could differ from these estimatagnlicant estimates include valuation of intangilalssets,
depreciation and amortization periods of long-lieedl intangible assets, recoverability of long-divand
intangible assets and goodwill, realizability ofeteed income tax and value-added tax assets, éghl
environmental matters and actuarial assumptioase@lto our pension plans. We regularly evaluate ou
estimates and assumptions using historical expsgiand other factors. Our estimates are basedmpler
judgments, probabilities and assumptions that viieveeto be reasonabl

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue for sales of our goods ugorster of title and when risk of loss passes to the
customer. Certain of our businesses have termsavitiker and risk of loss transfer on shipment. @erbf our
businesses have terms where title and risk ofttassfer on delivery. Additional conditions for ogmition of
revenue are that persuasive evidence of an arrargesnists, the selling price is fixed or deterrbiea
collections of sales proceeds are reasonably asamgwe have no further performance obligations.ré¢ord
estimated reductions to revenue for customer progrand incentive offerings, including pricing agaments
and other volume-based incentives, at the timesaleis recorded. Royalty and licensing income flisansing
agreements are recognized when earned under the téthe related agreements, and all performance
obligations have been met, and are included inQddgs in the consolidated statements of operatidgissales
include shipping and handling fees billed to custmnDelivery costs to our customers are includezbst of
goods sold in the consolidated statements of dpestNet sales exclude value-added and other tzas=d on
sales.

Cash and Cash Equivaler

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investmensith maturities of three months or less when
purchased. Cash and cash equivalents held at falamstitutions may at times exceed federally esu
amounts. We believe we mitigate such risk by inngsin or through major financial institutions.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aots

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedada@mount and do not bear interest. We granttc
terms in the normal course of business and gegeatalhot require collateral or other security tpport credit
sales. Our ten largest customers representedgiegate, approximately 26% and 21% of accountsvaioke at
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is our bestrede of the probable credit losses in existing
accounts receivable. We monitor the financial penénce and creditworthiness of our customers gontbaan
properly assess and respond to changes in thélit prefile. We also monitor domestic and interoatl
economic conditions for the potential effect on oustomers. Past due balances are reviewed indilydior
collectability. Account balances are charged agdhesallowance when we determine it is probabde th
receivable will not be recovered.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or rear&ost is determined principally under weighted
average and standard cost methods, which approxifinsitin, first-out (FIFO) cost. Obsolete
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and unsalable inventories, if any, are reflectegstimated net realizable value. Inventory costhigie materials
direct labor and manufacturing overhead.

Property, Plant and Equipme

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costc&pitalize interest expense as part of the dost o
construction of facilities and equipment. No instrexpense was capitalized in 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Depreciation is charged to results of operatiomsguthe straight-line method based upon the assets’
estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 30 yearsfiildings and improvements, and 3 to 16 years fo
machinery and equipment.

We capitalize costs that extend the useful lifermductive capacity of an asset. Repair and
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. batieeof disposals, the assets and related accathulat
depreciation are removed from the accounts, andehamounts, less proceeds from disposal, aredadlin th
consolidated statements of operations.

Capitalized Software Cos

We capitalize costs to obtain, develop and impldrseftware for internal use in accordance with
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 380; Internal Use Software. Amounts paid to thirdipa
and costs of internal employees who are directpeiated with the software project are also capéél
depending on the stage of development. We expeafisease costs that do not meet the capitalizatiteria.
Capitalized software costs are included in propgifgnt and equipment on the consolidated balaneets and
are amortized on a straight-line basis over 3yeats.

Deferred Financing Cosl

Costs and original issue discounts or premiumgeelt issuance or modification of our debt are
deferred on the consolidated balance sheet andiaewpver the lives of the respective debt instnts.
Amortization of deferred financing costs is incldde interest expense in the consolidated statesyant
operations.

Acquisitions, Intangible Assets and Good

Our consolidated financial statements reflect therations of an acquired business beginning aseof t
date of acquisition. Assets acquired and liabgitissumed are recorded at their fair values atdtesof
acquisition; goodwill is recorded for any excesshaf purchase price over the fair values of theanséts
acquired.

Significant judgment is required to determine thie ¥alue of certain tangible and intangible asaet
in assigning their respective useful lives. Accoglly, we typically obtain the assistance of thiattg valuation
specialists for significant tangible and intangibsets. The fair values are based on availatilerices
information and on future expectations and asswnptdeemed reasonable by management, but areritigere
uncertain. We typically use an income method tosueathe fair value of intangible assets, whidbaised on
forecasts of the expected future cash flows attaitle to the respective assets. Significant eséisnand
assumptions inherent in the valuations reflectreseration of other marketplace participants, iantlde the
amount and timing of future cash flows (includingpected growth rates and profitability), the ungied
product or technology life cycles, economic bagigr entry and the discount rate applied to théa dass.
Unanticipated market or macroeconomic events amdmistances could affect the accuracy or validitthe
estimates and assumptions. Determining the uséwfl an intangible asset also requires judgm@nt.
estimates of the useful lives of intangible asaetsprimarily based on a number of factors inclgdiompetitive
environment, underlying product life cycles, opergiplans and the macroeconomic environment of the
countries in which the products are sold. Intareggdssets are amortized over their estimated linemngible
assets associated with acquired
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in-process research and development activitiedR&B") are not amortized until a product is availalibr sale
and regulatory approval is obtained. Amortizatigpense is included in selling, general and adniatise
expenses in the consolidated statements of opesatio

Long-Lived Assets and Goodw

We periodically review our long-lived and amortifmmtangible assets for impairment and assess
whether significant events or changes in businigsarostances indicate that the carrying value efabsets me
not be recoverable. Such circumstances may incugignificant decrease in the market price of @etaa
significant adverse change in the manner in whiehasset is being used or in its physical conditioa history
of operating or cash flow losses associated wighuge of an asset. An impairment loss would begrezed
when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds tiepated future undiscounted cash flows expeatesult
from the use of the asset and its eventual dispasithe amount of the impairment loss to be reedrd
calculated by the excess of the asset’s carryihgevaver its fair value. In addition, we periodigaleassess the
estimated remaining useful lives of our long-liassets. Changes to estimated useful lives wouddtatie
amount of depreciation and amortization recordetiénconsolidated statements of operations. We hate
experienced significant changes in the carryingealr estimated remaining useful lives of our Idimge or
amortizable intangible assets in the periods iredlid the consolidated financial statements.

We assess indefinite life intangibles assets agtmtivith acquired IPR&D for impairment annually,
or whenever impairment indicators exist, by perfiogman initial qualitative analysis to determinghié fair
value of the IPR&D is less than the carrying amafrthe asset. An impairment loss would be recaogghipr the
excess of the asset’s carrying value over itsviaie.

We assess goodwill for impairment annually, or weham impairment indicators exist. In the absence
of any impairment indicators, goodwill is assesdedng the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. étedmining
the existence of an impairment indicator, certaglgjnents are required which are based on exteradian
conditions as well as the current and anticipafestational performance of our business. Futuretevauld
lead us to conclude that impairment indicatorsteatisl that goodwill may be impaired. During therfawquarte!
of fiscal year 2015, we chose to use certain adoagiguidance allowing an entity to perform anialit
gualitative analysis of the fair value of its refiiog units to determine whether it is necessamyrdertake a
quantitative goodwill analysis. The qualitative s determined the fair values of the reportingsimore
likely than not exceeded their carrying values asda result, goodwill was not impaired. Duringdilsyear
2014, we performed the annual goodwill impairmesstessment and determined that none of the gooatasl|
impaired.

Foreign Currency Translatio

We generally use local currency as the functionalency to measure the financial position and tssul
of operations of each of our international subsid&a We translate assets and liabilities of tlegserations at th
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet\d@dranslate income statement accounts at thageeates of
exchange prevailing during the period. Translatidjustments that arise from the use of differinghexge rate
from period to period are included in accumulatéteocomprehensive income (loss) in stockholdegsitg.

Certain of our Israeli operations have designatedt.S. dollar as their functional currency. Gaind
losses arising from remeasurement of local curreecpunts into U.S. dollars are included in detaing net
income or loss.

Comprehensive Income (Lo

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incoss) and the changes in: (i) the fair value of
derivative instruments; (ii) foreign currency trii®n adjustment; (iii) unrecognized net pensiaing (losses);
and (iv) the related (provision) benefit for incotages.
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Derivative Financial Instrument

We record all derivative financial instruments be tonsolidated balance sheets at fair value. Gsang
in the fair value of derivatives are recorded isults of operations or accumulated other comprebeirscome
(loss), depending on whether a derivative is degiphand effective as part of a hedge transactidpifso, the
type of hedge transaction. Gains and losses omadié instruments reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) are included in theltesf operations in the periods in which openagiare
affected by the underlying hedged item.

From time to time, we use forward contracts andbostto mitigate exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and as a means of hedygrpbted operating costs. To qualify a derivaiva hedge
we document the nature and relationships betweégiig instruments and hedged items, the highlyctffe
nature of the hedging instrument, the risk-managelejectives, the strategies for undertaking tueous
hedge transactions and the methods of assessigg kffédctiveness. We hedge forecasted transadtions
periods not exceeding the next twenty-four moritie.do not engage in trading or other speculaties a$
financial instruments.

Environmental Liabilities

Expenditures for ongoing compliance with environtaéregulations are expensed or capitalized as
appropriate. We capitalize expenditures made tenekthe useful life or productive capacity of aseds
including expenditures that prevent future envirenmal contamination. Other expenditures are expgkase
incurred and are recorded in selling, general aimli@istrative expenses in the consolidated statésradn
operations. We record the expense and relatedityaibi the period an environmental assessmentateis
remedial efforts are probable and the costs cardmonably estimated. Estimates of the liability lzaised upon
currently available facts, existing technology pnelsently enacted laws and regulations takingdotwideratio
the likely effects of inflation and other societald economic factors. All available evidence issidered,
including prior experience in remediation of contaated sites, other companies’ experiences andrekgased
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency anaéptirganizations. The estimated liabilities are not
discounted. We record anticipated recoveries uexisting insurance contracts if probable.

Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes includes U.S. feljatate, and foreign income taxes and foreign
withholding taxes. Our annual effective incometiate is determined based on our income, statutoryates
and tax planning opportunities available in theouas jurisdictions in which we operate and thed#rcts of
items treated differently for tax purposes thanfiieancial reporting purposes. Tax law requiresainritems be
included in the tax return at different times tllaa items are reflected in the financial stateme®dsne of these
differences are permanent, such as expenses ¢habtadeductible in our tax return, and some diffiees are
temporary, reversing over time, such as depreciai@ense. These temporary differences give riseferred
tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assetemély represent the tax effect of items that camused as a tax
deduction or credit in future years for which werdalready recorded the tax benefit in our incotatement.
Deferred tax liabilities generally represent theaéfect of items recorded as tax expense in ctorite stateme
for which payment has been deferred, the tax effeekpenditures for which a deduction has alrdaelyn taken
in our tax return but has not yet been recogninezlir income statement or the tax effect of assetrded at
fair value in business combinations for which thees no corresponding tax basis adjustment.

Significant judgment is required in determining cwome tax provision and in evaluating our tax
positions. The recognition and measurement of poaition is based on management’s best judgmeahghe
facts, circumstances and information availabldatreporting date. Inherent in determining our ahetfective
income tax rate are judgments regarding businesspplanning opportunities and expectations atubute
outcomes. Realization of certain deferred tax asgeimarily net operating loss carryforwards, épeindent
upon generating sufficient future taxable incoméhimappropriate jurisdiction prior to the expioatiof the
carryforward periods. We establish valuation allnees for deferred tax assets when the amount @foteg
future taxable income is not likely to support tiee of the deduction or credit.
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We operate in multiple jurisdictions with complextpolicy and regulatory environments. In certdi
these jurisdictions, we may take tax positions thahagement believes are supportable, but aret@lgn
subject to successful challenge by the applicadmg authority. We evaluate our tax positions esthblish
liabilities in accordance with the applicable aauting guidance on uncertainty in income taxes. @gew thes
tax uncertainties in light of changing facts andwmnstances, such as the progress of tax auddsa@jost them
accordingly.

Because there are a number of estimates and assosiptherent in calculating the various
components of our income tax provision, future éyasnich as changes in tax legislation, the geograpix of
earnings, completion of tax audits or earningstriggiéon plans could have an effect on those esémand our
effective income tax rate.

Research and Development Expenditt

Research and development expenditures are expassedurred and are recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses in the consolidatedratnts of operations. Most of our manufacturirgilifees
have chemists and technicians on staff involvegtaduct development, quality assurance, qualityroband
providing technical services to customers. Reseaebelopment and technical service efforts arelaoted at
various facilities. Our animal health research dedelopment activities relate to: fermentation dgwment and
micro-biological strain improvement; vaccine deyetent; chemical synthesis and formulation develagme
nutritional specialties development; and ethantaiteg products.

StockBased Compensatic

All stock-based compensation to employees, inclydirants of stock options, is expensed over the
requisite service period based on the grant datedaie of the awards. We determine the fair vaifistock-
based awards using the Black-Scholes oppiocing model which uses both historical and curraarket data t
estimate the fair value. This method incorporatasous assumptions such as the risk-free intea¢st expected
volatility, expected dividend yield and expectdd bf the options.

Net Income per Share and Weighted Average Sl

Basic net income per share is calculated by digidiat income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the reportinggderi

Diluted net income per share is calculated by dngjdchet income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the reportingdeatter giving effect to potential dilutive commshares
resulting from the assumed exercise of stock optamd warrants. For the year ended June 30, 20550k
options were included in the calculation of dilutezt income per share. For the year ended Juriz034,
because there was a net loss, 296,162 net shasexckfoptions and warrants were excluded fronc#ieulatior
of diluted net income per share because of thedilntive effect from the assumed exercise of thesgons and
warrants. For the year ended June 30, 2013 ak stptions and warrants had an exercise price grésda the
estimated market value and thus were excluded fhencalculation due to being anti-dilutive.

For the Periods Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Net income $60,28( $(3,127)  $24,89:
Weighted average number of shi~basic 38,96¢ 32,19: 30,45¢
Dilutive effect of stock options and warre 84¢€ = =
Weighted average number of shi—diluted 39,81t 32,19: 30,45¢
Net income per shar

basic $ 15t $ (0.1C) $ o0.82

diluted $ 151 $ (0.1C) $ 0.82
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New Accounting Standar

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acoting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2015-11,
Inventory (Topic 330), requires entities to measaoventory at the lower of cost and net realizallkie
(“NRV"). NRV is defined as “the estimated sellingges in the ordinary course of business, lessoredsy
predictable costs of completion, disposal, andspartation.” The guidance is effective for annuadipds
beginning after December 15, 2016, and interimaaisriwithin those fiscal years. Early applicatiopésmitted.
We are evaluating the impact of adoption of thiglgnce on our consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2015-05, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Intdrblae Software (Subtopic 350-40). The
amendments in this Update provide guidance to campaegarding the treatment of cloud computing
arrangements and if an arrangement includes aaaftlicense. ASU 2015-05 requires that if ther@niglement
of a license in the arrangement that a companyuastdor that software license element consistett trie
treatment of a direct acquisition of a softwarerise. Otherwise the arrangement is to be accotmtes a
service contract. This guidance does not changexisting guidance relevant to service contradiss guidanc
is effective for annual reporting periods beginnafter December 15, 2015, and interim periods withbse
fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for bptbspective and retrospective transition methods.dé/not
expect adoption of this guidance will have a matezifect on our consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (SuditB35-30), intends to simplify presentation of
debt issuance costs. The provisions of ASU 201Ee68ire that debt issuance costs related to adedatebt
liability be presented in the balance sheet asextdleduction from the carrying amount of thattdiglility,
consistent with the treatment required of debtalists. The current treatment, as prescribed bguhently
effective literature, is to capitalize the costglebt issuance as an asset. The recognition ansunesaent
guidance for debt issuance costs otherwise renmaffacted. The provisions of ASU 2015-03 are effector
annual reporting periods beginning after DecembeR015, and interim periods within those fiscadnge Early
adoption is permitted. We do not expect adoptiothizf guidance will have a material effect on comsolidated
financial statements.

ASU 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about atitifs Ability to Continue as a Going Concern,
requires management to assess an entity’s alolitpmtinue as a going concern, and to provideeelfdotnote
disclosures in certain circumstances. Managemdhheed to assess if there is substantial doubtitzdo
entity’s ability to continue as a going concernhiitone year after the issuance date. Managemdniesid to
consider relevant conditions that are known andaeably knowable at the issuance date. Substalotiddt
exists if it is probable that the entity will beabie to meet its obligations within one year afterissuance date.
Under the new standard, the definition of subsséhaibubt incorporates a likelihood thresholdprbbable”
similar to the current use of that term in GAAP lfags contingencies. ASU 2014-15 will be effectioeannual
periods ending after December 15, 2016. Earlieptidio is permitted. We do not expect adoption &f th
guidance will have a material effect on our cordatted financial statements.

ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Custor(iBopic 606), establishes principles for the
recognition of revenue from contracts with custan@&he underlying principle is to identify the perhance
obligations of a contract, allocate the revenueaoh performance obligation and then to recogmizenue whe
the company satisfies a specific performance ofitigaf the contract. Subsequent to June 30, 28$%) 2015-
14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers — Ddfefrthe Effective Date, was issued resulting ion year
deferral of the ASU 2014-09 effective date. ThuSUA2014-09 is effective for annual periods begigrafter
December 15, 2017, and interim periods within tHasml years. Early adoption is permitted for aameriods
beginning after December 15, 2016.. The guidanoaldibe applied retrospectively to each prior répgr
period presented. We are currently evaluatingriygact that adopting this guidance will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2014-08, Presentation of Financials (Topic 28%) Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360):
Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosufd3igposals of Components of an Entity, changes the
criteria for reporting a discontinued operation f@nhancing disclosures. Under the new
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guidance, a disposal of a component of an entiyroup of components of an entity that represestsatiegic
shift that has, or will have, a major effect on @i®ns and financial results is a discontinuedrafien when an
of the following occurs: (i) it meets the critet@be classified as held for sale, (ii) it is dispd of by sale, or
(iii) it is disposed of other than by sale. Alsdy@siness that, on acquisition, meets the criterlze classified as
held for sale is reported in discontinued operatiddditionally, the new guidance requires exparntisdlosure
about discontinued operations, as well as disctostithe pre-tax profit or loss attributable toispdsal of an
individually significant component of an entity tidoes not qualify for discontinued operations pn¢ation.
The guidance is effective prospectively for allpgisals (or classifications as held for sale) of gonents of an
entity and all businesses that, on acquisitionctassified as held for sale, that occur withinuadrperiods
beginning on or after December 15, 2014 and int@eéniods within those years. We do not expect adojutf
this guidance will have a material effect on ounsidated financial statements.

3. Statements of Operation—Additional Information

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Interest expense
Term B Loan $11,717 $ 2,41¢ $ —
Revolving credit facility 91¢ 171 —
Domestic senior credit facility — 1,32¢ 1,25C
Senior notes — 24,28 27,75(
Mayflower, BFI and Teva term loans — 3,051 3,84(
Acquisition-related accrued interest 613 — —
Amortization of deferred financing fees, debt

discount and imputed interest 967 1,44¢ 2,42¢
Other 33¢ 38z 50t

$14,55¢ $33,08! $35,77:

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment $16,81: $16,43¢ $14,917

Amortization of intangible assets 4,56( 4,897 4,10¢
Amortization of other assets 231 117 —
Depreciation and amortization $21,60¢ $21,45: $19,02:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ideiamortization of capitalized software costs of
$2,905, $2,657 and $2,159 during 2015, 2014 an@,2@%spectively.

Amortization of intangible assets is expected t&86&60, $3,941, $3,783, $3,749, $3,581 and $1¢
for 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, and 2020 and therea#tspectively.

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Research and development expenditures $9,511 $8,21: $6,63¢

4. Balance Sheet—Additional Information

As of June 30 2015 2014
Accounts receivable, net

Trade accounts receival $114,47" $115,09:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,37¢) (1,23¢)

$111,09¢  $113,85¢
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As of June 30

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Balance at beginning of peri
Provision for bad debt

Effect of changes in exchange ra
Bad debt write-offs (recovery)

Balance at end of period

2015 2014
$1,23¢ $ 65¢
2,581 22€
(21€) 351
(22€) —
$3,37¢ $1,23¢

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the beginniranbelfor allowance for doubtful accounts was
$1,041, the provision for bad debts was ($124) bt debt write-offs was $6 and the effect of clesrig
exchange rates was ($265), resulting in an enditenbe for allowance for doubtful accounts$&’8.

As of June 30 2015 2014
Inventories, net

Raw material $ 40,01: $ 44,30¢
Work-in-process 7,617 7,51¢
Finished goods 102,15 91,36(

$ 149,78t $ 143,18:

Property, plant and equipment, net

Land $ 913C $ 9,77:
Buildings and improvemen 50,27¢ 51,36¢
Machinery and equipment 171,79 172,53(
231,20: 233,66°
Accumulated depreciation (126,78¢) (124,50¢)

$104,41. $ 109,15!

Certain facilities in Israel are on land leaseddarominal amount from the Israel Land AuthoritheT
lease expires in July 2062. Certain facilitiesdrakl are on leased land. The lease expires inrNoee2035.

Net equipment under capital leases was $48 and &Lane 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
including accumulated depreciation 2 and $79, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment, net includes infeura software costs, net of accumulated
depreciation, 0f$6,747 and $9,019 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, athsgly.

Machinery and equipment includes construction-iogpess of$5,748 and $4,782 at June 30, 2015
2014, respectively.

Weighted-

Average

Useful Life
As of June 30 (Years) 2015 2014
Intangibles, net
Cost
Medicated feed additive product registrati 10 $11,75:  $11,79:
Rights to sell in international marke 10 4,29 4,29:
Customer relationshig 13 10,61¢ 10,70z
Technology 12 38,58( 28,25¢
Distribution agreemen 4 3,29¢ 3,44,
Trade names, trademarks and ot 5 2,74 2,74(
In-process research and developn 1,57¢ —

72,851 61,23:
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Weighted-
Average
Useful
Life
As of June 30 (Years) 2015 2014
Accumulated amortization
Medicated feed additive product registrati (10,66¢) (11,03¢)
Rights to sell in international marke (4,292)  (4,292)
Customer relationshig (5,267)  (4,26F)
Technology (9,741)  (6,51()
Distribution agreemeni (3,29¢)  (3,30¢)
Trade names, trademarks and other (2,30¢)  (2,01¢)
(35,57¢)  (31,42¢)

$37,28.  $29,80:
As of June 30 2015 2014
Other assets
Goodwill $12,61:  $12,61:
Acquisition related note receivak 5,00( —
Equity method investmen 4,72¢ 5,61¢
Insurance investmen 4,78¢ 4,62¢
Deferred financing fee 4,33t 5,19¢
Deferred income taxe 221 3,48¢
Other 6,21: 2,52¢

$37,89t  $34,07:

Goodwill balances did not change during 2015 artth20

We evaluate our investments in equity method ireessfor impairment if circumstances indicate that
the fair value of the investment may be impaireake assets underlying a $4,364 equity investmentwarently
idled; we have concluded the investment is notently impaired, based on expected future operatasip flows
and/or disposal value.

As of June 30 2015 2014
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Employee related accruz $22,27: $20,81:
Commissions and rebat 4,14¢ 2,97:
Insurance relate 1,36¢ 1,39
Professional fee 3,54: 4,22¢
Deferred consideration on acquisitic 1,19¢ 1,42(
Product liability claims — 5,28¢
Other accrued liabilities 12,93¢ 13,74¢

$45,46: $49,86:

Other liabilities

Pension and other retirement bene $30,90¢ $31,02¢
Long term and deferred income ta: 19,09¢ 14,28:
Deferred consideration on acquisitic 7,26¢ 2,87¢
Other long term liabilities 8,37¢ 10,12¢

$65,64¢ $58,31¢
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As of June 30 2015 2014
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Derivative instrument $(1,54:) $ 38¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm (32,72:)  (1,40¢)
Unrecognized net pension gains (los: (19,88¢) (16,66%)
Income tax (provision) benefit on derivative instrents 63 63
Income tax (provision) benefit on long-term intarguany

investments 4,92: —
Income tax (provision) benefit on pension gainsg&s) (2,437) (2,437)

$(51,600) $(20,06()

5. MJB Transactions

In January 2015, we entered into a CollaboratiahRistribution Agreement (the “Collaboration
Agreement”) with MJ Biologics, Inc. (“MJB”), pursaato which we and MJB will collaborate on the
development of certain animal vaccines and MJBtgrhaos an exclusive license to manufacture andlulise,
in North America, any vaccine product currentlyrigedeveloped or sold by MJB or any other produat th
developed under the Collaboration Agreement. Wereiinburse MJB’s cost of goods, make certain minmim
base payments 00 per month to MJB during the term of the Callabion Agreement, subject to certain
offset provisions, and pay 50% of all gross margivsr $400 per month to MJB.

We also entered into a Technology License Agreeitibat‘License Agreement”) with MJB, pursuant
to which MJB granted us an exclusive license tcetlgy, manufacture and commercialize, outside otiNor
America, vaccine products using MJB'’s patents amakhow. We will make quarterly royalty payments to
MJB in an amount equal to a specified percentagebéales outside of North America.

Unless otherwise terminated due to material breadfankruptcy, the Collaboration Agreement and
the License Agreement will continue in effect uthié earlier of the Closing Date of the PurchaseeAgent
described below or the termination of the Purchsgeement without the Closing occurring thereunder.

We also entered into an Intellectual Property PasehAgreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with
MJB, pursuant to which we will acquire the intetlesd property and certain other assets comprisidg’
business relating to animal vaccines. The closatg df the acquisition (the “Closing” or the “ClogiDate”) is
anticipated to occur on or before January 1, 28abject to certain closing conditions. Upon theuoeence of
certain events, the Closing of the Purchase Agreemil occur prior to the scheduled Closing Date.

Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, we madgfront payment to MJB of $5,000 and
agreed to pay MJB a “Closing Payment” at Closingriramount to be calculated based on the worldnéde
sales of MJB'’s vaccines for the twelve months imiatedly prior to the Closing Date. The Closing Papinill
not be less than $10,000, subject to offset iragetimited circumstances. In addition, MJB will betitled to
receive earn-out payments, from the Closing Dateutljh December 31, 2030, based on (i) a singlé-digi
percentage of the net sales of any “Royalty Prddastdefined in the License Agreement) that wé sel
commercially in North America, and (ii) a singlegiipercentage of the net sales of any Royalty Rrbthat we
sell commercially outside of North America, at thee of or after the Closing.

In connection with this transaction, we also madieaa of $5,000 to MJB's sole shareholder, which
matures on the Closing Date. The loan bears irtatesvariable rate equal to LIBOR plus 300 bpsists, and
accrued interest shall be paid semi-annually oh daty 1 and January 1. The unpaid principal amoftittie
loan, together with all outstanding and unpaidredg will be due and payable at Closing or ovperod ending
January 2025 in the event of a termination of thecRase Agreement by us or upon the occurrencertdin
customary events of default.
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We have accounted for the MJB transaction as abssicombination in accordance with ASC 805,
Business Combinations. We have recorded intangisdets of$9,156, which includes $7,577 of technology-
related assets and $1,579 of IPR&D, and a long-tiatoility of $4,156, net of the upfront payment, payable at
the Closing Date and during the earn-out period.nvdg further refine the determination of the inthhgassets
during the measurement period. The closing payméhalso include $5,040 (pro-rated on a monthlgiss
conditional upon continuing service of a key empkyhrough January 2018; this amount will be reeghas
compensation expense over the service period. Asraé 30, 2015, $747 of accrued compensation was
recognized and included in the long-term liability.

We determined the fair value of the identifiabl&irgible assets based on the present value of the
estimated projected cash flows and assigned alugefaf 15 years. We determined the fair valuetod
estimated future consideration payable based oprdsent value of the estimated payments due &ltsng
Date and for estimated payments due during the@atrperiod, based on projected revenues. The/&ie
measurements are based on significant inputs reetredble in the market and represent a Level 3 unesmnt
within the fair value hierarchy. The fair valuetb& consideration payable is based on factorsdimojuestimate
cash flow projections and a risk-adjusted discoatd. The fair value of the consideration payahlebe
evaluated at each reporting date and changes faithealue will be recorded in the statement oéigtions.

We have not provided pro forma information givirffpet to the acquisition because the results of
operations of MJB for the period from the date afusition to June 30, 2015 were not material & th
consolidated financial statements.

6. Debt

Retirement of 9.25% Senior Notes, Mayflower Teraml.8F| Term Loan and Domestic Senior Credit Fac

In connection with our IPO, in April 2014, we retir a $24,000 term loan payable to Mayflower due
December 31, 2016, a $10,000 term loan payablé-tcCB., LLC (“BFI"), a Bendheim family investment
vehicle, due August 1, 2014 and $36,000 of outstenldorrowings under our domestic senior creditlitscIn
addition, in May 2014, we retired $300,000 of 9.288fior notes, which were due July 1, 2018 (thenitBe
Note¢"). Primarily as the result of the retirement of th@iBeNotes, our consolidated statement of operatfor
the year ended June 30, 2014 included a $22,7%bloextinguishment of debt.

Revolving Credit Facility and Term B Lo.

In April 2014, Phibro, together with certain of #sbsidiaries acting as guarantors, entered icedit
Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with lendersnfrtime to time party thereto. Under the Credit Agnent,
the lenders agreed to extend credit to the Compathe form of (i) a Term B loan in an aggregate principal
amount equal to $290,000 (the “Term B Loan”) anijda(revolving credit facility in an aggregate piipal
amount 0f$100,000 (the “Revolver,” and together with thefé8 Loan, the “Credit Facilities”). The Revolver
was undrawn at closing and contains a letter dafitfacility. We issued the Term B Loan at 99.75¢par
value. In connection with entering into the Crdgitilities, we incurred and capitalized deferrezficing fees
of $4,551.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bear intetesed on a fluctuating rate equal to the surmof a
applicable margin and, at the Companglection from time to time, either (1) a Euroewny rate determined |
reference to LIBOR with a term as selected by they@any, of one day or one, two, three or six mofdhs
twelve months or any shorter amount of time if @med to by all of the lenders under the applickide), or
(2) a base rate determined by reference to theehtgif (a) the rate as publicly announced from timerwetby
Bank of America as its “prime rate,” (b) the feddtads effective rate plus 0.50% and (c) one-maniBOR
plus 1.00%. The Revolver has applicable marginslegul.50% or 1.75%, in the case of base rateslcamd
2.50% or 2.75%, in the case of LIBOR loans; thegimarare based on the First Lien Net Leverage Ratie
Term B Loan has applicable margins equal to 2.08%e case of base rate loans, and 3.00%, inabe af
LIBOR loans. Interest on the Term B Loan is subfec floor of 1.00% in the case of LIBOR loans.
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Indebtedness under the Credit Facilities is caltditeed by a first priority lien on substantialllf a
assets of Phibro and certain of our domestic sidsgéd. The Term B Loan requires, among other #ing
mandatory quarterly principal payments®¥25 beginning September 2014. The maturity daftése Revolver
and the Term B Loan are April 2019 and April 20&kpectively.

Pursuant to the terms of the Credit AgreementCitealit Facilities are subject to various covenants
which, among other things and subject to the pésthiéxceptions described therein, restrict us amd o
subsidiaries with respect to: (i) incurring additi debt; (ii) making certain restricted paymentsnaking
optional redemptions of other indebtedness; (ilking investments or acquiring assets; (iv) disppsif assets
(other than in the ordinary course of busines9)¢(gating any liens on our assets; (vi) entenig transactions
with affiliates; (vii) entering into merger or caiilation transactions; and (viii) creating guassnbbligations;
provided, however, that we are permitted to paribistions to stockholders out of available cashjsct to
certain annual limitations and so long as no defaukvent of default under the Credit Facilitibals have
occurred and be continuing at the time such digtidin is declared.

The Revolver requires, among other things, the tapance of a maximum consolidated first lien net
debt to consolidated EBITDA leverage ratio, caltedeon a trailing four quarter basis, and contaims
acceleration clause should an event of defauld¢fised in the agreement) occur. The permitted mari ratio
is 4.50:1.00 for measurement periods through JOn@(@L5 and 4.25:1.00 for measurements periodsdfter.

As of June 30, 2015, we were in compliance withdireenants of the Credit Facilities.

As of June 30, 2015, we had $3,000 in borrowingteuthe Revolver and had outstanding letters of
credit of $14,008, leaving $82,992 available for borrowingd letters of credit under the Revolver. We obtain
letters of credit in connection with certain redafg and insurance obligations, inventory purchasesother
contractual obligations. The terms of these letdéizredit are all less than one year.

The weighted-average interest rate on the Revelasr2.80% for the year ended June 30, 2015. There
were no outstanding borrowings under the facilitythe year ended June 30, 2014.

The weighted-average interest rate on the TermaB Woas 4.00% for the years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014.
Foreign Shor-Term Deb!

Our Israel subsidiaries have aggregate creditifiasilavailable of approximately $15 million (the
“Israel Credit Facility”). As of June 30, 2015, Wwad no outstanding borrowings or other commitments
outstanding under the Israel Credit Facility. letgrate elections under the Israel Credit Fadlity LIBOR plus
2.25% or Prime Rate plus 0.5%. The Israel CreditliBamatures in December 2015.

Long-Term Debi

As of June 30 2015 2014
Term B loan due April 202 $287,10(  $290,00(
Capitalized lease obligations 18 94
287,11¢ 290,09
Unamortized debt discount (60C) (702)
286,51 289,39:
Less: current maturities (2,80¢) (2,96¢)

$283,70¢  $286,42.
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Aggregate Maturities of Lor-Term Debt
For the Years Ended June 3(

2016 $ 2,91
2017 2,90¢
2018 2,90(
2019 2,90(
2020 2,90(
Thereafter 272,60(

Total $287,11¢

7. Common Stock, Warrant, Preferred Stock and Dividend

Preferred stock and common stock at June 30, 2042614 were:

2015 2014 2015 2014
As of June 30 Authorized Shares Par value Issued and outstanding shares
Preferred stoc 16,000,000 16,000,000 $0.000: — —
Common stoc-Class A 300,000,00 300,000,00 $0.000: 17,747,79 17,442,95
Common stoc—Class B 30,000,000  30,000,00! $0.000: 21,320,27 21,348,60

Common Stock and Common Stock Warre

General

Except as otherwise provided by our amended andteescertificate of incorporation or applicable
law, the holders of our Class A common stock aras€B common stock shall vote together as a solgbs.
There are no cumulative voting rights.

Holders of our Class A common stock and Class Braomstock are entitled to receive dividends
when and if declared by our Board of Directors affunds legally available therefore, subject tg atatutory o
contractual restrictions on the payment of divideadd to any restrictions on the payment of divideimposed
by the terms of any outstanding preferred stock.

Upon our dissolution or liquidation or the saleatifor substantially all of our assets, after paghie
full of all amounts required to be paid to creditand to the holders of preferred stock havingdigtion
preferences, if any, the holders of our Class Aroom stock and Class B common stock will be entitted
receive our remaining assets available for distigiou

Class A Common Sto

Holders of our Class A common stock are entitledrte vote for each share held of record on all
matters submitted to a vote of stockholders.

Holders of our Class A common stock do not havemgive, subscription or conversion rights. Our
Class A common stock is not convertible and theeena redemption or sinking fund provisions appileao
our Class A common stock. Unless our Board of Dinecdetermines otherwise, we will issue all of capital
stock in uncertificated form.

Class B Common Sto

Holders of our Class B common stock are entitletitwotes for each share held of record on all
matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. BRd$all of our outstanding Class B common stock.

Holders of our Class B common stock do not havempmive or subscription rights. There are no
redemption or sinking fund provisions applicabl®tw Class B common stock.

94




TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

Each share of Class B common stock is convertitdmatime at the option of the holder into one
share of Class A common stock. In addition, eaetnesbf Class B common stock will convert automaidato
one share of Class A common stock upon any transfether or not for value, except for certain sfens by
and among BFl, its affiliates and certain Bendhtimily members, as described in the amended atatees
certificate of incorporation. Once transferred andverted into Class A common stock, the ClassrBroon
stock will not be reissued. In addition, all shavé€lass B common stock will automatically convershares ¢
Class A common stock when the outstanding shar€$ast B common stock and Class A common stock held
by BFI, its affiliates and certain Bendheim famihembers, together, is less than 15% of the totatanding
shares of Class A common stock and Class B commock,2aken as a single class.

Holders of our Class B common stock have the fighéquire us to register the sales of their shares
under the Securities Act, under the terms of aeergent between us and the holders.

Class B Common Stock Warrz

On August 1, 2014, a common stock purchase wafoartihe purchase of 386,750 shares of Class B
common stock, held by BFI, was automatically exsedi BFI paid the exercise price®f1.83 per share on a
cashless basis, resulting in a net issuance o6I6%hares of Class B common stock to BFI.

Preferred Stock

We do not have any preferred stock outstanding.Bard of Directors has the authority to issue
shares of preferred stock from time to time on teitnmay determine, to divide shares of prefertedksinto one
or more series and to fix the designations, prefes, privileges, and restrictions of preferredlstincluding
dividend rights, conversion rights, voting righttexms of redemption, liquidation preference, sigkiund terms,
and the number of shares constituting any seritiseodesignation of any series to the fullest edgpenmitted by
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delawa&he issuance of our preferred stock could haweffect
of decreasing the trading price of our Class A camrstock, restricting dividends on our capital ktatiluting
the voting power of our Class A common stock, impgithe liquidation rights of our capital stock,delaying
or preventing a change in control of the Company.

Dividends

We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends tadlec of our Class A and Class B common stock out
of assets legally available for this purpose. Welated and paid quarterly cash dividends totalib§, $95 for
the year ended June 30, 2015, to holders of owss@lacommon stock and Class B common stock. Ourdut
ability to pay dividends will depend upon our résuf operations, financial condition, capital regments, our
ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries arides factors that our Board of Directors deemsviaaie
Additionally, the terms of our current and any fietagreements governing our indebtedness coult diani
ability to pay dividends or make other distribuson

8. Stock Option Plan

In March 2008, our Board of Directors and stockleoddadopted the 2008 Incentive Plan (the
“Incentive Plan”). The Incentive Plan provides dias, officers, employees and consultants to thegany
with opportunities to purchase common stock purst@options that may be granted, and receive graint
restricted stock and other stock-based awardsegtafrom time to time by the Board of Directorsaor
committee approved by the Board. The Incentive Planides for grants of stock options, stock awanoid
other incentives for up to 6,630,000 shares. There 5,131,620 Class A shares available for grargyant to
the Incentive Plan as of June 30, 2015.

In February 2009 and April 2013, PAHC’s Compensatmmmittee awarded stock options with an
exercise price 0$11.83 per share, pursuant to the Incentive Pfaconnection with the grants, we obtained
third party valuation reports and determined thatdxercise price per share was not less than the
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fair value of the common stock at the grant date Weighted-average grant-date fair value of stgtlons was
$0.99. The awards granted were rpradified stock options that vested at various sl#teough March 2014. T
options expire in February 2019. All stock opti@me exercisable for Class A common stock.

The Company recognized compensation expense faptiens over the vesting period in selling,
general and administrative expenses. As of Jun2@®IH, there was no unrecognized compensation egpen
Expense related to stock options for 2015, 2014281@8, was $0, $73 and $215, respectively. Thevalig
table summarizes the activity related to stockamgiduring 2015:

Weighted-
Average
Exercise Price
Per
Options Shares Share
Outstanding, June 30, 20 1,498,38I $11.8:
Granted — —
Exercisec (112,84() $11.8¢
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding, June 30, 2015 1,385,54! $11.8:
Exercisable, June 30, 20 1,385,54i $11.8¢

All options were fully vested and exercisable atel@0, 2015. At June 30, 2015, options outstanding
and exercisable had a weighted average remainimgazual life was 3.7 years, and had a $37,56 2cagdge
intrinsic value, based on the market price as aff tlate, less the exercise price.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricingehfor determining the fair value of option
grants. The following assumptions were used irBlaek-Scholes model in determining the fair valti¢he
most recently granted stock options:

2013
Risk-free rate of retur 2.70%
Expected life 3.0to 7.5 year
Expected volatility 35%-50%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00%

The risk-free rate of return is based on U.S. traagates, for bonds with similar maturities, ashof
grant date. The expected life is based on histiaicaover rates by employee classification. Expdatolatility
is estimated based on implied volatility and a cargon to similar publicly traded companies in $&mi

industries. At the dates of the grants, the expedieédend yield assumed the Company would notgiaiglends
for the expected life of the options.

9. Related Party Transactions

The Mayflower term loan and the BFI term loan wezlated party transactions for the periods
outstanding.

Certain relatives of Mr. Bendheim provided servit®as as employees or consultants and received

aggregate compensation and benefits of approxin&igd27, $1,764 and $1,858 for 2015, 2014 and 2013
respectively.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a noncontributory defineceliepension plan for all domestic nonunion
employees employed on or prior to December 31, 2@h8 meet certain requirements of age, lengtrenfise
and hours worked per year. Plan benefits are hasaa years of service and average compensatiatefeed.
The measurement dates for the pension plan westlme 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013.
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Changes in the projected benefit obligation, plesets and funded status were:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014
Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $57,59¢ $ 46,56¢
Service cos 2,95¢ 2,457
Interest cos 2,61¢ 2,33
Benefits paic (1,11¢) (1,092)
Actuarial (gain) loss 55C 7,33
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 62,608 $57,59¢
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $39,58. $ 31,50:
Actual return on plan asse (1,24¢) 4,33¢
Employer contribution 6,81°F 4,83t
Benefits paid (1,11€)  (1,092)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $44,03. $ 39,58
Funded status at end of year $(18,57:) $(18,01¢)

The funded status is included in other liabiliieshe consolidated balance sheets. At June 3G 201
and 2014, the accumulated benefit obligation was3B! and $51,980, respectively.

The Company expects to contribute approximately@®to the pension plan during 2016. We seek
to maintain an asset balance that meets the langftending requirements identified by actuarialjpotions
while also satisfying ERISA fiduciary responsibé.

Accumulated other comprehensive (income) lossedlad the pension plan was:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of peri $16,66: $12,24(
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain) and pservice costs (1,40%) (903)
Current period net actuarial loss (gain) 4,62¢ 5,32¢
Net change 3,221 4,42:
Balance at end of period $19,88:¢ $16,66:

Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial (gagd and prior service costs will be approximately
$1,589 during 2016.

Net periodic pension expense w

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Service co—benefits earned during the ye $ 2,95¢ $ 2,451 $ 2,72¢
Interest cost on benefit obligatis 2,61¢ 2,33: 2,05¢
Expected return on plan ass (2,82¢) (2,33¢) (2,13¢)
Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior seevic

costs 1,40¢ 904 1,40¢
Net periodic pension expen $ 4,14¢ $ 3,36( $ 4,05¢
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Significant actuarial assumptions for the plan were

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013

Discount rate for service and inter 4.5% 5.0% 4.4%

Expected rate of return on plan as: 6.7% 7.0% 7.5%
3.0%-

Rate of compensation incree 3.75% 3.0%-4.5% 3.0%4.5%

Discount rate for ye-end benefit obligatio 4.6% 4.5% 5.0%

The plan used the Aon Hewitt AA Bond Universe deachmark for its discount rate as of June 30,
2015, 2014 and 2013. The discount rate is detedrigenatching the pension plan’s timing and amaint
expected cash outflows to a bond yield curve cangtd from a population of AA-rated corporate basslies
which are generally non-callable and have at 18250 million par value outstanding. From this, diecount
rate that results in the same present value isiiedéd.

Estimated future benefit payments, including besefitributable to future service, are:

For the Years Ended June 3(

2016 $ 1,68t
2017 1,93¢
2018 2,17:
2019 2,43
2020 2,72¢
2021-2024 17,88¢

The plan’s target asset allocations for 2016 ardabighted-average asset allocation of plan aasets
of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are:

Target
Allocation Percentage of Plan Assets
For the years ended June 30 2016 2015 2014
10%-
Debt securitie: 35% 19% 20%
20%—
Equity securitie: 50% 35% 35%
20%-
Global asset allocation/risk par(? 40% 35% 35%
Other 0%—25% 11% 10%

(1) The global asset allocation/risk parity categomsists of a variety of asset classes including nbut
limited to, global bonds, global equities, reab#stand commoditie:

The expected long-term rate of return for the [ddotal assets is generally based on the plan&t ass
mix. In determining the rate to use, we considerdkpected long-term real returns on asset catgori
expectations for inflation, estimates of the effefcactive management and actual historical returns

The investment policy and strategy is to earn g kenm investment return sufficient to meet the
obligations of the plans, while assuming a modeaiateunt of risk in order to maximize investmentiret In
order to achieve this goal, assets are investadimersified portfolio consisting of equity seties, debt
securities, and other investments in a manner stamgiwith ERISA’s fiduciary requirements.
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The fair values of the Company’s plan assets bgtasgegory were:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc¢

As of June 30, 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalel $ 12¢ $ — $ — $ 12¢
Commot-collective funds
Global large cap equitie — 10,99¢ — 10,99¢
Fixed income securitie — 8,56¢ — 8,56¢
Global asset allocations/risk par — 6,68¢ — 6,68¢
Mutual funds
Global equities 4,36€ — — 4,36¢€
Global asset allocations/risk par 4,30z — — 4,30:
Other
Global asset allocations/risk par — — 4,251 4,251
Other — — 4,73¢ 4,73¢

$8,79¢ $26,24¢ $8,98¢ $44,03:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc¢

As of June 30, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalel $ 13¢ $ — $ — $ 13¢
Commot-collective funds
Global large cap equitie — 9,90¢ — 9,90¢
Fixed income securitie — 3,93¢ — 3,93¢
Global asset allocations/risk par — 5,80z — 5,80z
Mutual funds
Global equities 3,92¢ — — 3,92¢
Fixed income securitie 1,91: — — 1,91:
Global asset allocations/risk par 3,92 — — 3,92
Other
Fixed income securitie — — 2,007 2,007
Global asset allocations/risk par — — 3,95¢ 3,95¢
Other — — 4,07( 4,07(

$9,90¢ $19,64" $10,03: $39,58:

The table below provides a summary of the chang#sei fair value of Level 3 assets:

Change in Fair Value Level 3 asset 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of peri $10,03: $ 28C
Redemption: (2,02¢) 22
Purchase 1,28( 9,77:
Change in fair value (29¢€) (44)
Balance at end of period $ 8,98¢ $10,03:

The following outlines the valuation methodologie®d to estimate the fair value of our pension plan
assets:

e Cash and cash equivalents are valued at $1niter u

+ Common-collective funds are determined basedusrent market values of the underlying assets
of the fund,;

« Mutual funds and foreign currency deposits aleed using quoted market prices in active
markets; and
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» For Level 3 managed assets, business appraise® combination of valuations and appraisal
methodologies, as well as a number of assumpt@mossate a price which brokers evaluate. For
Level 3 non-managed assets, pricing is providedaniypus sources, such as issuer or investment
manager.

Our consolidated balance sheets include othellitiabiof $12,438 and $13,007 as of June 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively, for other retirement beggificluding supplemental executive retirementeliés
international retirement plans and other employa®ebt plans. Expense under these plans was $3328832
and $2,817 for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

We provide a 401(k) retirement savings plan, unddch United States employees may make a pre-
tax contribution of up to the lesser of 60% of cemgation or the maximum amount permitted undebtise
Internal Revenue Code. We make a matching coniib@tgual to 100% of the first 1% of an employee’s
contribution and make a matching contribution eqa@0% of the next 5% of an employee’s contributio
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2014, recaimonelective Company contribution of 3% and are elig
to receive an additional discretionary payment leetw1% and 4%, depending on age and years of egrvic
provided that such payments comply with mandatary-discrimination testing. Participants are fulsted in
employer contributions after two years of servidar contribution expense was $1,583, $1,281 anti7$lin
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

11. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes was:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Domestic $15,93: $(26,22¢)  $(6,581)
Foreign 62,82¢ 32,53¢ 24,42¢
Income (loss) before income taxes $78,76: $ 6,30¢ $17,84¢

Components of the provision for income taxes were:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Current provision (benefit
Federa $ (46€) $ (67%) $ —
State and loc (48) (26¢) 391
Foreign 13,86¢ 9,08 4,48
Total current provision 13,352 8,14¢ 4,87¢
Deferred provision (benefit
Federa 6,157 (1,632) (12,16()
State and loce 1,311 (1,877) (61€)
Foreign 5,93:¢ 96¢€ (1,204)
Change in valuation allowar-domestic (7,46¢) 3,50¢ 1,704
Change in valuation allowance—foreign (802) 328 35E
Total deferred provision 5,131 1,28¢ (11,927)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $18,48: $9,43¢ $ (7,043)
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Reconciliations of the Federal statutory rate ®m@ompany’s effective tax rate were:

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013
Federal income tax ra 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State and local taxes, net of federal ber 0.2 0.€) 1.4
Change in federal valuation allowar (7.€) 43.€ 7.8
Foreign income tax rates and change in foreign

valuation allowance (1.€) (60.€) (17.5)
Foreign withholding ta: 0.2 36.5 14
Foreign incentive tax rate (4.1) (30.1) (13.€)
Acquisition related change in domestic valuation

allowance — — (50.7)
Change in liability for uncertain tax positio 1.t (34.€) 54
Taxable income not recorded on boi — — 0.€
Repatriation of foreign earniny — 138.7 —
Permanent item (0.2) 26.1 (7.6)
Other 0.2 (3.5) (1.1)
Effective tax rate 23.5% 149.€% (39.5)%

We have not provided for United States or additidémaign taxes on approximately $125,313 of
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries,clitéarnings have been or are intended to be intigyin
reinvested. It is not practicable at this time ¢ébedmine the amount of income tax liability thatulbresult
should such earnings be repatriated. Taxes angravided for foreign currency translation adjusttsenelating
to investments in international subsidiaries thiithve held indefinitely.

During 2014, we reviewed the ongoing cash neeasinforeign subsidiaries and determined $25,000
was not needed for reinvestment. Based on thiswewwe changed our indefinite reinvestment assesaely
with respect to those earnings and recorded $3)6freign withholding taxes in the provision forcome
taxes. Our domestic operations received a $25 @@étration of foreign earnings in 2014.

The tax effects of significant temporary differestiat comprise deferred tax assets and liabilities

were:
As of June 30 2015 2014
Deferred tax asset
Employee related accruz $ 9,77¢  $12,417
Inventory 3,88¢ 2,30¢
Environmental remediatic 2,15¢ 2,30¢
Net operating loss carry forwa—domestic 13,64 19,18
Net operating loss carry forwarforeign 4,127 8,72¢
Other 5,41¢ 7,231

39,00¢ 52,17¢

Valuation allowanct (26,62:) (32,89:)

12,38¢ 19,28:

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible a: (11,08¢) (13,42¢)
Unrealized foreign exchange ga — (4,68()
Other (461) (131)
(11,54¢)  (18,23¢)
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ 837 $ 1,04¢
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Deferred taxes are included in the consolidatedriza sheets as follows:

As of June 30 2015 2014
Prepaid expenses and other current a: $ 7,45¢ $ 3,242
Accrued expenses and other current liabili — (1,62¢)
Other asset 222 3,48¢
Other liabilities (6,841) (4,05¢)

$ 837 $ 1,044

We review the realizability of our deferred taxetsavhenever circumstances require. As of June 30,
2015, we evaluated the positive and negative eeleslating to the realizability of certain defettax assets
and determined we will maintain a full valuatiotoalance against our deferred tax assets from dacressd
certain foreign jurisdictions. Currently therensufficient positive evidence to support that itriere likely than
not we will be able to utilize these deferred tazets. We will evaluate the realizability of théedeed tax assets
in future periods, and to the extent that a posiéarnings trend continues, a significant portibthe valuation
allowances may be released, resulting in a betgefite provision for income taxes.

The valuation allowances for deferred tax assetthi periods presented were:

As of June 30 2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of peric $32,89: $27,75: $36,76:
Provision for income taxe (6,27() 5,13¢ 2,05¢
Permanent adjustment for Other Comprehensivi

Income — — (2,01¢)
Acquisition related adjustment — — (9,052)
Balance at end of period $26,62: $32,89: $27,75:

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsf dsine 30, 2015, includes $21,887 related to
domestic jurisdictions and $4,735 related to fangigisdictions.

The change in valuation allowance for the year dnlime 30, 2013, included a $9,053 reversal of
domestic valuation allowance. The reversal offsgusition-related deferred tax liabilities recaddelated to
certain acquired definite-lived intangible assets.

The Company has approximately $34,728 of domestlertl net operating loss carry forwards that
expire in 2027 through 2034 and approximately $8% @f state net operating loss carry forwards Wikiexpire
in 2015 through 2034. In addition, the Company d@gzoximately $13,396 of foreign net operating lcasy
forwards, most of which are in jurisdictions whicave no expiration.

Unrecognized tax benefits 8,078, along with accrued interest and penatiie®l,326 as of June 30
2015, if recognized, would impact the effective tate. A reconciliation of the beginning and endamgounts of
unrecognized tax benefits for the periods preseatedietailed below:

As of June 30 2015 2014 2013

Unrecognized tax benei-beginning of periot $7,42( $12,26! $ 6,56¢
Tax position chang~prior periods (24) 1,27¢ 4,99¢
Tax position chang~current perioc 1,94t 1,03¢ 404
Settlements with tax authoriti — (2,218) —
Lapse of statute of limitatior (907) (5,157) —
Translation (35€) 21¢ 29¢
Unrecognized tax benet-end of perioc $8,07¢ $ 7,42 $12,26:
Interest and penalti-end of perioc 1,32¢ 1,34¢ 1,95z

Total liabilities related to uncertain tax positon $9,40¢ $ 8,76¢ $14,21:
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We recognize interest and penalties associatedunithrtain tax positions as a component of the
provision for income taxes. We recognized inteaest penalties 0$66, $(661) and $441 for 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

During 2016, we potentially will reverse $1,637unfcertain tax positions as a result of the lapsbef
statute of limitations, with a corresponding betigfithe provision for income taxes.

During 2014, certain of our foreign subsidiarieaateed a settlement regarding tax examinations,
resulting in a $2,614 payment to the tax authajte$572 reduction in our provision for incomeesand a
$2,215 reduction in previously unrecognized taxafie

Income tax returns for the following periods arel@ger subject to examination by the relevant tax
authorities:

» U.S. federal and significant states, througheJs®, 2006;
e Brazil, through December 31, 2009;

e Israel, through June 30, 2009 for certain subs&s and through June 30, 2012 for certain
subsidiaries.

12. Commitments and Contingencie:

Leases

We lease land and office, warehouse and manufagtequipment and facilities for minimum annual
rentals, plus certain cost escalations. We reaamtiexpense on a straight line basis over the ¢éitime lease. At
June 30, 2015, we had the following future minimlease commitments:

Non-
cancellable

Capital operating
For the Years Ended June 3( leases “Teases
2016 $15 $ 4,51
2017 6 4,19¢
2018 — 3,88¢
2019 — 2,88¢
2020 — 2,71%
Thereafter = 4,19¢
Total minimum lease payments $21 $22,39:
Amounts representing interest ﬁ)
Present value of minimum lease payments ﬁ

Rent expense under operating leases was $7,2458&nd $6,084, for 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Environmenta

Our operations and properties are subject to extefsderal, state, local and foreign laws and
regulations, including those governing pollutiomtection of the environment; the use, managenaemt,
release of hazardous materials, substances andsyastemissions; greenhouse gas emissions; wsgesuppl
and discharges; the investigation and remediati@moitamination; the manufacture, distribution, aate of
regulated materials, including pesticides; the irtipg, exporting and transportation of products] #me health
and safety of our employees (collectively, “Envimental Laws”). As such, the nature of our curremd former
operations exposes us to the risk of claims wisipeet to such matters, including fines, penalties,
remediation obligations that may be imposed by letgey authorities. Under certain circumstancesvight be
required to curtail operations until a particulanigem is remedied. Known costs and expenses under
Environmental Laws incidental to ongoing operatjdnsluding the cost of litigation proceedings telg to
environmental matters, are included within opematin
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results. Potential costs and expenses may alswcheed in connection with the repair or upgradéaoflities to
meet existing or new requirements under Environaldrgws or to investigate or remediate potentiactual
contamination and from time to time we establigerees for such contemplated investigation and detien
costs. In many instances, the ultimate costs uBdeironmental Laws and the time period during wtsakh
costs are likely to be incurred are difficult teegict.

While we believe that our operations are curreintignaterial compliance with Environmental Laws,
we have, from time to time, received notices ofation from governmental authorities, and have haealved
in civil or criminal action for such violations. Adionally, at various sites, our subsidiaries @ngaged in
continuing investigation, remediation and/or moriitg efforts to address contamination associatdl historic
operations of the sites. We devote considerabtauress to complying with Environmental Laws and aging
environmental liabilities. We have developed progsdo identify requirements under, and maintain gieance
with Environmental Laws; however, we cannot prediith certainty the effect of increased and mormgént
regulation on our operations, future capital exjitemne requirements, or the cost of compliance.

The nature of our current and former operationoegp us to the risk of claims with respect to
environmental matters and we cannot assure wenatlincur material costs and liabilities in conmectwith
such claims. Based upon our experience to datbglieve that the future cost of compliance withsrig
Environmental Laws, and liabilities for known emrimental claims pursuant to such Environmental L.avils
not have a material adverse effect on our finammaltion, results of operations, cash flows owiliify.

The EPA is investigating and planning for the reratoh of offsite contaminated groundwater that
migrated from the Omega Chemical Corporation SuperSite (“‘Omega Chemical Site”), which is upgradie
of Phibro-Tech’s Santa Fe Springs, California facilThe EPA has named Phibro-Tech and certainrothe
subsidiaries of PAHC as potentially responsiblgiesai(“PRPs”) due to groundwater contamination fi@hibro-
Tech’s Santa Fe Springs facility that has allegediyymingled with contaminated groundwater from@mega
Chemical Site. In September 2012, the EPA notifipdroximately 140 PRPs, including Phibro-Tech ded t
other subsidiaries, that they have been identd®gotentially responsible for remedial actiontfar
groundwater plume affected by the Omega Chemidale®id for EPA oversight and response costs. Pfibat
contends that groundwater contamination at itsisitiie to historical operations that pre-date fehitech
and/or contaminated groundwater that has migraited tipgradient properties. In addition, a successarprior
owner of the Phibro-Tech site has asserted that®Ahtl Phibro-Tech are obligated to provide indeiwauiion
for its potential liability and defense costs relgtto the groundwater plume affected by the Ont@gamical
Site. Phibro-Tech has vigorously contested thistippsand has asserted that the successor to ithiequvner is
required to indemnify Phibro-Tech for its potentiability and defense costs. Furthermore, a nearoperty
owner has filed a complaint in the Superior Cotithe State of California against many of the PRIRgedly
associated with the groundwater plume affectechbymega Chemical Site (including Philireeh) for alleget
contamination of groundwater underneath its prgpard a group of companies that sent chemicalseto
Omega Chemical Site for processing and recyclirggfied a complaint under CERCLA, RCRA and the
common law public nuisance doctrine in the Unitéatés District Court for the Central District of l@@rnia
against many of the PRPs allegedly associatedthétlyroundwater plume affected by the Omega Chéi8ita
(including Phibro-Tech) for contribution toward pasd future costs associated with the investigadiod
remediation of the groundwater plume affected ley@mega Chemical Site. Due to the ongoing natutieeof
EPA’s investigation and Phibro-Tech’s dispute with prior owner’s successor, at this time we capnedict
with any degree of certainty what, if any, liakyilRhibro-Tech or the other subsidiaries may ultehahave for
investigation, remediation and the EPA oversigltt @sponse costs associated with the affected dvoater
plume.

Based upon information available, to the extenhstasts can be estimated with reasonable certainty,
we estimated the cost for further investigation eerdediation of identified soil and groundwaterlgeons at
operating sites, closed sites and third-party séted closure costs for closed sites, to be apmately $6,827
and $7,273 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectiwvbigh is included in current and
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long-term liabilities on the consolidated balankbeets. However, future events, such as new infoomat
changes in existing Environmental Laws or theieliptetation, and more vigorous enforcement policfes
regulatory agencies, may give rise to additiongleexiitures or liabilities that could be materiar Bll purposes
of the discussion under this caption and elsewinettgis report, it should be noted that we take lade taken
the position that neither PAHC nor any of our sdiasies is liable for environmental or other claimade
against one or more of our other subsidiaries owftch any of such other subsidiaries may ultiryate
responsible.

Claims and Litigatior

PAHC and its subsidiaries are party to a numbetais and lawsuits arising out of the normal ce
of business including product liabilities, paymdigputes and governmental regulation. Certain @¢hactions
seek damages in various amounts. In many casdsckims are covered by insurance. We believertbaé of
the claims or pending lawsuits, either individuallyin the aggregate, will have a material adveffect on our
financial position, results of operations, caskvBoor liquidity.

Employment and Severance Agreem

We have entered into employment agreements withioegxecutive management and other emplc
which specify severance benefits of up to 15 moaftiee employee’s compensation.

13. Derivatives

We monitor our exposure to commodity prices, irgerates and foreign currency exchange rates, and
use derivatives to manage certain of these ridhes@ derivatives generally have an expiration/ntstaf two
years or less and are intended to hedge cash fidated to the purchase of inventory. We desigdatvatives
as a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of thabikty of the cash flows to be received or paidhe future
related to a recognized asset or liability (caskvfhedge). We record the portion of the changésarvalue of
the derivative, related to a hedged asset or ifglfthe effective portion), in accumulated othengprehensive
income (loss). As the hedged item is sold, we rezagthe gain or loss recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) to the consolidatadrsents of operations on the same line where ttgetkiten
is charged when released/sold. We immediately rézedn the consolidated statements of operatiorise
same line as the hedged item, the portion of tlaagés in fair value of derivatives used as cash fledges that
is not offset by changes in the expected cash fleleded to a recognized asset or liability (theffiective
portion).

We routinely assess whether the derivatives uséedge transactions are effective. If we deterraine
derivative ceases to be an effective hedge, wediBzie hedge accounting in the period of the assest, and
immediately recognize any unrealized gains or lpsshkated to the fair value of that derivativehe t
consolidated statements of operations.

We record derivatives at fair value in the consatkd balance sheets. For additional details reggrdi
fair value, see “—Fair Value Measurements.”

At June 30, 2015, the following table details tr@mrpanys outstanding derivatives that are design
and effective as cash flow hedges:

a’\rlr?;il?:ta;t Fair value as of June 30
Instrument Hedge June 30, 2015 2015 2014
Options Brazilian Real call R$ 136,50( $ 492 $432
Options Brazilian Real put (R$ 136,500 (2,03¢) (46)

The unrecognized gains (losses) at June 30, 204 5raealized and will fluctuate based on future
exchange rates until the derivative contracts neatill derivative contracts that matured during 202014 and
2013 had no value at maturity and no gains (losses? realized. Of the $(1,542) of unrecognizea gmisses)
on derivative instruments included in accumulaté®:ocomprehensive income (loss) at June 30,
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2015, we anticipate that $(300) of the current ¥alue will be recognized in earnings within thensvelve
months. We recognize gains (losses) related t@ttiesvative instruments as a component of cogbofls sold
at the time the hedged item is sold. We hedge &sted transactions for periods not exceeding twimty
months.

14. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exit price that wdwddreceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability. Fair value is a market-based measurentieait should be determined using assumptions thateh
participants would use in pricing an asset or ligbiFinancial assets and liabilities are measwefhir value
using the three-level valuation hierarchy for disclre of fair value measurements. The determinatidhe
applicable level within the hierarchy of a parteuésset or liability depends on the inputs usetiérnvaluation
as of the measurement date, notably the extenhichvthe inputs are market-based (observable)terrially
derived (unobservable). Observable inputs are sihatt market participants would use in pricingahset or
liability developed based on market data obtaimethfindependent sources. Unobservable inputs prgsn
based on a company’s own assumptions about maakitipant assumptions developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances. Thedrehy is broken down into three levels based erréfiability
of inputs as follows:

Level 1 —Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

Level 2 —Significant observable inputs, other than quotedegrincluded within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikeor indirectly through corroboration with
observable market data.

Level 3 —Unobservable inputs for which there is little ormarket data available, and which are
significant to the overall fair value measuremang, employed which require the reporting
entity to develop its own assumptions.

In assessing the fair value of financial instrurseaitJune 30, 2015 and 2014, we used a variety of
methods and assumptions which were based on esirnimarket conditions and risks existing at itmet
Current Assets and Liabilitie

We consider the carrying amounts of current assedscurrent liabilities to be representative ofrthe
fair value because of the current nature of thieses.

Letters of Credi

We obtain letters of credit in connection with e@rtregulatory and insurance obligations, inventory
purchases and other contractual obligations. Thging values of these letters of credit are com®d to be
representative of their fair values because ohtitare of the instruments.

Long Term Deb

We record the Term B Loan at book value in our otidated financial statements. We believe the
carrying value of the Term B Loan is approximai@iyal to the fair value.
Deferred Consideration on Acquisitio

We estimated the fair value of the deferred comaitten on acquisitions using the income approach,
based on the Company'’s current sales forecased:tatthe acquired business.
Derivatives

We determine the fair value of derivative instrumsdmased upon pricing models using observable
market inputs for these types of financial instratsesuch as spot and forward currency translatites.

As of June 30 2015 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Levell LevelZ Level3
Derivatives $—  $@1,54:) $ —  $— $38€ $ —
Deferred consideration on
acquisitions — — 5,46t — — 1,01f
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The table below provides a summary of the changései fair value of Level 3 assets:

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of peri $1,01¢ $1,72¢
Changes in estima 21¢€ (402)
New items 4,76¢ —
Payments (53¢£) (307)
Balance at end of period $5,46¢ $1,01¢

For a detailed discussion on the fair value ofmemsion plan assets and the applicable hierarchy fo
the various components, see “—Employee Benefit®?lan

15. Business Segment

The Animal Health segment manufactures and magketducts for the poultry, swine, cattle, dairy,
aquaculture and ethanol markets. The businessdesloet sales of medicated feed additives and oileted
products, nutritional specialty products and vaesinrhe Mineral Nutrition segment manufacturesrandkets
trace minerals for the cattle, swine, poultry aptifpod markets. The Performance Products segment
manufactures and markets a variety of productsi$erin the personal care, automotive, industriatribal and
chemical catalyst industries.

We evaluate performance and allocate resourcesl losisthe Animal Health, Mineral Nutrition and
Performance Products segments. Certain of our aostassets are not directly attributable to tisegenents.
We do not allocate such items to the principal sagmbecause they are not used to evaluate thaiatiuy
results or financial position. Corporate costsundel the departmental operating costs of the BoalBdrectors,
the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offitter Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Finand@ficer,
the Senior Vice President and General Counselsémeor Vice President of Human Resources, the Chief
Information Officer and the Executive Vice PresidehCorporate Strategy. Costs include the exeestand
their staffs and include compensation and bendfittsside services, professional fees and officeepassets
include cash and cash equivalents, debt issue apndtsertain other assets.

We evaluate performance of our segments based ustdd EBITDA. We define Adjusted EBITDA
as EBITDA plus (a) (income) loss from, and dispagabliscontinued operations, (b) other expendess other
income, as separately reported on our consolidatgdments of operations, including foreign curyegains ani
losses and loss on extinguishment of debt, andeftin items that we consider to be unusual orneonrring.
We define EBITDA as net income plus (i) interegpexse, net, (ii) provision for income taxes or lessefit for
income taxes and (iii) depreciation and amortizatio

The accounting policies of our segments are theesssrthose described in the summary of significant
accounting policies included herein.
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For the Years Ended June 3(
Net sales
Animal Health
Mineral Nutrition
Performance Products

Depreciation and amortization
Animal Health
Mineral Nutrition
Performance Produc
Corporate

Adjusted EBITDA
Animal Health
Mineral Nutrition
Performance Produc
Corporate

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to income
before income taxes
Adjusted EBITDA
Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss on insurance clai
Acquisition related compensation expe
Interest expense, n
Foreign currency gains (losses),
Loss on extinguishment of de
Other income (expense), net

Income before income taxes

As of June 30

Identifiable assets
Animal Health
Mineral Nutrition
Performance Produc
Corporate

2015 2014 2013
$470,80( $431,05.  $384,94:
227,10 201,59 203,16¢
50,68¢ 59,26: 65,04:
$748,59: $691,91:  $653,15:
$ 1543( $ 1548: $ 13,90;
2,46¢ 2,36¢ 2,27¢
577 412 24z
3,12¢ 3,18¢ 2,59¢
$21,60c $ 21,45 $ 19,02¢
$120,25¢ $100,28( $ 82,99:
14,42¢ 11,63¢ 12,06¢
2,64¢ 4,62¢ 2,927
(27,318)  (25,94f)  (22,23¢)
$110,01¢ $ 90,597 $ 75,75¢
$110,01¢ $ 90,597 $ 75,75¢
(21,60¢)  (21,45:)  (19,02%)
— (5,35() —
(747) — —
(14,308)  (32,96:)  (35,62¢)
5,40( (1,752) (3,10%)
— (22,772) —
— — (151)
$78,76: $ 6,30¢ $ 17,84¢
2015 2014
$361,07¢  $361,37¢
59,88: 57,46(
22,25t 23,42¢
50,10« 30,05¢
$493,31¢  $472,32:

The Animal Health segment includes all goodwilleTAnimal Health segment includes advances to
and investment in equity method investeebdf364 and $5,140 as of June 30, 2015 and 204@ectvely. The
Performance Products segment includes an investmenuity method investee &361 and $479 as of June
2015 and 2014, respectively. Corporate includesaah and cash equivalents.
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16. Geographic Information

The following is information about our geographpecations. Information is attributed to the
geographic areas based on the locations of ouidsabes.

For the Years Ended June 3( 2015 2014 2013

Net sales
United State: $475,94. $435,41- $414,76¢
Israel 93,45¢ 89,73¢ 93,24¢
Latin America and Canac 99,57¢ 84,77¢ 68,57t
Europe and Afric: 36,39% 38,56! 32,50:
Asia/Pacific 43,21 43,42 44,05¢

$748,59: $691,91: $653,15:

As of June 30 2015 2014
Property, plant and equipment, |
United State: $ 43,77 $ 40,92¢
Israel 36,36 33,42¢
Brazil 22,76 32,94¢
Other 1,50¢ 1,861

$104,41- $109,15¢
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17. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited

This quarterly financial data was prepared on #mesbasis as, and should be read in conjunctidn
the audited consolidated financial statements aladed notes included herein. We previously redtate
interim consolidated financial statements for tireé and nine months ended March 31, 2015, toatcreors it
accounting for income taxes arising from long-téntarcompany investments. We incorrectly recordedefits
in the provision for income taxes instead of reaguydhe benefits in other comprehensive income. ddreecting
adjustments increased the provision for incomestasasiuced net income and increased other comsizieen
income. We restated the three and nine months evidech 31, 2015, because we concluded the correctio
were material to the interim consolidated finansiatements. This quarterly financial data alss@més the
effects of the corrections on the three months @&kptember 30, 2014, and the three and six memnihesd
December 31, 2014. We concluded the corrections wer material to those periods.

Quarters Year
September 30
December 31  March 31,
2014 2014 2015 June 30, June 30,
For the Periods Ended (Revised) (Revised) (Restated) 2015 2015
(in thousands)
Net sales
Animal Health $117,22! $118,78! $117,34¢ $117,44: $470,80(
Mineral Nutrition 55,44 58,74 57,32( 55,59: 227,10:
Performance Products 14,78¢ 11,16: 12,82¢ 11,91: 50,68¢
Total net sale 187,45t 188,68t 187,49! 184,95(  748,59:
Cost of goods sold 127,12¢ 132,60: 128,38! 124,10: 512,21¢
Gross profi 60,32¢ 56,08t 59,11( 60,84¢ 236,37.
Selling, general and administrative expenses 35,22« 36,29¢ 37,297 39,88¢ 148,70
Operating income (los: 25,10¢ 19,787 21,81: 20,96: 87,66¢
Interest expense, n 3,49( 3,51¢ 3,60z 3,69¢ 14,30t
Foreign currency (gains) losses, net (1,204) (1,01¢) (4,632) 1,45¢ (5,40()
Income before income tax 22,81¢ 17,29( 22,84« 15,81( 78,76:
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,881 3,04z 6,14¢ 5,40¢ 18,48:
Net income $ 18,93: $ 14,24t $ 16,69¢ $ 10,40 $ 60,28(
Net income per shai
basic $ 0.4¢ $ 037 $ 04 $ 027 $ 1.5t
diluted $ 0.4¢ $ 03¢ $ 04z $ 02 $ 151
Adjusted EBITDA
Animal Health $ 32,45¢ $ 28,29¢ $ 29,62¢ $ 29,88( $120,25¢
Mineral Nutrition 3,47¢ 3,75¢ 3,761 3,43¢ 14,42¢
Performance Produc 1,03¢ 162 994 454 2,64¢
Corporate (6,511) (7,18¢) (6,88¢)  (6,73z) (27,31F%)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 30,45¢ $ 25,026 $ 27,49 $ 27,037 $110,01¢

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to income
before income taxes

Adjusted EBITDA $ 30,45¢ $ 2502t $ 27,49 $ 27,037 $110,01¢
Depreciation and amortizatic (5,35%) (5,241) (5,35¢)  (5,65¢) (21,60¢)
Acquisition related compensation expe — — (327) (420) (747)
Interest expense, n (3,490) (3,51¢) (3,60z2) (3,69¢) (14,30%)
Foreign currency gains (losses), net 1,20¢ 1,01¢ 4,637 (1,45¢%) 5,40(
Income before income taxes $ 22,81¢ $ 17,29C $ 22,84« $ 1581( $ 78,76:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

Quarters Year

September 30  December 31
March 31, June 30, June 30,
For the Periods Ended 2013 2013 2014 2014 2014

(in thousands)

Net sales
Animal Health $101,17: $107,96¢ $107,80¢ $114,10¢ $431,05:
Mineral Nutrition 46,18¢ 50,63: 49,901 54,87¢  201,59¢
Performance Products 14,87: 14,14 15,55¢ 14,69( 59,26:
Total net sale 162,22¢ 172,74: 173,26 183,67 691,91
Cost of goods sold 112,71¢ 121,58t 120,42¢ 129,41: 484,13¢
Gross profit 49,51: 51,15¢ 52,84: 54,26¢ 207,77"
Selling, general and administrative expenses 33,11¢ 34,13¢ 35,52( 41,20¢ 143,98:
Operating income (los: 16,397 17,01¢ 17,32: 13,057 63,79
Interest expense, n 8,73t 8,71¢ 8,74« 6,76¢ 32,96:
Foreign currency (gains) losses, 64¢ 1,165 27E (33¢) 1,752
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — 22,77 22,77
Income (loss) before income ta> 7,01¢ 7,13¢ 8,30¢ (16,142) 6,30¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,171 4,832 1,93¢ 1,49¢ 9,43¢
Net income (loss) $ 5,84: $ 230 $ 6,37C $(17,64:) $ (3,127)
Net income per sha-basic and dilute: $ 0.1¢ $ 006 $ 021 $ (0471)$ (0.10)
Adjusted EBITDA
Animal Health $ 24,107 $ 24,52: $ 25,50f $ 26,14¢ $100,28(
Mineral Nutrition 2,46( 2,87¢ 2,801 3,491 11,63¢
Performance Produc 1,09¢ 1,10 90€ 1,521 4,62¢€
Corporate (6,06%) (6,197) (6,77¢) (6,912) (25,94%)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 21,59¢ $ 22,31C $ 22,44« $ 24,24t $ 90,597
Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to income
before income taxes
Adjusted EBITDA $ 21,59¢ $ 22,31( $ 2244 $ 24,24 $ 90,597
Depreciation and amortizatic (5,201) (5,292) (5,122) (5,83¢) (21,45:)
Loss on insurance clai — — — (5,35() (5,35()
Interest expense, n (8,73¢%) (8,71¢) (8,74¢2) (6,76¢) (32,96:)
Foreign currency gains (losses), (64¢) (1,16¢%) (27%) 33t (1,75%)
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — (22,77:) (22,772)
Income before income taxes $ 7,01« $ 7,13¢ $ 8,30: $(16,14:) $ 6,30¢
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accowemits on Accounting and Financial Disclosurt

None.
Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

Management of the Company, with the participatibitsoChief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Comfmdisclosure controls and procedures as of Jun2Cib.

The Company’s disclosure controls and procedumeslesigned to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by the issuer in the reports thaes br submits under the Exchange Act of 1934mended, is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported yvithitime periods specified in the Commissionlesand
forms, and that such information is accumulated@rdmunicated to management of the Company, inaudi
its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial {0€fr, as appropriate to allow timely decisions rdgay
required disclosure.

Based on their evaluation, as of the end of thmgarovered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah&fficer have concluded that the Company’s dsate
controls and procedures were not effective becafifee material weaknesses in our internal coravelr
financial reporting described below.

Managemen’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in the ExchahgeRule 13a-15(f). Internal control over financiaporting is
a process designed by, or under the supervisioouofChief Executive Officer and Chief Financiafioér and
effected by our Board of Directors, managementathdr personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external pugois
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatement. Also, projections of any evaluatibeftectiveness to future periods are subject &oribk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance with
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness oftermahcontrol over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2015. In making its assessment of intearatol over financial reporting, we used theerid describe
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (20X3uied by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatibtise
Treadway Commission (COSO).

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finaricia
reporting, such that there is a reasonable poggitliht a material misstatement of our annuahterim
consolidated financial statements will not be preégd or detected on a timely basis.

Based upon that evaluation, we have identifieddiewing deficiencies as of June 30, 2015 in our
internal control over financial reporting:

» We did not maintain effective internal contrtdsensure processing and reporting of valid
transactions is complete, accurate, and timelyciBpally, we have not designed and
implemented formal accounting policies and procesdinat define how transactions across the
business cycles should be initiated, recorded,gased and reported and appropriately authorized
and approved. This material weakness resulteddit adjustments with respect to the
consolidated financial statements for the year érddme 30, 2015 related to the recognition of
selling expenses and recording of inventory reseipt

» We did not maintain effective internal controls otlee accounting for and disclosures of techr
accounting matters in the consolidated financitleshents. Specifically, we did not maintain a
sufficient complement of resources with an appetprievel of accounting
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knowledge, experience and training commensurate out structure and financial reporting
requirements. This material weakness resulteddiit adjustments identified with respect to the
consolidated financial statements for the year éddme 30, 2015 related to dividend presentation
and business acquisitions, as well as those thaltegl in the restatement of the consolidated
financial statements for the quarter ended Marc2815.

* We did not maintain effective internal controat restricts access to key financial systems and
records to appropriate users and ensures thatfgmsegregation of duties is maintained.
Certain personnel had access to financial applicaprograms and data beyond that needed to
perform their individual job responsibilities andhout independent monitoring. In addition,
certain financial personnel had incompatible dutied allowed for the creation, review and
processing of certain financial data without indegent review and authorization. This material
weakness affects substantially all financial staenaccounts.

Each of the control deficiencies described abowédcresult in a misstatement that would result in a
material misstatement of the annual or interim obdated financial statements that would not bevenéed or
detected. Accordingly, our management has detedhima these control deficiencies constitute makeri
weaknesses.

Because of these material weaknesses, our manageomstuded that we did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of @80, 2015, based on criteria in Internal Contnbégrated
Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Due to a transition period established by the rafebe SEC for emerging growth companies, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include anstdteon report of our registered public accounfing.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in internal control fivancial reporting during the quarter ended
June 30, 2015 that have materially affected, oreasonably likely to materially affect, our intatrwontrol over
financial reporting.

Remediation Plans and Other Information

We are actively engaged in planning and implemgntmediation efforts to address the material
weaknesses identified above. We have taken andak#l a number of actions to remediate the material
weaknesses including, but not limited to, addingaeexperienced accounting and financial persoand|
allocating existing internal resources to addressramediate the access rights within key finargyatems and
records. Management is committed to improving aternal control processes and believes that thesunes
described above, when fully implemented and vadidatvould be sufficient to strengthen our intecwitrol
over financial reporting and remediate the idesdifimaterial weaknesses. We cannot assure you, bovibat
the steps taken will remediate such weaknessesamowe be certain of whether additional actiorkhve
required or the costs of any such actions.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpoate Governance

The information required by this item is incorpadby reference to our 2015 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the year ethdene 30, 2015.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Bgsit@onduct and Ethics applicable to all officers,
directors and employees, which is available onveglysite (_investors.pahc.conunder “Corporate
Governance.”

Iltem 11. Executive Compensatiol

The information required by this item is incorpadby reference to our 2015 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the year ethdene 30, 2015.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialDwners and Management Related Stockholde
Matters

The information required by this item is incorpadby reference to our 2015 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the year eshdene 30, 2015.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorpadby reference to our 2015 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the year ethdene 30, 2015.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item is incorpadby reference to our 2015 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the year ethdene 30, 2015.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

We have filed the following documents as part & #orm 10-K:

@)

)
©)

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimg
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the lfigears ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incominéofiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014
and 2013

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2015 drd 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity (Deficit) for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems
Schedules: None

The exhibits filed are listed in the Index to Extsbmmediately following the signature page of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causis
Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its Hfdhathe undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

September 10, 2015

Phibro Animal Health Corporation

By:

/s/ Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg Act of 1934, this Annual Report on FormKLO-
has been signed by the following persons on betfiidlfe registrant and in the capacities and ord#ties

indicated.

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

September 10, 2015

Phibro Animal Health Corporation

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Richard G. Johnson

Richard G. Johnson
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Gerald K. Carlson

Gerald K. Carlson
Director and Chief Operating Officer

/s/ Daniel M. Bendheim

Daniel M. Bendheim
Director and Executive Vice President,
Corporate Strategy

/s/ E. Thomas Corcoran

E. Thomas Corcoran
Director

/sl Sam Gejdenson

Sam Gejdenson
Director

/sl George Gunn

George Gunn
Director

/s/ Mary Lou Malanoski

Mary Lou Malanoski
Director

/sl Carol A. Wrenn

Carol A. Wrenn
Director
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Exhibit 10.34

Exhibit 23
Firm

Exhibit 31.1

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.1*

Exhibit 32.2*

Exhibit 101.INS**

Exhibit 101.SCH**
Exhibit 101.CAL**
Exhibit 101.DEF**
Exhibit 101.LAB**

Exhibit 101.PRE**

EXHIBIT INDEX

Executive Long-Term Incentive Agremrthdated May 11, 2015, by and between Phibro
Animal Health Corporation and Richard G. Johnson

Consent of Independent Registered Bukticounting Firm

Chief Executive Officer—Certificatigqursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section
302

Chief Financial Officer—Certificatigrursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section
302

Chief Executive Officer—Certificatiopursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section
906

Chief Financial Officer—Certificatiopursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section
906

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schemaddment

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculat Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Defirith Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label hkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presdiuta Linkbase Document

*  This certification is deemed not filed for purposésection 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwidgjestt tc
the liability of that section, nor shall it be desgincorporated by reference into any filing unther
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchawuge

**  Furnished with this Annual Report on Form 104Rursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these
interactive data files are deemed not filed forpmses of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities AGOF3 an
are deemed not filed for purposes of section liB®@fSecurities and Exchange Act of 1934.
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Exhibit 10.34

Execution Versior
EXECUTIVE LONG-TERM INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

ThisEXECUTIVE LONG-TERM INCENTIVE AGREEMENT  (the “ Agreement’) is made effective as of Mz
11, 2015 (the Effective Date”) by and between Phibro Animal Health Corporatioe (tiCompany’) and Richard G.
Johnson (the Executive”).

WHEREAS, the Executive presently serves as Chiediktial Officer, a senior executive of the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to provide Executivil\&n additional incentive to exert his best effdot assist
the Company to meet or exceed its financial andrdilusiness objectives and to encourage Executiggstion in this
vital leadership role;

WHEREAS, the Company and Executive wish to enter tinis Agreement to set forth the terms and caost
upon which Executive may earn long-term incentiompensation; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl ghe mutual provisions contained herein, anatber
good and valuable consideration, the Company amdiive agree as follows:

1. Long-Term Incentive Payment

(@) Executive will be eligible to receive a paymenthe amount oexhibit A (the “LTIP Payment”)
in the event (i) the Company and/or one of its lidfes terminates the Executive’s employment witi@ause, (i) a
Change of Control occurs, (iii) the Executive diedecomes Permanently Disabled, or (iv) the fitimiversary of the
Effective Date occurs (each, afiggering Event”) , provided that he has remained actively employied the Company
and/or one of its Affiliates through the date oflsUriggering Event.

(b) In addition, (i) if the Executive’s employment withe Company and/or one of its Affiliates is
terminated prior to the occurrence of a Triggefvgnt for any reason other than an event desciib8dction 1(a) (an “
Early Triggering Event”), the Executive shall be eligible to receive a paita portion of the amount &xhibit A
calculated based on (i) with respect to an Eariggearing Event other than a termination by the Canypand/or one of its
Affiliates with Cause, a fraction, the numeratomdgfich equals the number of the days that havesethpetween the
Effective Date and the date of termination of tixe&utive’s employment and the denominator of wich,827 (i.e., equal
to the total number of days in the five-year pegodimencing on the Effective Date), or (ii) witlspect to an Early
Triggering Event based on a termination by the Camymand/or one of its Affiliates with Cause, a frag, the numerator
of which equals the number of anniversaries offiective Date that have elapsed between the Bffe@ate and the date
of termination of the Executive’s employment ane tienominator of which is 5, and in either suclechs “LTIP
Payment” for all purposes of this Agreement shalelqual to the applicable pro rata portion.




(c) Subject to Section 3(e), the LTIP Payment shajpdud to the Executive on the first regular payroll
date of the Company that is 30 days after the afeseich Triggering Event or Early Triggering Eveas,the case may be,
subject to the Executive signing a general reledséims in favor of the Company and its Affiliastand its and their
related Persons in a form and manner satisfactottyet Company (the Release Agreemeri}, and the Release Agreement
and Release becoming irrevocable, all within 30sdzfythe Triggering Event or Early Triggering Eveas the case may |
subject to the Executive’s ongoing compliance i Release Agreement and any ongoing post-emplayme
confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitaticovenants and obligations, to the extent appkca

2. Amendment and TerminatianThe Agreement may be amended by the Board otivire of the Company,
provided, that such amendment does not adverskegtahe Executive. This Agreement shall termingien the paymer
of the LTIP Payment due to the Executive upon t®igence of a Triggering Event, or an Early Trigiyg Event, as the
case may be.

3. Miscellaneous
(@) Defined Terms
(i) “ Affiliate ” means, with respect to any Person, any other Pemurolling, controlled by ¢

under common control with such particular Persdmene “control” means the possession, directly directly, of the
power to direct or cause the direction of the managnt and policies of a Person whether througlowreership of votin
securities, as trustee, personal representatiegemutor, by contract, credit arrangement or otisrw

(i)  “ Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sundayher alay on which banks
are required or authorized by law to be closedhéState of New Jersey.

(i) “ Cause” means (A) the Executive’s dishonest statementcts with respect to the
Company or any of its Affiliates, or any currentgsospective customers, suppliers vendors or dttiet parties with
which such entity does business, which harm, @emded to harm, or which would be reasonably likelyor foreseeab
could) cause more than de minimis harm to the Compad/or its Affiliates (including harm (whethermot monetary)
to its or their business, business relationshipsedwill or reputation); (B) the Executive’s commdss of (x) a felony or
(y) any misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, dealishonesty or fraud; (C) the Executive’s matkfailure to
perform his assigned duties and responsibilitieglvfailure continues after written notice giverthe grantee by the
Company and is not cured within 30 days of delivarguch notice (if such failure is curable); (DgtExecutive’s gross
negligence in carrying out any of his material dsiton behalf of the Company or any of its Affilstevillful misconduct
or gross insubordination with respect to the Corgparany of its Affiliates; or (E) the Executiversaterial violation of
any provision of any agreement(s) between such@xecand the Company and/or its Affiliates relgtio
noncompetition, nonsolicitation, nondisclosure andssignment of inventions.

(iv) “ Change of Control” means: (i) the acquisition (other than from thengpany) by any
Person of the beneficial ownership (within the megmf Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Securklrshange Act of
1934, as amended) of 50% or more of (A) the




then outstanding shares or other equity secunfitise Company, or (B) the combined voting powethef then outstandir
securities of the Company entitled to vote gengiialthe election of directors (theCompany Voting StockK); (ii) the
closing of a sale or other conveyance of all oissattially all of the assets of the Company; ay {liie effective time of any
merger, share exchange, consolidation, or othenéss combination involving the Company if immediptafter such
transaction persons who hold a majority of the tamiding voting securities entitled to vote gengrallthe election of
directors of the surviving entity (or the entity mwg 100% of such surviving entity) are not persah®, immediately pric
to such transaction, held the Company Voting Stpoivided, however, that a Change in Control shall not include (W)
any consolidation or merger effected exclusivelghange the domicile of the Company, (X) any tratisa or series of
transactions principally for bona fide equity ficarg purposes in which cash is received by the Gompr indebtedness
of the Company is cancelled or converted or a coatlin thereof, (Y) a public offering of capitabsk of the Company,
(2) the ownership or acquisition of shares of astock of the Company by BFI Co., LLC or any “@fied Stockholder”
as defined in the Company’s Amended and RestatedfiCate of Incorporation as of the Effective Dak®r purposes of
this definition, a “Person” means any individual, entity or group within theaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, thlaer employee benefit plans sponsored or mairdaigehe Company
and by entities controlled by the Company or anemwdter of the common stock of the Company ingistered public
offering; provided, further, that no such event shall be a Change of Coniielss such event would qualify ascnange c
control” udner Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A¢3).

(v) “ Permanent Disability” means the Executive’inability to engage in any substantial gai
activity by reason of any medically determinablg$bal or mental impairment which can be expectegsult in death
or which has lasted or can be expected to last tmmtinuous period of not less than twelve monthe. Company may
require such proof of Permanent Disability as tlben@any or its designee in its sole discretion degppsopriate and the
Company’s or its designee’s good faith determimaéie to whether the Executive is permanently deshiill be final
and binding on all parties concerned.

(viy “ Person” means any individual, partnership, limited lialyilcompany, corporation,
cooperative, association, joint stock company ttjosit venture, unincorporated organization ovgmmental authority,
body or entity or any department, agency or pdalitsubdivision thereof.

(b) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the lawthefUnited States to the extent
applicable and otherwise by the laws of the Sthiéew Jersey, excluding the choice of law rulesebé

(c) No Contract for Continuing ServicesThis Agreement shall not be construed as crgaimny
contract for continued services or employment betwde Company or any of its Affiliates and the &xeve and nothing
herein contained shall give the Executive the righie retained as an employee or other servicagaoof the Company
and/or any of its Affiliates. Nothing in this Agmaent shall change the “at will” nature of the Extageis service or
employment to the Company and/or its Affiliatespoovide the Executive employee employment or sirehgagement
for any particular, defined or guaranteed termwaton.




(d) No Transfers The Executive’s rights in an interest under fggeement may not be assigned or
transferred.

(e) Tax Withholding. The Company shall have the right to deduct fedipayments hereunder any
taxes required by law to be withheld with respeciuch payments.

) Unfunded Obligation Any amounts payable to Executive pursuant t® Agreement are unfunded
obligations. The Company shall not be requirecegragate any monies from its general funds, orgate any trusts, or
establish any special accounts with respect to ebtipations. The Company shall retain at all tirbeseficial ownership
of any investments, including trust investmentsiclvithe Company may make to fulfill its paymentigations hereunder.
Any investments or the creation or maintenancengfteust or any account shall not create or cautstia trust or fiduciary
relationship between the Company and Executivetlwerwise create any vested or beneficial intareBkecutive or
Executive’s creditors in any assets of the Company.

) Section 409A This Agreement is intended to be exempt frornarnply with Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (thee€'Q.oahd notwithstanding anything herein to thetcamy shall be
interpreted in a manner consistent with that intentThe Executive consents to the Company adostiiety conforming
amendments as the Company deems necessary, iriaggtboand in its reasonable discretion, to compithvsection 409A
of the Code and avoid the imposition of taxes uritlmie Section 409A. Each payment made pursuamytpr@vision of
this Agreement shall be considered a separate pdysne not one of a series of payments for purpos€ode Section
409A. While it is intended that all payments anddfés provided under this Agreement to the Exeeuill be exempt
from or comply with Code Section 409A, the Compamgkes no representation or covenant to ensurdhthgtayments
under this Agreement are exempt from or compliatit @ode Section 409A. The Company will have nbility to the
Executive or any other party if a payment or benefder this Agreement is challenged by any tasutpority or is
ultimately determined not to be exempt or compliffipupon Executive’s “separation from service$ @efined in Code
Section 409A), Executive is then a “specified ergpkd (as defined in Section 409A of the Code), tbely to the extent
necessary to comply with Code Section 409A anddawvoposition of taxes under Code Section 409A Gbenpany shall
defer payment of certain of the deferred compeoasamounts owed to the Executive until the eadfedhe Executive’s
death or the first Business Day of the seventh méwitowing the Executive’s separation from service

(h) Effect on Other Plans Nothing in this Agreement shall be construetinit the rights of the
Executive under the Company’s and its Affiliateshefit plans, programs or policies.

(i) Benefits and Burdens This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &edinding upon the
Company and the Executive, their respective suocgssxecutors, administrators, heirs and perméssigns.

) Enforceability. If any portion or provision of this Agreemengditio any extent be declared illegal
or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdictthen the remainder of this Agreement, or th@iegtion of such
portion or provision in circumstances other thassthas to which it is so declared illegal or unssgable, shall not t
affected thereby, and each portion




and provision of this Agreement shall be valid anébrceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

k) Waiver. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be efifez unless made in writing and signed by
the waiving party. The failure of any party to requhe performance of any term or obligation a$ thgreement, or the
waiver by any party of any breach of this Agreemehall not prevent any subsequent enforcemenialf germ or
obligation or be deemed a waiver of any subsedoreatch.

() Dispute Resolution

(i) Except as provided below, any dispute arising duir oelating to the Agreement or the
breach, termination or validity of the Agreemenalsbe finally settled by binding arbitration coraded expeditiously in
accordance with the J.A.M.S./Endispute Comprehen&nbitration Rules and Procedures (the “J.A.M.8leR"). The
arbitration shall be governed by the United Stésdstration Act, 9 U.S.C. Sections 1-16, and judginepon the award
rendered by the arbitrators may be entered by aunst baving jurisdiction thereof. The place of &dtion shall be New
York, New York.

(i)  The arbitration shall commence within 60 days efdlate on which a written demand for
arbitration is filed by any party hereto. In conti@c with the arbitration proceeding, the arbitragball have the power to
order the production of documents by each partyaarydthird-party witnesses. In addition, each paray take up to
three depositions as of right, and the arbitratay im his discretion allow additional depositionmn good cause shown
by the moving party. However, the arbitrator sinall have the power to order the answering of intgtories or the
response to requests for admission. In connectitthamy arbitration, each party to the arbitratstrall provide to the
other, no later than seven Business Days befordateeof the arbitration, the identity of all persahat may testify at the
arbitration and a copy of all documents that maynb@duced at the arbitration or considered odusgea party’s witness
or expert. The arbitrator’s decision and awardIdf@made and delivered within six months of thHea®n of the
arbitrator. The arbitrator’'s decision shall setlicx reasoned basis for any award of damagesdingrof liability. The
arbitrator shall not have power to award damagesaess of actual compensatory damages and shatuitply actual
damages or award punitive damages, and each padpyhirrevocably waives any claim to such damagks.Company
and the Executive shall split the costs of theteation.

(i)  The Company and the Executive (each, a “Partywenants and agrees that such Party will
participate in the arbitration in good faith an@lskeep all matters associated with the arbitratonfidential. Section 7
() applies equally to requests for temporary, ipredary or permanent injunctive relief, except thathe case of
temporary or preliminary injunctive relief any Bamay proceed in court without prior arbitratiom fbe limited purpose
of avoiding immediate and irreparable harm.

(iv)  Each Party (A) hereby irrevocably submits to thésgliction of any United States District
Court of competent jurisdiction for the purposesnforcing the award or decision in any such procegdB) hereby
waives, and agrees not to assert, by way of motisa, defense, or otherwise, in any such suipracti proceeding, any
claim that it is not subject personally to the gdiction of the above named courts, that its pitygerexempt or immune
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from attachment or execution (except as protecyeaplplicable law), that the suit, action or prodgegds brought in an
inconvenient forum, that the venue of the suiticscor proceeding is improper or that this Agreetrarthe subject matter
hereof may not be enforced in or by such court,(@)dereby waives and agrees not to seek anywdweany court of
any other jurisdiction which may be called upomgtant an enforcement of the judgment of any sucintc&ach Party
hereby consents to service of process by registaggidat the address to which notices are to bergittach Party agrees
that its and his submission to jurisdiction ancaitsl his consent to service of process by maiirereée for the express
benefit of each other Party. Final judgment agaangtParty in any such action, suit or proceediag tve enforced in othi

jurisdictions by suit, action or proceeding on jin@ggment, or in any other manner provided by ospant to the laws (
such other jurisdiction.

[ SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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WHEREFORE, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENIN THE DATES SHOWN BELOW.
PHIBRO ANIMAL HEALTH CORPORATION:

By: /s/ Jack C. Bendheil Date: May 11, 201t

Jack C. Bendheir
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Title:
EXECUTIVE:

By: /s/ Richard G. Johnsc Date: May 11, 201t

Richard G. Johnsa




EXHIBIT A
LTIP PAYMENT

$5,500,000, subject to adjustment pursuant to @edifb) upon the occurrence of an Early Triggekngnt.
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Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN®GRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referém¢iee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No.
333-198809) of Phibro Animal Health Corporatioroaf report dated September 10, 2015 relating to the
financial statements, which appears in this FornK10

sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Florham Park, New Jersey
September 10, 2015




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
[, Jack C. Bendheim, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1fbKthe year ended June 30, 2015, of Phibro
Animal Health Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make thenséatts made, in light of the circumstances undécws$uch
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andhcisws of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnreport;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as definecatn&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) andnate
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158¢f)) for the registrant ar
we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisiamgare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those egjti
particularly during the period in which this rep@teing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our sup&m, to provide reasonable assurance regarding th
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaceat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presémted
this report our conclusions about the effectiverigsbe disclosure controls and procedures, aBeof t
end of the period covered by this report baseduch svaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgsteant’s internal control over financial repogifas
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d))18{at occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erally affect, the registrant’s internal contrales
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrégistrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeivt functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material aasses in the design or operation of internalrobnt
over financial reporting which are reasonably §k&l adversely affect the registranibility to record
process, summarize and report financial informatéom

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inwes management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Dated: September 10, 2015 /sl Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard G. Johnson, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1fbKthe year ended June 30, 2015, of Phibro
Animal Health Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make thenséatts made, in light of the circumstances undécws$uch
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andhcisws of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnreport;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as definecatn&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) andnate
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158¢f)) for the registrant ar
we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisiamgare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those egjti
particularly during the period in which this rep@teing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our sup&m, to provide reasonable assurance regarding th
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaceat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presémted
this report our conclusions about the effectiverigsbe disclosure controls and procedures, aBeof t
end of the period covered by this report baseduch svaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgsteant’s internal control over financial repogifas
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d))18{at occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erally affect, the registrant’s internal contrales
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrégistrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeivt functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material aasses in the design or operation of internalrobnt
over financial reporting which are reasonably §k&l adversely affect the registranibility to record
process, summarize and report financial informatéom

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inwes management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Dated: September 10, 2015 /s/ Richard G. Johnson

Richard G. Johnson
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES -OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley f2002, each of the undersigned certifies that this
periodic report fully complies with the requiremgf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of
1934 and that information contained in this pegadiport fairly presents, in all material respetts, financial
condition and results of operations of the issuer.

Dated: September 10, 2015 /sl Jack C. Bendheim

Jack C. Bendheim
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES -OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley f2002, each of the undersigned certifies that this
periodic report fully complies with the requiremgf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of
1934 and that information contained in this pegadiport fairly presents, in all material respetts, financial
condition and results of operations of the issuer.

Dated: September 10, 2015 /s/ Richard G. Johnson

Richard G. Johnson
Chief Financial Officer




